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About this report

Vunani’s integrated reporting aims to: 

 ■ improve the quality of information available to stakeholders;

 ■ promote a consistent and efficient approach to reporting;

 ■ enhance accountability to stakeholders; and 

 ■ support integrated thinking, decision-making and actions. 

In order to achieve this, the integrated report includes information on strategy, risk 
management, fi nancial reporting, social and environmental factors and aspires to meet the 
needs of a wider group of stakeholders. 

Vunani’s third integrated report has been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), the JSE Listing Requirements and the Companies Act. Vunani 
has further applied the vast majority of the principles contained in the King III Report. To the 
extent that King III principles have not been applied, explanations have been provided in 
this report. The company has also considered and applied many of the recommendations 
released by the International Integrated Reporting Council (“IIRC”).

Vunani continues its journey towards providing a more holistic view of the group in one 
document and regards this process as a valuable opportunity to engage with its stakeholder 
groups. We welcome your feedback on this report and any comments can be emailed to 
annualreport2013@vunanigroup.co.za.

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 

VUNANI LIMITED
(“Vunani” or “the company” or “the group”)
Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa
Registration number 1997/020641/06
JSE code: VUN   ISIN: ZAE000163382
Listed on Alt-X on the JSE Limited (“JSE”)

Scope and boundary

This integrated report of Vunani covers 
the fi nancial year from 1 January 2013 
to 31 December 2013. No change in the 
scope of the 2012 report was required. 

Vunani’s scope of reporting remains 
focused on its reportable business 
segments. The content included in this 
integrated annual report is deemed useful 
and relevant to Vunani’s stakeholders. 
The content specifi cally aims to provide 
stakeholders with an understanding of 
the economic, environmental, social and 
governance matters pertaining the group 
and their related impact on the group in 
order to enable stakeholders to evaluate the 
group’s ability to create and sustain value. 

Statement of responsibility

The board of directors acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of the integrated 
report. The board has accordingly applied its mind to the integrated report and, in its opinion, 
the report initiates a process to better address all material issues facing the group, while 
endeavouring to fairly present the integrated performance of the group and its impact on all 
stakeholders. 

Annual fi nancial statements

The annual fi nancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 were approved by the 
board of directors on 21 May 2014. KPMG Inc., the independent auditors, have audited the 
annual fi nancial statements and their unmodifi ed audit report is presented on page 41 of this 
integrated report.

The consolidated and separate annual fi nancial statements have been prepared under the 
supervision of A Judin CA (SA), the group Chief Financial Offi cer.

Forward-looking statements

This integrated annual report contains 
forward-looking statements that, unless 
otherwise indicated, refl ect the company’s 
expectations as at 31 December 2013. 
Actual results may differ materially from 
the company’s expectations if known and 
unknown risks or uncertainties affect its 
business, or if estimates or assumptions 
prove inaccurate.

The company cannot guarantee that any 
forward-looking statement will materialise 
and accordingly, readers are cautioned not 
to place undue reliance on any forward-
looking statements. The company disclaims 
any intention and assumes no obligation 
to update or revise any forward-looking 
statement even if new information becomes 
available as a result of future events or for 
any other reason, other than as required by 
the JSE Listing Requirements.

Sustainability information

The information relating to sustainability 
has not been assured in 2013. An overview 
on the group’s strategy and sustainability 
is presented on pages 12 and 13 of this 
integrated report. 
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Vunani is a black-owned and 
managed diversifi ed fi nancial services 
group. The owner-managed culture is 

complemented with an entrepreneurial 
fl air that has seen the group grow into 

a strong fi nancial services provider. 
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VUNANI AT 
A GLANCE

Experienced 
management team
The prudent and successful 
management of these businesses 
remains at the core of our strategy 
to create value for clients while 
ultimately unlocking value for 
shareholders. As the group is 
ultimately controlled by its senior 
management, shareholders’ 
interests are closely aligned with 
those of management. The senior 
management team remains 
committed to actively looking for 
opportunities to grow its business 
operations and unlock shareholder 
value. 

Diversified financial 
services product 
offering
Vunani is a black-owned and 
managed diversified financial 
services group. The owner-
managed culture is complemented 
with an entrepreneurial flair that has 
seen the group grow into a strong 
financial services provider. 

The group’s goal is to become 
South Africa’s foremost mid-
sized financial services group, 
differentiated by the following key 
elements:

 ■ Strong operating businesses 
with targeted strategic equity 
investments;

 ■ Diversified financial services 
product offering;

 ■ Strong growth track record; and

 ■ Experienced management team.

Strong growth track 
record
The group operates out of offices in 
Sandton and Cape Town in South 
Africa and Harare in Zimbabwe. 
The group has 105 employees. The 
group’s activities are categorised 
into the following segments:

 ■ Asset management

 ■ Advisory services - South Africa

 ■ Advisory services - Zimbabwe

 ■ Investment holdings

 ■ Institutional securities broking

 ■ Private wealth and investments 

 ■ Properties (including 
investments, developments and 
asset management)

 ■ Group

GROUP SNAPSHOT

In the group’s early years, focus 
was placed on identifying unique 
investment opportunities that would 
ultimately translate into value for 
stakeholders. While operating 
businesses were included in this 
model, the emphasis was on 
value creation through investment 
holdings. In more recent years, 
the group’s focus has turned this 
approach around and significant 
efforts have been directed toward 
the growth in the operating 
businesses within the group.
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The group regards its people 
as the most important element 
of its business. It is therefore 
important to make the best use 
of the human capital we have 
available. 
The group ascribes to and 
applies the principles of 
employment equity. The 
group’s human resources at 
31 December 2013 are on 
page 13 of this report.

REVENUE (R’000)
Continuing and discontinued operations

2013 HIGHLIGHTS

OVERVIEW

Results from continuing operating 
activities after net finance costs of 
R11.7 million 
at 31 December 2013 compared to R10.8 million in 2012

Net finance costs 
down to 2.8 million 
compared to R47.8 million in 2012

Basic and diluted earnings per share of 
9.9 cents per share 
compared to basic loss per share of 0.2c in 2012

Net asset value per share 
increased to 203.5 cents per share 
at 31 December 2013 from 191.2  cents per share at 
31 December 2012

STAFF

46%54%

Asset management

Advisory services - South Africa

Advisory services - Zimbabwe

Institutional securities broking

Private wealth and investments

Properties asset management

Property developments 
and investments

Group

36 822

5 860

621

46 463

7 624

1 953
10 615

2013

8 858

Asset management

Advisory services

Securities broking

Property developments 
and investments

Group

Properties asset management

25 039

9 283

48 068

7 864

10 624

2012

7 014
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VUNANI AT 
A GLANCE

CELEBRATING 15 YEARS

The development of Vunani has taken place in three distinct phases:

INCEPTION   |   PLATFORM BUILDING   |   EXPANSION

Vunani began as a wholly 
owned subsidiary of African 
Harvest Limited operating 
through a reputable investment 
banking platform. 

Senior executives of the 
group initiated a management 
buy-out process covering all 
of African Harvest Limited’s 
operating businesses, 
including African Harvest Fund 
Managers Proprietary Limited. 
This buy-out was supported 
by the Metallon Group (led by 
Mzi Khumalo), who retained 
ownership of African Harvest 
Fund Managers Proprietary 
Limited when the buyout was 
completed in 2004. 

The completion of the buy-out 
marked the inception of the 
Vunani brand as it is presently 
known. By that time, the group 
operated through five divisions, 
namely private equity, hedge 
fund management, structured 
finance, corporate finance 
and property. 

In July, Absa Bank Limited 
acquired a 20% interest 
in Vunani through a share 
subscription. 

It has been 
15 years filled 
with lots of 
excitement, 
challenges 
and valuable 
lessons. 

The group’s second debt restructuring exercise was completed in December 2012, and with that, the group 
returned to profitability and the focus now shifted to expanding the group’s customer base (in different 
jurisdictions in the continent) using the business areas that make up Vunani’s operating platform, namely 
asset management, investment holdings and advisory, securities broking and property. 

The group continues to look for proprietary investment opportunities but the valuable lessons that have been 
learnt through the years form the cornerstone of how we are structuring these transactions going forward. 

The group presided over an oversubscribed 
JSE Limited’s main board listing of its jointly 
held property portfolio the Vunani Property 
Investment Fund Limited. The group’s 
strategy to partner with management in 
the various operating subsidiaries proved 
to be the right one; albeit not fool proof. 
To be a minority shareholder in an operating 
business is an exercise that can be 
fraught with divergent interests that pull in 
different directions – to the detriment of the 
operating business. 

Through the acquisition of a number 
of additional operating businesses 
(and divestment from some) – 
including asset management, treasury 
solutions, corporate finance and 
private wealth management – the 
group complemented its existing 
service offering resulting in a 
diversified financial services platform. 

The credit crisis of 2008/9 of course 
couldn’t have come at a worse 
possible time for the group. Just 
as the group was in the process of 
building its operating platform, the 
stock market correction resulted 
in the drop of share prices in listed 
investments held by the group. 
These investments were funded 
by debt towards the peak of the 
cycle, management’s attention had 
to be refocused towards a debt 
restructuring exercise, which was 
completed in two phases over a three 
year period. 

Vunani Limited listed on 
the JSE’s AltX exchange in 
late November, raising 
R175 million. The capital 
raised provided the company 
with the capital to expand 
its operations and build 
a diversified financial 
services platform. 
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STATEMENT OF 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME               

Total revenue (R'000)

Results from operating activities (profit/(loss)) (R'000) 86 264 (777 728) 19 703 61 115  53 669  61 935 17 124

Profit/(loss) for the year (R'000) 557 622 (784 122) (164 157) (44 702) (58 835) 11 755 8 306

Headline earnings/(loss) (R'000) 329 955 (686 215) (140 440) (125 577) (27 378) (11 245) 2 545

Headline earnings/(loss) per share (cents) (note 2)  28.0 (58.8) (11.0) (2.9)  (20.0)  (11.2) 2.5

STATEMENT OF 
FINANCIAL POSITION              

Equity attributable to equity holders (R'000)

Total assets (R'000) 2 998 335 2 020 802 1 893 772 2 035 425 798 703 591 025 433 284

Total liabilities (R'000) 2 017 874 1 772 417 1 754 119 1 611 206 586 005 376 714 225 037

Tangible net asset value per share (cents) (note 2) 82.6 5.5 (1.4) 4.2 154.9 158.3 169.0

SHARE PRICE 
STATISTICS              

Number of shares in issue at 31 December ('000)

Closing price at 31 December (cents) 120 35 10 8 7 225  190

Closing high for the period (cents) 125 135 35 12 8 399 225

Closing low for the period (cents) 110 35 6 4 4 4 119

Volume traded during the period ('000) 4 793 106 067 16 433 77 593 68 920 12 875  4 198

Ratio of volume traded to shares in issue 
(at year end) (%) 0.41  8.59 1.23 1.63 1.31 12.21 4.0

Notes

Note 1 – For continuing and discontinued operations.

Note 2 – Value at 31 December 2011 have been adjusted to show the effect of the 50:1 share consolidation that took place on 12 March 2012. 

239 480 223 065

125 046

195 801 186 711

107 892 118 816

(NOTE 1) (NOTE 1)

809 257

153 657
21 693

198 856 201 517  214 473250 131

(NOTE 1) (NOTE 1)

1 177 000 1 234 250 1 340 562

5 270 732

105 415 105 415

4 763 502

(NOTE 1) (NOTE 1)

HISTORICAL FINANCIAL REVIEW
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VUNANI AT 
A GLANCE

Listed

Unlisted

*Discontinued operation (refer to note 14 of the annual financial statements for further information)

L I M I T E D

Asset management Vunani Fund Managers

Private wealth and 
investments Vunani Private Clients

Vunani Securities

Vunani Capital Markets

Asset Management – VPAM*

Investments and Developments

Advisory services

Vunani Capital – South Africa

Vunani Capital – Zimbabwe

Operations

Investments

Institutional 
securities broking

Properties
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Ethan has extensive corporate 
finance and asset management 
experience gained at Standard 
Chartered Merchant Bank, 
Southern Asset Managers and 
Infinity Asset Management. 
Ethan was a founder and has 
been chief executive officer 
of Vunani Limited since its 
inception in the late 1990s.

Aphrodite joined Vunani in 
2005 after having served as an 
audit manager in the Financial 
Institutions Services Team 
at Deloitte post her articles. 
She initially focused on the 
institutional securities broking 
operations of the group and in 
early 2010 she was appointed 
company secretary for the 
group. In August 2010 she was 
appointed as the chief financial 
officer of the group and has 
since served the group in that 
capacity.

Butana established African 
Harvest Capital with Ethan 
Dube and has served in a 
number of senior executive 
roles within the group. He is 
currently the managing director 
of the group. Prior to Vunani, 
Butana worked at Southern 
Asset Management and 
Futuregrowth.

Having initiated a number 
of early BEE deals, Mark 
formed a corporate finance 
boutique and then advised 
on the formation of African 
Harvest Limited in 1997. 
Mark is responsible for Vunani 
Capital Proprietary Limited’s 
investment activities.

Evelyn is an admitted attorney 
of the High Court of South 
Africa and was appointed 
director and partner at 
Fairbridges Attorneys in 2004. 
Originally a non-executive 
director of Vunani, Evelyn 
joined as an executive director 
in 2006.

Evelyn Chimombe-
Munyoro 

(41)

Chief executive officer Chief financial officer Managing director Executive director Executive director 
(Resigned 1 March 2014)

MSc (Statistics), Executive 
MBA (Sweden)

BCom, BAcc, CA (SA) BCom, PG Dip (Accounting), 
CA (SA)

CTA, CA (SA) BA LLB, LLM (Commercial 
law/Maritime law)

Ethan Dube  (54) Aphrodite Judin (37) Butana Khoza  (47) Mark Anderson  (54)

DIRECTORATE
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Willy commenced his 
merchant banking career 
with the Nedbank Group 
in 1974 in corporate 
finance. He later became 
involved in project and 
structured finance and 
private equity. At the time 
of Nedbank's merger with 
Nedcor Investment Bank, 
he was an executive 
director with responsibility 
for infrastructure, project 
and structured finance, 
private equity, and risk 
and legal. 

Xolile began his career as 
lecturer in the Economics 
department at the 
University of Swaziland 
1978 and rose to become 
the director of Social 
Science Research Unit 
in 1990.  He returned 
to South Africa in 1994 
and worked on various 
academic boards, as 
well as an economic 
consultant to the United 
Nations, the African 
Development Bank, 
government departments 
and the private sector.  He 
joined the South African 
Reserve Bank in July 
1995 as an economist, 
progressed through the 
ranks and was ultimately 
appointed as deputy 
governor of the South 
African Reserve Bank. He 
served in this position for 
ten years until 2011.

Vunani welcomed Xolile 
to its board during the 
2013 year.

Nambita is an admitted 
attorney of the High 
Court of South Africa 
and is currently general 
manager of Legal 
Services for PPC Limited, 
a significant cement 
manufacturer, located in 
Johannesburg. Prior to 
PPC, she has held senior 
management positions 
at South African Airways 
SOC. Southern Enterprise 
Development fund, a 
venture capital fund with 
a pan-African focus. She 
has also practiced as 
a corporate attorney in 
South Africa.  She has 
completed Executive 
Leadership Courses at 
Harvard Business School, 
Boston, MA, and Insead, 
Fontainebleau, France. 
She is also a fellow of the 
International Women’s 
Forum 2013/2014.

Gordon serves as Group 
Internal Audit Executive 
of Imperial Holdings 
Limited. Gordon has 
been an independent 
non-executive director 
of Vunani Limited since 
November 2009. He has 
been an independent 
non-executive director 
of Austro Group Limited 
since October 2009. He 
served as an independent 
non-executive director 
at PSV Holdings Limited 
since November 2009. 
He has extensive 
experience in risk 
management, corporate 
governance and internal 
audit services, both in 
the private and public 
sectors. He also served 
as a partner at KPMG and 
PricewaterhouseCoopers, 
where he was responsible 
for assurance and 
consultancy services.

John studied at the 
University of Cape Town 
(“UCT”). He completed 
articles with Deloitte and 
Touche, after which he 
was a financial director of 
a manufacturing company 
for five years. He was a 
tenured member of the 
academic staff in the 
Department of Accounting 
at UCT, for nine years. 
Since 2009, he has been 
involved in the private 
equity and investment 
banking industry, having 
structured investments in 
the textiles and hospitality 
industries. He now runs a 
small auditing practice.

Willy Ross  Dr Xolile Guma Nambita Mazwi Gordon Nzalo  John Macey (69) (40) (48)

Independent non-
executive chairman 
(Resigned 21 May 2014)

Independent non-
executive director 
(appointed 1 July 2013)

Independent non-
executive director

CTA, CA (SA) BProc LLB, 
Dip Company 
Law, Programme in 
Business Leadership

B Bus Sci (Hons), BCom 
(Hons) CA (SA) 

(57)

Independent non-
executive director 

BCom, BAcc, CA (SA) 

(52)

Independent non-
executive director  

Lionel Jacobs (70)

Independent non-
executive chairman 
(Appointed 21 May 
2014)

BCom, MBA

Lionel served as an 
Executive Director of 
Bidvest Group Limited 
from October 2003 to 
November 26, 2012, were 
he was the Commercial 
Director of Bidserv, the 
services division. He 
remains a non-executive 
director of Bidvest South 
Africa and many of its 
subsidiaries. Lionel is 
an entrepreneur with 
extensive negotiating 
and investment skills. 
He is currently fully 
engaged in furthering the 
prospects of his company, 
Bassap Investments 
Proprietary Limited and its 
subsidiaries, where he is 
executive director.  

PHD (Economics) 
United Kingdom, MA 
(Economics) Canada



10 VUNANI LIMITED

STRATEGY AND SUSTAINABILITY

Strategy

The 2013 financial year was dedicated 
to consolidating the improvements in 
the capital structure of the business and 
strengthening the operating businesses 
to ensure that the business is able to 
deliver sustainable profitability in the years 
ahead. In particular the group was keen to 
achieve the following:

 ■ Reporting of a successive year of 
profitability;

 ■ An improvement in cash holdings;

 ■ Growth in funds under 
management and cash profits in the 
fund management business;

 ■ Growth in market share and cash 
profits in the stockbroking business;

 ■ A strategic rationalisation of the 
property business either through 
consolidation or sale;

 ■ Stabilisation of the investment portfolio 
and the addition of new investments on 
a low risk basis; and

 ■ Establishing a basis for payment of an 
inaugural dividend.

While aspects of these objectives have 
been achieved, the extent to which this 
has been done leaves some room for 
improvement, which will be the focus of 
attention in the 2014 financial year. The 
following is worth noting:

 ■ Group profitability was significantly 
aided by the fact that interest bearing 
debt was significantly reduced at 
the end of 2012 and were it not for 
settlement costs and profit shares 
incurred on the maturity of the Redefine 
Properties Limited BEE transaction, 
profitability could have been higher. 

 ■ All the individual operating businesses 
reported profits in 2013, with the 
exception of Vunani Private Clients 
Proprietary Limited (“Vunani Private 
Clients”) and Vunani Capital Zimbabwe 
(Private) Limited (“Vunani Capital 
Zimbabwe”). Segmental results indicate 
that Vunani Private Clients made a loss 
of R0.6 million but this was a post loss 
of a consolidating 51% interest in the 
business. Otherwise the business itself 
made a marginal loss for the year. 

 ■ The group generated cash flow of 
R12.7 million in 2013.

 ■ Vunani Fund Managers Proprietary 
Limited (“Vunani Fund Managers”) 
was successful in winning new 
business flows in the form of assets 

under management, which amounted 
to R3.2 billion in 2013. This was a 
significant contributor to the business 
generating profits for the first time since 
it was acquired.

 ■ The stockbroking business seems to 
have found its optimal operating model 
and structure, contributing profits of 
R7.9 million in spite of revenue growth 
being relatively flat.

 ■ Whilst the group had envisaged 
using its property asset management 
business to drive consolidation in the 
sector, non-ownership of units in the 
Vunani Property Investment Fund 
Limited made it difficult. However, 
the tabling of an offer to acquire the 
business has highlighted how much 
discounted value sits in the various 
activities and investments in the group.

A number of strategic initiatives are 
needed to ensure that the group 
pushes on in 2014 and succeeding 
years:

 ■ Group and divisional management 
need to be appropriately incentivised 
through clear and transparent incentive 
structures;

 ■ There has to be greater cooperation 
between business units around product 
and client relationship management;

 ■ The group needs to reposition its 
investment strategy around low risk 
financing structures coupled with 
co-investment with strong strategic 
partners in new areas of investment;

 ■ Given the relatively high risks 
of investing on the continent, 
management needs to be prudent 
in selecting investment destinations 
and partners when investing on the 
continent;

 ■ The group is primarily a diversified 
financial services business and future 
investments need to complement this 
platform;

 ■ The long term commitment to 
remaining listed on the JSE needs 
to be strengthened by identifying 
elements that will enhance Vunani’s 
appeal to investors; and

 ■ The commitment to a sustainable 
dividend payment culture needs to be 
addressed and implemented.

The group has made significant strides 
in this regard, the results of which will 
become evident in announcements made 

throughout the year. Group and divisional 
management are committed to making sure 
that the group starts to realise the potential 
that it demonstrated at listing; to the benefit 
of its shareholders.

Sustainability

Sustainability reporting is the practice 
of measuring, disclosing, and being 
accountable to internal and external 
stakeholders for organisational performance 
towards the goal of sustainable 
development. The information in this report 
relates to Vunani’s sustainable business 
practices during 2013 and has not been 
assured. 

Stakeholder relations
The group subscribes to the principles 
of objective, honest, balanced, relevant 
and understandable communication of 
financial and non-financial information to 
stakeholders. This is considered to be of 
such importance that the group managing 
director is involved with all stakeholder 
communication. The group acknowledges 
the role and responsibility of the various 
regulators and its relationships with them 
are maintained in a transparent and pro-
active manner. 

Training and development
The group provides training to its 
employees in a number of different 
ways that is dependent on the individual 
employee’s training needs. The group 
encourages employees to attend various 
external training courses facilitated by 
organisations governing the various 
sectors in which the group operates. 
Employees are supported through 
learnership programmes, such as obtaining 
the Chartered Financial Analyst (“CFA”) 
qualification. The group also undertakes 
in-house training facilitated by senior 
employees as a method of transferring 
knowledge and skills to junior employees. 
The Vunani Securities Training Programme 
provides on-the-job training for selected 
young black graduates. The one-year 
programme looks to hone the skills of 
young analysts under the mentorship of 
experienced and rated analysts. Similarly 
the Vunani Fund Managers Analyst Training 
Programme provides structured on-the-job 
training and mentorship for black junior 
analysts that work for the company. 
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Safety, health and environment
The group is committed to ensuring that 
employees work in a safe, healthy and 
clean environment. Our activities do not 
have an adverse effect on the environment. 
We are committed to having a positive 
carbon footprint to the environment and 
are currently focused on minimising paper 
usage. Employees are encouraged to print 
responsibly and to recycle as much as 
possible. Unutilised information technology 
equipment is donated to charity if it is in 
good working order. If not, equipment 
is disposed of through e-waste disposal 
facilities. 

The group is in the process of preparing a 
formal health and safety policy which will 
outline the responsibilities of the group and 

Human Resources
The group regards its people as its most important asset. We subscribe to and apply the 
principles of employment equity as embraced in the Employment Equity Act, its amendments 
and regulations. The group’s human resources, (excluding non-executive directors) at year end 
are represented as follows: 

31 December 2013           

  MALE FEMALE TOTAL

 Staff demographic Number % Number % Number %

White 26 45% 12 25% 38 36%
African 18 32% 19 40% 37 35%
Coloured 5 9% 12 25% 17 16%
Indian 4 7% 3 6% 7 7%
Non-South African 4 7% 2 4% 6 6%

  57 54% 48 46% 105  100%

31 December 2012            

  MALE FEMALE TOTAL

 Staff demographic Number % Number % Number %

White 19 42% 10 24% 29 34%
African 14 31% 17 41% 31 36%
Coloured 6 13% 10 24% 16 19%
Indian 2 4% 3 7% 5 6%
Non-South African  4 9% 1 2% 5 6%

  45 52%  41 48%  86  100%

employees in terms of health and safety 
requirements. It will also detail procedures 
for first aid, emergency evacuation and 
exposure to environmental health risks. The 
group in conjunction with its medical aid 
provider (Discovery Health) holds an annual 
wellness day. The purpose of this day is for 
employee members to assess their overall 
health and to increase health awareness 
amongst employees. 

Employee participation
In order to retain and attract entrepreneurs, 
the group has a philosophy of encouraging 
management and key employees in the 
group to acquire a meaningful interest in 
the group and/or underlying businesses. 
A share incentive scheme is in place. The 
participants in the scheme are qualifying 
employees.
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STRATEGY AND SUSTAINABILITY (continued)

Transformation, corporate 
social investment and 
enterprise development 

The group and all its subsidiaries subscribe 
to the principles and fundamentals of 
transformation. Notwithstanding the 
legislation that underpins transformation; 
notably the Employment Equity Act, Black 
Economic Empowerment (“BEE”) Act and 
BEE codes of good practice, as issued 
by the Department of Trade and Industry 
(“BEE codes”), management and staff 
are encouraged to embrace the spirit 
of transformation rather than the letter 
of it. We believe that this will stand the 
group in good stead as the BEE codes are 
amended and compliance requirements 
for companies are tightened. Our objective 
is that Vunani is not just perceived to be a 
good corporate citizen, but is able to be 
reflecting it in the various metrics used to 
evaluate compliance. To this end we are 
constantly evaluating how to improve our 
transformation and commitment to this 
social objective. 

Subsidiary company scorecards are 
monitored on an ongoing basis and the 
group’s executives and senior management 
are attentive to the fact that poor ratings 
can adversely impact revenues and 
profitability. Consequently, elements of the 

scorecard that can be directly impacted 
by day-to-day decisions receive particular 
attention in order to ensure that BEE factors 
are embedded into the decision making 
process. Such categories include skills 
development, preferential procurement, 
enterprise development, socio-economic 
development and employment equity 
(to the extent staff vacancies prevail). 
Governance structures such as board and 
management committees are considered 
carefully in order to meet transformation 
objectives. The fact that Vunani is a listed 
group does mean that equity ownership is 
not easy to manage. However, increasing 
effort is being made to try and improve BEE 
representation in the shareholding of the 
group.

Whilst each subsidiary in the group has 
the liberty of initiating its own Corporate 
Social Investment (“CSI”) and Enterprise 
Development programs, the group does 
coordinate group-led programmes aimed at 
upliftment of underprivileged individuals and 
communities. These focus on healthcare, 
nutrition and education. During the 2013 
year, the group spent 1.7% of profit for 
the year on CSI; almost double the 1% 

requirement per the BEE codes. From the 
2014 financial year, Vunani will be 
consolidating its CSI efforts through a 
newly established Vunani Foundation, 
which will be funded collectively from all 
group subsidiaries. The foundation will 
be governed by representatives from the 
company and independent non-executive 
representatives in order to ensure that 
the group does not fund pet projects. 
The objective is to fund high impact 
social projects where the benefits can be 
measured over a period of time as opposed 
to once-off type contributions.

Enterprise development is the one area 
where the group looks to make the 
greatest impact. We are acutely aware 
that the development of new small to 
medium enterprises is a strong catalyst 
to employment creation and to lowering 
barriers to entry into certain business 
sectors. Accordingly the group has been 
particularly keen to support emerging 
entities in the professional services sector; 
particularly in the legal and accounting 
services sector and pays retainers to some 
companies in order to strengthen their 
platforms for further growth and expansion.  
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Group risk management focuses 
specifically to:

 ■ avoid or reduce adverse threats to 
business objectives to an acceptable 
level;

 ■ provide timely information on risk 
situations and generate appropriate risk 
responses related to business strategy 
to assist with meeting business 
objectives;

 ■ reduce operational performance 
uncertainty by minimising surprises and 
associated costs and losses;

 ■ maintain a best practice group risk 
management system that is owned 
and managed at all levels of the 
organisation;

 ■ monitor and report on group and 
industry risk trends and outcomes and 
ensure appropriate reporting to and 
briefing of the board and executive 
management;

 ■ improve the allocation of capital by 
using robust risk information to assess 
overall capital needs; and

 ■ ensure that risk management forms 
an integral part of normal business 
practice and promotes a culture of risk 
awareness throughout the group. 

Risk framework

Vunani uses an enterprise risk management 
framework to assess and manage the 
risks and opportunities related to the 
achievement of its strategic and operational 
objectives. It is designed to ensure 
significant risks and related incidents 
are identified, documented, managed, 
monitored and reported on in a consistent 
and structured manner across the group.

The framework involves identifying 
particular events or circumstances that 
could impact the group’s ability to achieve 
its objectives, assessing the likelihood of 
their occurrence, the magnitude of their 
impact, compensating controls to mitigate 
the identified risk, determining a response 
and mitigation plan as well as monitoring 
progress for the residual risk. Given the 
complexity of the group’s business model, 
this approach is considered optimal 
as it enables the group to identify and 
proactively address risks and opportunities, 
while in the process, creating value for all 
the group’s stakeholders, including owners, 
employees and clients.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk philosophy 

Risk management is a central part of the 
group’s strategic management and is the 
mechanism whereby the risks associated 
with group activities are addressed through 
a structured framework and processes. The 
group’s view is that a properly managed 
risk management function will increase the 
probability of success and reduce both the 
failure potential and uncertainty in respect 
of achieving the group’s overall objectives.

Vunani is committed to identifying and 
managing risk in line with international 
best corporate governance practice. 
Accordingly, Vunani has adopted the 
principles recommended in King III, which 
co-exist with the Companies Act of 
2008 and the JSE Listing Requirements 
as a guideline for its risk philosophy. 
In the board’s view, this is appropriate 
because the Companies Act places legal 
responsibility for risk management on 
the board of directors. It also requires 
the adoption of a policy and plan for 
a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of 
risk management.

The board is responsible for the governance 
of risk and ultimately has to be satisfied with 
the effectiveness of the risk management 
process. Risk management plans and 
processes have to be presented, discussed 
and approved at audit and risk committee 
meetings; the detailed scheduling of which 
is outlined on page 31. A risk register of 
significant strategic and operational risks 
facing the group has to be discussed, as 
well as management’s actions to control 
these risks within acceptable norms.

Given the operationally and geographically 
diverse nature of the business, the Vunani 
group is exposed to a wide range of 
risks, some of which may have material 
consequences. Identifying these risks 
and developing plans to manage them 
are part of each business unit's business 
prerogative. Group management assesses 
these annually and, in terms of King III, 
the board, through its audit and risk sub-
committee, receives assurances from senior 
management regarding the effectiveness of 
the risk management process.

Internal audit provides a written assessment 
of the system of internal controls, including 
financial controls and risk management 
processes and conducts annual reviews 
to assess the adequacy of the risk 
management process. This involves:

 ■ examining adherence to group risk 
management policy;

 ■ evaluating the risk management system 
against best practice;

 ■ assessing risk management 
performance measurement, monitoring 
and reporting processes against 
available best practice;

 ■ assessing compliance with King III; and

 ■ examining current approaches to risk 
management.

Internal audit is mandated to:

 ■ form an opinion around the adequacy 
of the design of the risk management 
framework and ensure that the 
framework addresses the requirements 
of King III;

 ■ confirm that the rollout and 
implementation of the framework is in 
line with the approved implementation 
plan; and 

 ■ To meet these obligations internal audit 
has to work with underlying businesses 
and design, test and embark on a 
combined assurance review process 
that is risk-based and draws upon 
appropriate functional expertise.

Risk policy

The group’s risk profile is based on a formal 
and planned approach to risk management. 
Risk identification, management and 
reporting are embedded in business 
activities and processes. The policy applies 
to risks the group faces in executing 
its strategy, operations, reporting and 
compliance activities, and is reviewed 
annually.

The group risk management function 
supports, advises on, formulates, oversees 
and manages the risk management system 
and monitors the group’s risk profile, 
ensuring major risks are identified and 
reported at the appropriate level in the 
group. Currently this function is embedded 
in the office of the managing director, but 
will be resourced separately as the group 
matures and can afford full time resources.
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Risk assessment 

The approach to assessing and managing 
risks is based on the group’s organisational 
structure depicted on page 9, which 
highlights diverse operating businesses, 
most of which operate in a regulated 
environment where regulatory compliance 
is key. Accordingly, the risk management 
framework seeks to ensure that key 
risk-related information is available to the 
board of directors and that enables them 
to meet the responsibility to exercise their 
duty of care, skill and diligence. The board 
acknowledges that it is accountable for 
the process of risk management and the 
systems of internal control and is assisted in 
this regard by the audit and risk committee. 

Risk assessments are performed 
systematically throughout the group, with 
management focusing attention on the 
most significant risks; making informed 
risk decisions whilst being careful not to 
over control or stifle innovation. The key 
objective is to ensure capital is deployed 
effectively and that businesses are 

managed in a manner that reduces the 
potential occurrence and significance of 
negative events. The process does not 
follow a checklist approach, nor is it a 
process that is disconnected from business 
decision making, but is integrated into 
the business process in order to provide 
timely and relevant risk information to 
management. 

The risk assessment framework uses 
a two-tier approach (depicted in the 
illustration below) to ensure the full range 
of risks is considered, that the process 
is rigorous and that requisite actions are 
taken.

❚▼
Top down

■ Enterprise Wide Risk 
Assessment

▲❚
Bottom up

■ Subsidiary/Divisional risk 
assessment

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

This is underpinned by a risk management 
process whereby key divisional and 
subsidiary management, and the relevant 
compliance officers, meet periodically with 
the managing director to assess status of 
process, findings, reports on analysis and 
monitoring. This has the following benefits: 

 ■ There is a shared approach to risk 
assessment to facilitate an integrated 
assessment process;

 ■ The board and audit and risk 
committee ensure risks facing the 
organisation are identified and 
adequately addressed at both strategic 
and operational levels; and

 ■ Line management is responsible for 
managing their key business risks, but 
the group monitors progress on the 
effective response to key risks.
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Evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
controls in place, providing reasonable assurance that the 

likelihood and impact of an adverse event are brought down 
to an acceptable level

Assess residual likelihood and impact of risks

Critical success factors identifi ed

Identify key business objectives

SWOT analysis performed Highlight key business objectives

❚▼❚▼ ❚▼

❚▼

Identify events that could impact achievement of the 
organisation’s objectives

Identify events that could affect objectives

❚▼

Consider the relative importance of business 
objectives 

and align with risk appetite

Risk tolerance is the acceptable level of 
variation relative 

to the achievement of a specifi c objective

Determine risk tolerance

❚▼

❚▼

Evaluation based on the likelihood of 
occurrence and the signifi cance of their 

impact on the objectives

Assess inherent likelihood and impact of risks

Events identifi ed as potentially impeding the 
achievement of objectives are deemed to 

be risks

Evaluated on an inherent basis

❚▼ ❚▼

❚▼

Based on the defi ned risk tolerance and inherent risk 
assessment determines how to address the identifi ed risks

Evaluate the risks and determine risk responses

The risk assessment process

The diagram below is a high level depiction of the process used to evaluate enterprise wide risk. 



16 VUNANI LIMITED

The risk assessment process starts with 
the establishment of a scope and plan, 
considering objectives, responsibilities, 
timing, input and output requirements. 
Responsibilities are assigned to executives 
who can provide meaningful perspective 
on relevant risks. Once the scoping and 
planning are agreed, the risk assessment 
process commences, culminating in 
consolidating individual residual risk 
ratings into a portfolio view; identifying 

interdependencies and interconnections 
between risks, as well as the effect of risk 
responses on multiple risk categories. This 
allows management to decide on actions 
necessary to revise its risk responses or 
address design or effectiveness of controls. 
Action plans are assigned to individuals 
with the capability and authority to effect 
change, with specified milestones and 
timelines that are documented and tracked 
for completion. 

Key risks

Based on the risk process applied, the 
group has identified the following key risk 
categories; associated business objectives 
and risk descriptions.   

Key risks, management and mitigation

The group is aware that, in spite of its structured approach to risk, certain risks may go unidentified, while other risks, initially assessed as low, 
may become significant. Notwithstanding the myriad of risks that are assessed, the following risks have been identified as significant:  

The risk challenge Management and mitigation

Group subsidiaries operate in a highly competitive market, where 
product is relatively commoditised and so price and service factors 
are important considerations, which can have a significant impact on 
performance of the group and subsidiaries. 

Monitoring and tracking of progress on product design, business 
development activities, client relationship management and retention 
are an integral part of weekly management interaction. 

Analysis of critical indicators is translated into tactics and resources 
are assigned to remedy any shortcomings.

The evolution of BEE and transformation legislation and its increasing 
imperative means that minimum compliance may not be sufficient to 
secure business, particularly when providing service to state aligned 
institutions as most Vunani group companies are prone to.

Embedding transformation into business processes and decisions 
ensures that BEE and employment equity does not become a tick-
box exercise. This quality is also continuously assessed against client 
requirements and where our competitors are.

Talent and skill are critical in our business and therefore attracting 
competent, experienced and talented individuals will always have a 
bearing on whether the group stands out amongst its peers.

Recruitment and assessment procedures go beyond the conventional 
and decisions around key skills are corroborated at different levels of 
the organisation. While reward and incentive mechanisms are very 
important, the cultural fit is often more vital. Accordingly, individuals 
brought into key positions are subjected to multi-disciplinary 
recruitment process involving individuals at different levels of the 
group.

The capital structure of the group is an important determinant of the 
extent to which internal and external stakeholders value association 
and want to do business with the group. Accordingly, beyond financial 
performance, the group’s ability to meet its financial obligations and 
the stewardship of working capital needs to be assured.

Tracking the financial status of the business is a standing feature of 
monthly management reporting and analysis. 

The group’s ability to meet its obligations on both a short and long 
term basis is further analysed by the board and discussed with 
stakeholders; particularly those to which the group is significantly 
indebted, to ensure that any adverse consequences and actions are 
warded off before they become disruptive to business.

A significant portion of the group’s assets are of a financial nature, 
which means particular care needs to be taken to ensure that 
ownership of these assets is not exposed and the value not unduly 
dissipated. 

Recruiting appropriately skilled financial personnel and the operation 
of an efficient and well-structured finance department are central to 
the monitoring of assets. 

Group governance structures such as the audit and risk committee, 
internal audit and the board assess, the adequacy of the 
competencies in the group’s finance department at least annually. 
Group management monitors the efficiency and quality of information 
being regularly reported. These structures ensure that the systems 
and processes applied enable the group to identify any threats and 
apply measures to safeguard assets against loss.

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
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Group subsidiaries depend on reliable and constant availability of 
information technology and communication systems to ensure that 
product and services delivered to clients are efficient and accurate 
and that transaction processing and data retention and protection is 
thorough.

The group maintain an in-house group information technology (“IT”) 
division that manages relationships with external service providers 
and ensures client connectivity is available. 

The division is managed by the group’s head of IT, who ensures that 
the group employs cost beneficial infrastructure and that appropriate 
arrangements and facilities are in place to ensure business continuity 
in the event of disruptions and / or a disaster. 

The existence of a risk framework and on-going application of 
assessment procedures at various levels of the business is to ensure 
that the group is not surprised by events that could have been 
anticipated, which ultimately result in the loss of assets and / or 
financial loss.

A framework outlining the manner in which the group and 
subsidiaries ought to approach risk assessment, monitoring and 
mitigation is in place. 

The group assesses risk from an overall top-down basis, based 
on the risk to strategic objectives, whilst subsidiaries consider 
operation risks. These are documented in risk registers which are 
submitted to the group audit and risk committee, where risks that are 
unacceptably high are monitored for improvements in management. 

A feature of Internal Audit’s annual plan is the follow up of targeted 
improvements. The group has allocated the responsibility of ensuring 
that the risk framework and assessment process to an individual who 
monitors the process on a group wide basis.

The group and its subsidiaries operate in a highly regulated business 
environment and therefore need to meet a number of compliance 
objectives on both an institutional and corporate basis. Non-
compliance can often have significant financial penalties and could 
result in regulators withdrawing operating licenses which would be 
severely disruptive to the business.

Notwithstanding the existence of dedicated personnel to monitor 
compliance within the various group subsidiaries, the group has 
elevated the monitoring of compliance by delegating the monitoring 
of all compliance to a dedicated individual. This person has the 
responsibility of tracking regulations and / or legislation that the 
group and subsidiaries need to adhere to, monitor compliance and 
ensure that this is appropriately reported to the group audit and risk 
committee.

The group is a diversified business platform and therefore there 
is a requirement for some corporate discipline that ensures that 
that the sum of the parts is greater than the whole and that the 
various subsidiaries are constantly aligned with the groups strategic 
objectives. An inability to do this could result in a dysfunctional 
organisation that never achieves it potential.

Group management operates through an executive committee 
(“Exco”) manages a dashboard of metrics, designed to ensure 
that the group has a good feel of how individual businesses are 
performing and how the group is performing as a whole. This allows 
group management to respond to adverse developments in time 
and to support underlying businesses in achieving their performance 
objectives. 

A key feature of the group’s evolution and growth is the ability to come 
up with strategy and to execute it in a disciplined manner. Accordingly 
the structures need to be in place and applied on a consistent basis 
to avoid unnecessarily expending resources on activities that will not 
yield the desired objectives.

Strategy review is embedded into the regular interaction between 
group management and executives in the subsidiaries. Often the 
requirement is for a change in tactics rather than strategy and this is 
documented and monitored to ensure that headway is being made 
and the desired results achieved.

The investment activities are a major part of the group and therefore 
have of the group have a significant bearing on the financial progress 
that the group makes, both in terms of its market capitalisation 
but the return on capital employed. Accordingly the approach to 
making, managing and realising investments has to be structured and 
disciplined, otherwise it can result in poor returns.

The group has an investment committee which is made up of the 
chairman of the Board, a non- executive director, two executive 
directors and an independent appointee. The Investment Committee 
ensures that all existing and prospective investments are subjected 
to the necessary scrutiny to justify their inclusion on the group’s 
portfolio and the allocation of capital. More importantly the committee 
meets regularly to evaluate progress and to ensure that there is 
accountability for the investments the group makes. 

The risk challenge Management and mitigation
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LEADERSHIP STATEMENT

Vunani is pleased to report continuous 
progress in the regeneration of this financial 
services group, with group revenues 
from continuing operations up 9% to 
R110.0 million; net finance costs down from 
R47.8 million to R2.8 million and profit from 
operating activities, after finance costs, up 
to R11.7 million from R10.8 million in 2012. 

The Context

While this progress is laudable, it is 
bitter-sweet; sweet because for the first 
time since the listing of Vunani Limited, 
management have been able to go into a 
financial year in “attack” mode rather than 
defensive mode and yet bitter because 
domestic trading conditions continue to 
be tight because of the convergence of 
different factors. Having paid off virtually 
all its legacy debt, the group has been 
excited about the prospect of rebuilding 
the business on the back of the business 
platform that has held together through 
some turbulent times. Released from 
the restraints of engaging with our 
creditor institutions on a prolonged 
basis, management can finally drive the 
growth of current business. However, the 
backdrop to this has been unfavourable 
global macroeconomic events; particularly 
the pending end to quantitative easing in 
the USA, which has pressured emerging 
markets like South Africa, whose currency 
is often a proxy for sentiment towards 
these markets. 

Accordingly, the prevailing sentiment is 
that trading conditions are going to be 
tough and for a while. Domestic growth will 
remain disappointingly low and seems 
destined to disappoint on already low 
targets. Low commodity demand in 
developed markets is persisting, with 
softer commodity prices (platinum, copper, 
coal) remaining stagnant over the last 
year and in some cases falling (in the case 
of gold) on the back of signs of respite 
in the Chinese and US economies and 
virtually no growth in Europe, other than 
Germany. Unfortunately the economies of 
our other strategic partners, namely India 
and Brazil are also going through their own 
challenges. The relatively high oil price 
appears destined to stay above $105 a 
barrel which, coupled with the Rand trading 
consistently above 10:1 to the US Dollar, 
is starting to threaten inflation, which is 
already at the upper limit of SARB’s target 
inflation band. The budget deficits and 
balance of payments situation is becoming 
critical and will not reverse shortly, rendering 
the hope of recovery in the currency a 
tough prospect.

These challenges are heightened by a few 
other unique domestic realities, namely:

 ■ It would appear that the socio-
political problems, which culminated 
in the Marikana tragedy, are still 
persisting. Wage demands from 
unions in the mining sector, coupled 
with tensions amongst rival unions, 
seem set to create further obstacles to 
recovery in a besieged and key sector 
like the platinum industry.

 ■ The power situation has not been 
dealt with resolutely, meaning power 
availability and disruptions could be a 
feature over the next couple of months 
as Eskom struggles to bring new 
capacity on line. This is sub-optimal 
given the fact that the manufacturing 
sector is struggling to gain traction in 
a weak domestic and global economy 
and the resources sector is already 
battling significant headwinds.

 ■ Labour threats in the mining sector 
have impacted business confidence 
and sullied business mood, which has 
unfortunately crept into the financial 
markets, further placing pressure on 
the currency. A feature of the rand 
is that it is significantly impacted by 
portfolio flows from foreign investors 
investing in domestic equities and 
bonds and a lack of confidence in the 
South African economy does not augur 
well for our capital markets. 

 ■ The average South African consumer 
is still over extended; hurt by the 
persistent extension of unsecured 
credit, which is now starting to 
take its toll on both borrowers and 
lenders alike. 

Performance

It is therefore commendable that Vunani 
has been able to return a profit for the 
second successive year under these 
conditions; a sign that it is truly over its past 
travails. There are a number of factors that 
have contributed to this. 

The successful transformation of the fund 
management business from a loss making 
quantitative, low-margin fund manager to 
a fundamental research driven balanced 
fund manager, offering single and multi 
asset class products, has found traction 
in the retirement fund market. Net inflows 
in 2013 were R3.2 billion and fee margins 
have increased exponentially from the low 
levels that are typical of indexation related 
products. The team is more balanced and 
overheads are starting to stabilise at optimal 

levels, meaning further inflows should have 
a significant impact on the bottom line.

Notwithstanding the tough conditions 
in our domestic capital markets, the 
stockbroking business was able to make 
a good contribution to group profitability, 
suggesting that it has found its niche in the 
stockbroking game. There appears to be 
an appreciation by clients for the tenacity 
and commitment, which management 
in Vunani’s stockbroking business has 
steadfastly built. This is reflected in 
consistent top rankings in industry awards 
for both the fixed interest and equity teams, 
suggesting that the Vunani brand has 
found traction with important retirement 
fund managers.

After years of making losses, management 
has stabilised the corporate finance 
business of the group. This is a business 
that typically does better in more buoyant 
economic conditions. However, the 
pedestrian growth in the domestic economy 
and the fact that recent government 
infrastructure spend has focused on 
asset acquisition (Eskom Holdings SOC 
Limited, South African Airways SOC 
Limited, Transnet SOC Limited) has limited 
opportunities. 

When business conditions are tough, 
pricing for advisory services is always a 
challenge and small advisory businesses 
become price takers. It hasn’t been different 
for Vunani’s corporate finance business 
and apart from significantly rationalising the 
overhead base, the key has been to steer 
away from highly competitive low margin 
business and focus on niche opportunities 
closer to the coverage areas of the research 
offerings of the stockbroking business. 

While revenues have been relatively lower 
than previous years the business is cash 
positive and is poised to improve as market 
conditions change.

The restructuring of the group’s property 
activities has probably been the one area 
where the most significant activity has taken 
place. Given the trading environment, the 
group’s appetite for property development 
risk has waned somewhat and 2013 has 
been a year spent rationalising the group’s 
property development portfolio. The 
result has been the realisation of all the 
investment property positions, the only 
remaining investment being the part 
holding of 33 units in the successful 
396 unit Paddocks development outside 
Dainfern, in Fourways Johannesburg. The 
group’s association with the listed property 
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sector was significantly curtailed when 
the remaining units in the Vunani Property 
Investment Fund Limited were sold in 
2012. This left the group’s property asset 
management business highly exposed 
in a very active consolidating market, 
resulting in a review of the strategy for this 
sector. This culminated in a transaction 
that has seen the group’s property asset 
management business being sold to Texton 
Property Investments Proprietary Limited 
for R117 million. The transaction was 
successfully concluded on 28 February 
2014, leaving the group to reconsider other 
ways in which it will engage the property 
sector going forward.

Vunani now has a decent ungeared and 
unencumbered investment portfolio. While 
a portion of this investment portfolio is in 
shares listed on the JSE Limited, there is 
a reasonable exposure to a portfolio of 
unlisted investments. These investments 
have started to come into their own; 
performing relatively well and contributing to 
group cash flow through dividends. There 
is little doubt about management’s ability 
to find value accretive transactions and this 
has been borne out by recent transactions, 
which have unlocked good cash returns 
for the group. The careful rationalisation of 
the property related positions are a case in 
point, but this can be extended into other 
investment positions where some dexterity 
has been applied to unlock unforeseen 
value. 

Vunani continues to be exposed to multiple 
sectors through its investments such as 
coal mining, civils, steel, engineering and 
engineering project management and rail 
logistics and locomotive manufacturing, in 
a low risk manner. These positions have 
and will continue to offer good optionality in 
the share.

However there are some challenges which 
have needed some decisive resolution.

The expansion into Zimbabwe has not 
proceeded as expected. The economic 
stability provided by dollarization of 
the economy and the existence of a 
government of national unity has not 
prevailed post the 2013 elections won by 
ZANU PF. As a result, business activity 
has been severely curtailed and there is 
a shortage of capital in the market. This 
has been a significant blow to Vunani’s 
aspirations to build an investment banking 
business and a decision was made to 
downsize our platform and reduce our 
exposure to the market to the investments 
made over the last two years. 

The notable of these is Purpose 
Vunani Asset Management (Private) Limited, 
an emerging fund management business 
that had its origins in the management 
of investment assets for high net worth 
individuals. Vunani recently acquired a 
controlling interest in this business and 
has been slowly transforming it to enable 
it to manage retirement fund money. The 
business has good management and is 
cash flow positive.

The group was able to use its position 
in the Zimbabwean market to co-
invest alongside some South African 
businesses, with which it has business and 
investment linkages. Accordingly, Vunani 
has minority interests in Zimbabwean 
businesses associated with groups such 
as BSi Steel Limited, Esor Limited, and 
WorleyParsonsTWP. These exposures 
will ensure that the group remains poised 
to take advantage of any turnaround in 
the economy of this very well resourced 
country.

Vunani acquired Kagiso Trust Investments’ 
securities trading business in 2010. One 
of the reasons for this was the acquisition 
of the underlying retail business, Kagiso 
Online Trading Proprietary Limited. This 
business was reversed into Vunani Private 
Clients, a company with interests in private 
client stockbroking offerings, in which the 
group held a significant minority interest 
at that time. Following a stabilisation of 
the business, the group took a controlling 
interest in the 2nd quarter of 2013. The 
business made a negligible loss in the year 
2013 but has shown signs of being capable 
of augmenting the financial service platform 
of the group. 

As a group we believe that, notwithstanding 
an over indebted consumer base, savings 
will become an important priority for a 
growing middle class. Many of these 
individuals have not really been exposed 
to self-investment products and do not 
have the training and personal financial 
knowledge to support this activity. This 
is where Vunani Private Clients has 
been excelling and the future looks very 
promising.

Prospects and the future

The board believes that the prospects for 
the group are compelling. The immediate 
challenge will be investors’ understanding 
of how the group should be analysed. It 
is quite evident from the recent trading 

price that this is a group that is significantly 
misunderstood. Notwithstanding the 
provision of significant information around 
value unlocking and debt redemption that 
the group has successfully negotiated, the 
share price has not responded, in some 
cases moving contra to the information 
provided. This could be due to the relatively 
low liquidity of the share and partly to 
the fact that institutional investor interest 
has waned in light of the relative size of 
the group now as compared to when it 
listed in November 2007. This will remain 
management’s biggest challenge going into 
the future. It is clear that investors need to 
see a significantly bigger group in terms of 
market capitalisation, profitability and cash 
flow generation and highlights the nature 
of activity management will need to be 
preoccupied with.

However it would be remiss not to highlight 
the strength of this group, namely:

 ■ It is an intrinsic value creator rather 
than acquirer;

 ■ It generally looks for transactions “off 
the beaten track” compared to most 
businesses of its ilk and will therefore 
always find very interesting and value 
accretive opportunities;

 ■ It is committed to financial services 
and there is no comparable listed 
empowered business of its kind in the 
market;

 ■ It is run by professionals who have long 
term, deep and proven experience in 
financial markets, who have chosen to 
be transparent about what they do and 
how they do it;

 ■ Its businesses operate in highly 
regulated markets and therefore need 
to comply with very high business 
and operating standards; 

 ■ Top management have been together 
for over 15 years and in that time 
successfully operated in tough 
economic conditions and traversed 
very difficult transactional terrain;

 ■ The business is stable and profitable; 
and 

 ■ It is debt-light.

The board is particularly pleased with the 
way management has sought to adapt 
to trading conditions in order to continue 
to make progress. Recent engagements 
with potential partners on the continent, 
particularly the recent strategic tie up with 
investment banking group BGL Plc in 
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Nigeria, suggest that management’s outlook 
is far into the future and the appetite for 
growth is still very strong. The desire to 
continue to engage with the financial 
services sector, while acknowledging its 
changing dynamics, assures us that this is 
a group that will leave a positive footprint 
on the South African economy. The Vunani 
board of directors has been anxious to 
ensure that this energy does not dissipate. 
The remuneration committee has worked 
hard to implement an executive short 
term incentive scheme that rewards 
management strongly whenever value is 
created, but more importantly when it is 
realised for the benefit of all shareholders.

Board and governance 
developments

One of the unfortunate developments in 
any corporate is when it has to part with 
individuals who have been integrally part of 
its evolution. Evelyn Chimombe-Munyoro 
resigned as an executive director of the 
group in March 2014. She originally joined 
the board as a non-executive director 
in July 2005 and, because of her legal 
acumen, was subsequently asked to 
join the group as an executive, where 
she acquitted herself very professionally 
and was a significant asset to the group 
during its financial restructuring in 
2009/2010. Evelyn leaves with the board’s 
and management’s gratitude for all her 
years of service and best wishes for her 
family and future endeavours.

The chairman, Willy Ross, has also decided 
that, with the group having successfully 
resolved its legacy issues and having 
returned to profitability, the release of the 
2013 results will be his last and that he 
would resign from the board on 21 May 
2014. Willy joined the board in January 
2007, before the group listed on the 
JSE. He became acting chairman soon 
thereafter upon the resignation of then 
chairman, Chris Nissen. However, the 
manner with which he led the board and 
engagement with stakeholders around 
the restructuring of the group’s balance 
sheet led to the board unanimously voting 
him as permanent chairman, a role he has 

conducted with aplomb. Willy has brought 
a strong business and tactical financial 
acumen to the group through very trying 
times and has earned the respect of the 
many institutions that the group engaged 
with over the last couple of years that he 
has been on the board. Willy leaves Vunani 
in a very sound position and both the board 
and management would like to convey their 
heartfelt appreciation for his unwavering 
support and leadership. We wish Willy all 
the best in his retirement. 

The board has been very fortunate to 
attract two high calibre individuals during 
the 2013 year. 

Dr Xolile Guma joined the board as a 
non-executive director on 1 July 
2013. Xolile was a senior executive of the 
South African Reserve Bank for many 
years, culminating in him being appointed 
for successive terms as a Deputy Governor 
of the bank. Vunani is particularly pleased 
to have enticed an individual of his calibre 
to join the board and we hope his time 
spent engaging with the group will be a 
memorable and fulfilling one.

Lionel Jacobs joined the board following his 
recent retirement as an executive director 
of the Bidvest Group Limited (“Bidvest”) 
and some of its subsidiaries. While he 
retains some involvement with Bidvest, 
Lionel is a serial entrepreneur and 
a significant shareholder in Bassap 
Investments Proprietary Limited; an 
investment holding company and one of the 
empowerment shareholders in the Dinatla 
consortium, Bidvest’s empowerment 
shareholder. Management and the board 
are pleased to have been able to convince 
Lionel to join the board and look forward to 
interacting with him over the next few years.

The group generally has very low 
turnover of staff, particularly of senior 
executives. However, the recent 
restructuring of our property initiatives 
has led to the departure of certain senior 
group executives. Peter Mackenzie has 
been the managing director of Vunani 
Properties Proprietary Limited for ten years 
and, following the conclusion of all our 

development activities, has opted to take 
some time out and try his hand at other 
business activities. The board would like 
to thank Peter for the sterling contribution 
made over the years and to wish him well 
in his future endeavours. Management 
has an undertaking from Peter that they will 
continue to work together when appealing 
transactions present themselves. 

Similarly Rob Kane has been the managing 
director of Vunani Property Asset 
Management Proprietary Limited (“VPAM”) 
and accordingly the managing director of 
Vunani Property Investment Fund Limited’s 
(“VPIF”), main client. Following the sale 
of VPAM business to Texton, in which 
Rob and financial director Marelise de 
Lange will be shareholders, the team has 
moved to join that entity. Rob has done 
a commendable job building VPIF into a 
valued property fund and we wish him, 
Marelise and the rest of the team all the 
best in their new venture.

Dividends

The board is particularly pleased that the 
group has been able to follow through on 
the long held desire to reward shareholders 
through a dividend payment culture. The 
inaugural ordinary dividend of 5 cents per 
share and special dividend of 25 cents per 
share declared by the board on 24 March 
2014 and paid on the 22 April 2014 
are enormously satisfying. The board 
deliberated hard on an appropriate level 
to set the dividend and the inaugural 
dividend reflects our confidence that the 
performance over the last two years is 
sustainable. It’s our sincere hope that this 
will be a trend that Vunani will become 
synonymous for.

The board would like to thank management 
and staff for the hard work and continued 
commitment to the group and to wish them 
well as they continue to try and leave a 
great legacy.

EG Dube LI Jacobs
Chief Executive Officer Chairman

21 May 2014   21 May 2014



VUNANI LIMITED22

Let us not only remember Mandela as 
a kindly white-haired grandfather but 
also remember the complexity of all of 
who he was over the arc of his life. As a 
great Statesman, a revolutionary and a 
pragmatist.

What a privilege and honour to 
have been alive during your lifetime, 
to witness your unique love and 
compassion for all mankind and this 
country. To be a part of your fi ght 
for equality and dignity and to bear 
testimony to the outcome of all your 
sacrifi ces – a free nation. Thank you 
Tata, for my freedom, your long walk 
is over but your legacy and values are 
engrained in my heart, forever.

There is no greater service to people 
than a leader that can follow through 
on principles that the people believe in. 
Salute to uTat’ uMandela, the leadership 
of the struggle and all our people that 
sacrifi ced it all to ensure we can live in 
the free South Africa of today. 

Idinga lakho ulifezile emhlabeni, icekwa 
lilele kuthi siyephambili. Lala ngoxolo 
Madib’ omde, olwakho ugqatso 
ulufezile.

Tata, your life’s work was an inspiration 
to the world and to South Africans from 
all walks of life. May we never forget 
your sage words as black business 
people: “There is no passion to be 
found playing small – in settling for a life 
that is less than the one you are capable 
of living.” Lala ngoxolo Ngqolomsila!

Tribute to Mandela 

You have always been a great 
inspiration, helped us to unite as a 
nation. We are thankful for what you 
have done for us, all the hard work and 
dedication you’ve put in to make South 
Africa what it is today.

Lala ngoxolo Dlomo...Lala ngoxolo Yem 
yem. Lala ngoxolo Vela bembetsele...
ugqatso ulufezille, phumla Madiba 
omhle...uxelele oMahlangu, Sisulu, 
Tambo ukuba isizwe siyabulela...
ndlela ntle!

My 27 years of life and beyond, living 
in a free society fi lled with infi nite 
opportunities, are the fruits of the 
27 years’ seeds you sowed in prison. 
And for that, my generation will be 
eternally grateful. We salute you. 
Rest well Tata Madiba.

“Salig is die vredemakers” sê die Groot 
Boek. Ons onthou jou as iemand wat 
gekies het om die pad van vrede te 
stap Madiba...

Your life was defi ned to touch the lives 
of all mankind. The legacy that you leave 
behind will remain in our hearts and 
minds. May God be with you always! 
RIP!

We have made our pronouncements 
and are thankful for what Dr Nelson 
Mandela has done for us. We must 
pledge and honour his legacy of 
equality, integrity, trust, freedom, 
accountability, hope and inspiration.

We have made progress since 1994 and 
many of us are hard at work applying 
his virtues. 

Let his memories give us all renewed 
energy for the road ahead and let us all 
believe that his vision for South Africa 
will eventually come to fruition!

Forgive, give and stay true to the world’s 
greatest human legacy.

Kind regards

FOR TO BE FREE IS NOT 
MERELY TO CAST OFF ONE’S 
CHAINS, BUT TO LIVE IN A WAY 
THAT RESPECTS AND ENHANCES 
THE FREEDOM OF OTHERS.

NELSON MANDELA
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BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND 
OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW
Asset management 

With the group’s disposal of its associate 
investment in Integrated Managed 
Investments Proprietary Limited in early 
2013, the asset management segment is 
now underpinned by the group’s investment 
in Vunani Fund Managers Proprietary 
Limited (“Vunani Fund Managers”). Vunani 
Fund Managers provides services to 
institutional as well as retail clients and its 
product offering spans the following three 
broad categories:

 ■ Single Asset Class – Core Equity, 
Bonds, Inflation-linked Bonds and 
Property;

 ■ Multi-asset Class – Absolute Return 
(CPI+ range) and Alternate Return 
(capital protection); and

 ■ Smart beta – Fundamental Indexation, 
Market Cap Indexation and enhanced 
indexation.

Vunani Fund Managers has established 
itself as a formidable team, which continues 
to attract some of the industry’s top 
calibre names. Vunani Fund Managers has 
expanded its assets under management by 
R3.2 billion during the 2013 financial year 
and at 31 December 2013 managed assets 
of R14.6 billion on behalf of retirement 
funds and other institutions. 

The segment reflected a profit to December 
2013 of R1.0 million despite increases in 
staff costs, which were incurred to further 
strengthen the investment team. While the 
profit reduced slightly, revenue increased by 
47% to R36.8 million (2012: R25.0 million). 
The team remains focused and energised 
for the upcoming financial year.

Advisory services

Vunani is a trusted advisor and financier to 
clients in South Africa and increasingly to 
clients throughout the African continent. 
These clients include leading public sector 
entities, corporations, entrepreneurs, 
municipalities and financial sponsors.

The objective of the advisory services 
division is to build long-standing and 
prosperous client relationships while 
delivering advice and capabilities across 
a full range of corporate finance and 
investment securities products. This is 
accomplished by delivering thoughtful 
strategic advice and superior client-friendly 
execution. The sustainability of the business 

depends on the value proposition. The use 
of entrepreneurial advantage supports client 
relationships and recognises that success is 
driven by being nimble and innovative.

Advisory services are provided through 
a division of Vunani Capital Proprietary 
Limited (“Vunani Capital”) in South Africa 
and Vunani Capital Zimbabwe Private 
Limited (“Vunani Capital Zimbabwe”).

The advisory services segment reflects 
the challenging conditions that have been 
prevalent in the market during the 2013 
year both in South Africa and Zimbabwe.

South Africa
The South African advisory segment 
made a profit of R 0.6 million in the 2013 
year compared to a loss of R6.3 million in 
2012, which is a positive result taking into 
consideration the trying environment.

Zimbabwe
The loss in the Zimbabwean advisory 
segment was R4.7 million for the year 
ended 31 December 2013. Losses 
attributable to Vunani Capital Zimbabwe 
since inception have been consolidated into 
this segment in the current financial year 
as a result of the adoption of new financial 
reporting standards effective from 1 January 
2013. While costs have been significantly 
reduced, advisory services will continue to 
be offered in Zimbabwe on a much smaller 
scale, alongside a focus on investment 
opportunities in the country.

Investment holdings

Vunani has a broad investment mandate 
to acquire equity stakes in both listed and 
unlisted companies, principally as an active 
Black Economic Empowerment (“BEE”) 
partner.

Vunani has extensive experience in BEE 
investments, and has played a strategic 
and active role in assisting investee 
companies to expand and grow their 
operations. Vunani is represented on the 
board of directors of its investee companies 
to provide strategic input.

As an investor, Vunani is in an unique 
position to offer a range of skills and 
services to investee companies including 
property development, stockbroking 
and economic analysis, debt structuring, 
mergers and acquisitions and related 
advisory services, capital raising (both 
equity and debt), and offers strong 

relationships with both the public and 
private sectors.

Vunani is able to structure BEE transactions 
to ensure sustainable value add. Thus, 
Vunani works closely with senior executives 
at investee companies to ensure the 
strategic objectives of the company and its 
BEE partners are aligned with those of the 
business.

The resolution of the legacy debt issues 
at the end of 2012 has left the group with 
a number of unencumbered investments. 
While the group continues to look for 
investment opportunities, the strategy is 
focused on investing alongside well-
capitalised strategic partners and the use 
of structured funding mechanisms, to lower 
risk and exposure to the group balance 
sheet. 

The group’s investment initiatives in 
Zimbabwe gained momentum during 
the 2013 year; the principles highlighted 
above being the prevalent way of doing 
business. During the year, Vunani made 
a 45% investment into a Zimbabwean 
asset management business which has 
been renamed Purpose Vunani Asset 
Management (Private) Limited (“Purpose 
Vunani”). Vunani intends using the 
intellectual capital and product set in its 
domestic South African business to offer a 
strong value proposition to pension funds in 
Zimbabwe.

The segment has no revenue as all 
inflows are classified separately as either 
investment revenue or interest received 
from investments. The segment result 
improved to a net profit of R25.1 million in 
2013 from R3.3 million in 2012, mainly as a 
result of fair value adjustments. 

Institutional securities broking

This segment includes the institutional 
equity, derivative, capital and money 
market businesses operated through two 
subsidiaries, namely Vunani Securities 
Proprietary Limited (“Vunani Securities”) and 
Vunani Capital Markets Proprietary Limited 
(“Vunani Capital Markets”).

Vunani Securities is a registered financial 
services provider, full service stockbroker 
and member of the JSE. The company has 
impeccable BEE credentials and actively 
contributes to skills development via the 
Vunani Securities Training Academy. Vunani 
Securities strives to become the foremost 
independent South African stockbroker, 



ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS
SHAREHOLDER 
INFORMATION

25

REPORTS TO 
STAKEHOLDERS

VUNANI LIMITED Integrated Annual Report 2013

25

VUNANI AT 
A GLANCE

focusing on domestic stocks and boasts 
a particularly broad covering in the mid-
cap segment of the market. Its research 
analysts and consultants offer clients top-
down analysis, supplemented by company 
specific bottom-up research on about 90 
listed companies. The product offerings of 
analysts to institutional clients include daily, 
weekly and monthly reports and frequent 
road-show presentations. 

The front-end service to clients is handled 
from its Sandton offices by a dedicated 
team of dealers and sales traders, who 
between them, have more than 163 years 
of trading experience. It also offers trading 
in stocks listed on other African exchanges 
via trading agreements with selected 
stockbrokers in selected African countries.

Products Traded:
 ■ Equity Trading

 ■ Index Futures

 ■ Single Stock Futures

 ■ Yield-X (Currency and Interest Rate 
Futures)

 ■ Global Futures (Stocks and 
Commodities)

 ■ Equity Options

 ■ OTC

 ■ OTC Options

Key challenges faced by institutional 
securities brokers include volatile markets 
and reduced margins resulting from 
charging clients competitive market rates, 
but while still being subjected to increased 
trading costs.

Vunani Securities ranked 27th out of 60 
brokers (per the JSE brokers monthly 
rankings statistics) based on volume and 
value traded at the end of December 2013.

The fixed interest and money market trading 
operations have been integrated into 
Vunani Capital Markets, which provides a 
trading platform for money market and fixed 
interest instruments on behalf of institutional 
and corporate clients, complementing the 
Vunani Securities equity trading capabilities. 
During the year, the Vunani Capital Markets 
team won second place in the Spire 
Awards in the categories Best Agency 
Broker - Cash Bonds and Best Bonds 
Agency House, despite only having joined 
Vunani in April 2013. 

The segment’s results reflect a profit of R7.9 
million (2012: loss of R1.5 million) despite 
the volatility within the markets in the 2013 

year. The group is confident that the cost 
base is stable and that this business is 
poised to contribute significantly to the 
group’s future profitability.

Private wealth and investments

The group’s private client offering is 
accessible through Vunani Private Clients. 
Vunani Private Clients offers a trading 
platform to individuals wanting to trade their 
own portfolios, derivatives and hedging 
instruments. It also manages discretionary 
portfolios on behalf of some private clients.

The wide range of products on offer 
includes equities, geared derivatives (like 
Contracts for differences and Single Stock 
Futures) and money market accounts. 
In addition, it has a range of absolute, 
balanced and directional funds. It is also 
active in both the local and international 
sphere with a range of offshore trading and 
investment products. 

Vunani Private Clients has a formidable 
research team with a superior track record 
that provides in-depth market research and 
stock recommendations to clients. 

During the current year, the group increased 
its investment in Vunani Private Clients from 
40% to 51%. The segment’s results reflect 
a loss of R0.6 million for the year. This is 
the first year that the results have been 
consolidated, as in 2012 the company was 
accounted for as an associate. 

Property developments and 
investments

The group’s property development and 
investment initiatives have historically been 
conducted through Vunani Properties 
Proprietary Limited (“Vunani Properties”). 
Developments consist of both greenfield 
property developments as well as the 
refurbishment of existing buildings. These 
developments include the commercial, 
industrial, retail and residential sectors of 
the market. The increased demand for 
property across all sectors of the market 
in the recent past has seen growth in the 
property development sector, and Vunani 
Properties has developed R1.2 billion worth 
of property either on its own or in joint 
ventures with partners.

All developments that were in progress at 
the end of 2012 were completed during 
the 2013 year, with no new developments 
currently planned. The Houghton 
development was fully sold out, while the 

Dainfern development has 33 units that 
have been retained in stock. These units 
will be retained by the company for rental 
purposes and are currently fully let. 

The proposed sale of the company’s 
investment in a piece of land at Blair 
Athol has also been accepted and will 
become effective during 2014 and hence 
has been disclosed as non-current 
assets and liabilities held for sale. This 
is the last remaining piece of investment 
property following the disposal of the 
group’s interest in Greenstone Hill Office 
Park Proprietary Limited and Lexshell 
638 Investments Proprietary Limited earlier 
during the year.

The segment reflected a profit of R1 million 
for the year as compared to R21.0 million 
in 2012 following the completion of the 
development projects and the anticipated 
sale of the last remaining investment 
property.

Property asset management

Vunani Property Asset Management is 
a wholly owned subsidiary of Vunani 
Properties and is a property asset 
management company. VPAM managed 
VPIF in terms of a management contract 
and during the 2013 year, negotiations were 
entered into for the sale of VPAM’s business 
to Texton Property Investments Proprietary 
Limited for a consideration of R117 million. 

The agreement for the sale of the business 
of VPAM was concluded in November 
2013 and all the conditions were met 
on 27 February 2014. R102 million 
of the proceeds were received on 
28 February 2014 and the settlement of the 
balance of R15 million has been deferred to 
28 February 2015 in accordance with the 
agreement. The activities of this segment 
have been classified as a discontinued 
operation.

While these transactions conclude a 
laudable era in property investment activity 
for the group, the group has already 
embarked on securing transactions which 
will usher the next phase, which are 
hoped to be even more lucrative. 

Group 

The group segment comprises the revenues 
and expenses related to managing the 
corporate affairs of the group. Revenues 
are generated from services provided 
by directors to clients and opportunistic 
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transactions, which may involve arbitrage 
opportunities and/or result in facilitation fees 
being earned.   

Costs within the segment include

 ■ Fees for non-executive directors; 

 ■ Salaries of the executive directors;

 ■ Costs of the support divisions in the 
group such as information technology 
support services and group finance; 
and

 ■ Professional fees associated with the 
management of group investments 
and affairs where these cannot be 
attributed to a specific segment.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND 
OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW (continued)

The segment increased its loss from 
R8.3 million for 2012 to R23.7 million for 
2013. Costs have been higher than usual 
as agreed mechanisms for incentivising 
executive directors have kicked in. These 
are strongly biased towards the unlocking 
of value in underlying investments and 
the generation of cash for the group 
and are described in more detail in the 
Remuneration Report on page 32.  
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

The board of directors endorses the Code 
of Corporate Practices and Conduct as 
contained and recommended in the King 
Report on Corporate Governance in South 
Africa (“King III”), the Companies Act, 71 
of 2008 (“Companies Act”), and the JSE’s 
Listing Requirements as these apply to 
AltX-listed companies. 

The board strives to ensure that the 
interests of all our stakeholders are properly 
protected and adherence to the principles 
of good corporate governance advocated 
by King III remains a group commitment. 
It is the intention of all directors that the 
principles of integrity and the highest 
ethical standards are upheld by all who 
serve the group and its stakeholders. 
The board is dedicated to ensuring that 
Vunani achieves the highest standards 
of corporate governance. The board is 
committed to governance processes based 
on integrity, transparency, independence 
and accountability and recognises that 
this is a developing process that serves all 
stakeholders alike.

During the year, the board continued 
the process of improving compliance 
with the recommendations as set out in 
King III and, has complied with the JSE 
Listing Requirements, except in relation 
to the appointment of a full time company 
secretary on an arm’s-length basis. Please 
refer to page 36 for additional information. 

In line with King III, the directors will 
continue to state the extent to which 
the company applies good corporate 
governance principles to create and sustain 
value for stakeholders over the short, 
medium and long term and to explain any 
instances of non-compliance. Please refer 
to pages 35 and 36 for a detailed review of 
King III as it applies to the group.

Board of directors

The board composition reflects people with 
diverse skills, knowledge and experience. 
Details of the group’s directors are provided 
on pages 10 and 11 of this integrated 
report. The board met four times during 
the past year. The attendance at these 
meetings is set out in the table on page 31. 
The executive directors meet more regularly 
to ensure there is effective and meaningful 
management and control exercised over 
the affairs of the group.

Vunani’s Memorandum of Incorporation 
(“MOI”) requires one-third of the directors 
of the company to retire by rotation 

and to offer themselves for re-election 
by shareholders at the annual general 
meeting, with the exception of the chief 
executive officer and managing director. 
In accordance with the company’s MOI, 
A Judin and M Anderson retire by rotation 
at the company’s forthcoming annual 
general meeting. The re-election of directors 
will be dealt with via individual resolutions.

King III recommends that the majority of 
the non-executive directors be independent 
and, accordingly, all the Vunani non-
executive directors are independent in 
terms of both the King III definition and 
the JSE Listing Requirements. There are 
no service contracts for non-executive 
directors.

The non-executive directors do not 
participate in the share incentive scheme 
and none of them have served for a period 
longer than seven years. The board will 
continue to measure their independence, 
in line with policy. It was confirmed that the 
independent non-executive directors:

 ■ were not representatives of any 
shareholder with the ability to control 
or materially influence management or 
the board;

 ■ were not employed by the group in 
any executive capacity in the last three 
financial years;

 ■ were not members of the immediate 
family or of an individual who is, or has 
been in any of the past three financial 
years, employed by the group in an 
executive capacity;

 ■ were not professional advisors to the 
group, other than in the capacity as 
a director; 

 ■ were not suppliers to the group, or to 
clients of the group;

 ■ did not have material contractual 
relationships with the group; and 

 ■ did not have a business or other 
relationship which could be seen to 
materially interfere with their capacity 
to act in an independent manner.

The executive directors are involved 
in the day-to-day management of the 
operations of the group and have service 
contracts with the group terminable upon 
one month’s written notice. No executive 
director has a fixed term contract.

The company had five executive directors 
during the 2013 year. The executive 

directors are individually mandated and held 
accountable for, inter alia:

 ■ the implementation of strategies and 
key policies determined by the board;

 ■ managing and monitoring the business 
and affairs of the group in accordance 
with approved business plans and 
budgets;

 ■ prioritising the allocation of capital 
and other resources; and

 ■ establishing the best managerial and 
operational practices.

On 1 March 2014, E Chimombe-Munyoro 
resigned from her position as an executive 
director of the group. WC Ross also 
resigned as chairman and as a non-
executive director on 21 May 2014. Dr XP 
Guma was appointed as a non-executive 
director on 1 July 2013. LI Jacobs was 
appointed as a non-executive director on 
14 April 2014 and as chairman on 21 May 
2014.

Board Charter
The composition, scope of authority, 
responsibility and function of the board 
is contained in a formal charter, which is 
reviewed by the board on a regular basis.

The main purpose of the board charter is 
to regulate the parameters within which 
the board operates and to ensure the 
application of principles of good corporate 
governance. The charter requires the board 
to represent and promote the legitimate 
interests of the group and its stakeholders 
in a manner that is both ethical and 
sustainable.

The charter states that directors are 
required to:

 ■ exercise effective leadership;

 ■ exercise integrity and judgement;

 ■ act fairly;

 ■ be accountable;

 ■ take responsibility; and

 ■ embrace transparency and ethical 
business conduct.

The board charter governs the level of 
authority and responsibilities of the board to 
ensure a balance of power is maintained.

All executive directors are shareholders 
in the company. The directors’ interests 
are disclosed in the directors’ report and 
the analysis representation on pages 121 
and 122.



28 VUNANI LIMITED

The board’s key roles and responsibilities 
are, inter alia, to:

 ■ promote the interests of stakeholders;

 ■ formulate and approve strategy;

 ■ take into account corporate 
governance, risk management and 
internal control policies and structures;

 ■ retain effective control; and

 ■ be ultimately accountable and take 
responsibility for the performance 
and affairs of the company.

Directors’ induction and training
A JSE AltX induction programme is in place 
and it is mandatory for all new directors to 
attend this course. The cost of attending 
appropriate external training courses is paid 
by the company. As the JSE AltX induction 
training covers various topics broadly, 
group specific induction material has been 
compiled and distributed to all directors 
appointed in the 2013 year. 

Board meetings
The board is cognisant of the fact that 
careful preparation of the agenda and 
supporting papers enhances board 
productivity, and strengthens its strategic 
and supervisory role. In accordance with 
this, the agenda and supporting papers 
for board meetings are distributed to 
all directors ahead of each meeting. 
Explanations and motivations for items of 
business requiring decisions are provided 
in the meeting by the appropriate executive 
director. Discussions at board meetings are 
open and constructive, free of domination, 
and consensus is sought on items requiring 
decisions and emerging issues that 
could affect the business are discussed. 
No one director has unfettered powers 
of decision-making. When necessary, 
decisions are also made by directors 
between meetings by written resolution 
as provided for in the company’s MOI and 
the Companies Act. When using written 
resolutions outside of meetings, directors 
receive complete background information 
and evaluations as would normally have 
been made available at a board meeting. 
These resolutions are noted at the next 
formal board meeting. Directors are entitled 
to have access to all relevant company 
information, records, executive officers 
and senior management within the group. 
Directors are apprised whenever relevant 
and kept abreast of any new legislation 
and changing commercial risks that 
may affect the business interests of the 
company. In fulfilling their responsibilities, 
directors may seek professional advice 

from external professional advisors at the 
company’s expense. The company’s JSE-
registered Designated Advisor attends all 
board meetings.

Board evaluation
The board recognises the importance 
of conducting an evaluation of its 
performance, constitution, leadership and 
supporting structures, and as a result has 
completed the evaluation of the board as 
recommended by King III. The assessment 
was done taking the following into account; 
the Company’s strategy, customers and 
markets served, board diversity, skills and 
experience of board members, continued 
eligibility for membership, evaluation of 
effectiveness and performance of the 
director, roles and primary strengths of 
current board members. This process 
started at the end of 2013 and the 
evaluation results will be completed in the 
first half of 2014. 

Board appointments
A nomination committee was appointed in 
November 2013, as a component of the 
remunerations committee. As a key element 
of sound corporate governance, the 
remuneration and nomination committee 
charter was formulated and approved by 
the committee and the board accordingly. 
Nomination related matters such as the 
identification, evaluation and approval 
of appointees to the board and board 
committees are dealt with in accordance 
with the charter.

Board sub-committees

The board has appointed the following sub-
committees to assist it in the performance 
of its duties:

 ■ Audit and risk committee

 ■ Remuneration and nomination 
committee

 ■ Investment committee

 ■ Social and ethics committee

Audit and risk committee
This committee, established by the board, 
has specific responsibilities as set out in the 
audit and risk committee terms of reference 
approved by the committee and the board.

The committee consists of independent 
non-executive directors named below:

 ■ G Nzalo (chairman)

 ■ JR Macey

 ■ NS Mazwi

As recommended by King III and the 
JSE Listing Requirements, the chairman 
of the board is not a member of the audit 
and risk committee.

The group’s managing director and 
chief financial officer, together with 
representatives from internal and external 
audit are invited to and attend all audit and 
risk committee meetings.

The audit and risk committee is responsible, 
inter alia, for:

 ■ reviewing the effectiveness of 
risk management, controls and 
governance processes;

 ■ setting the principles for 
recommending the use of the external 
auditors for audit services and other 
non-audit services;

 ■ setting the principles for recommending 
the use of the internal auditors for 
internal audit services;

 ■ satisfying itself, on an annual basis, 
of the appropriateness of the 
expertise and experience of the 
chief financial officer and company 
secretary;

 ■ performing an annual assessment 
of the independence of the 
external auditors;

 ■ reviewing and approving external 
audit budgets and staffing to ensure 
critical risk areas of the business are 
effectively addressed;

 ■ reviewing the effectiveness of the 
company’s systems of internal control, 
including internal financial control 
and business risk management and 
the maintenance of effective internal 
control systems;

 ■ reviewing, approving and 
recommending to the board the 
approval of the internal audit charter, 
internal audit plans and internal audit’s 
conclusions with regard to internal 
controls;

 ■ reviewing the co-operation and 
co-ordination between the internal 
and external audit functions and co-
ordinating the formal internal audit work 
plan with external auditors to avoid 
duplication of work;

 ■ reviewing the accounts and financial 
statements taken as a whole to 
ensure they present a balanced and 
understandable assessment of the 
position, performance and prospects 
of the company;
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 ■ reviewing compliance matters that 
could have a significant impact on the 
financial statements;

 ■ monitoring the ethical conduct of the 
company, its executives and senior 
officials; and

 ■ reviewing compliance with the law and 
regulations of any other applicable 
statute and of controlling bodies.

As required in terms of the JSE Listing 
Requirements, the company’s Designated 
Advisor attended all the audit and risk 
committee meetings.

Attendance at the audit and risk committee 
meetings during the course of the current 
financial year is tabled on page 31.

Remuneration and nomination 
committee
The committee consists of independent 
non-executive directors named below:

 ■ WC Ross (Chairman of the nomination 
component of the committee) 
(resigned 21 May 2014)

 ■ LI Jacobs (Chairman of the nomination 
component of the committee) 
(appointed 21 May 2014)

 ■ JR Macey (Chairman of the 
remuneration component of the 
committee)

The committee meets at least annually 
and is responsible, inter alia, for:

 ■ reviewing the performance of the 
executive directors;

 ■ determining the remuneration strategy, 
conditions of employment and 
remuneration packages of executives;

 ■ determining the remuneration structure 
for non-executive directors;

 ■ the approval of cost of living 
adjustment, market-based salary 
adjustments and performance-based 
incentives; and

 ■ the approval of the terms of and the 
allocation awards of any scheme 
providing performance-based 
incentives.

 ■ Identifying, evaluating, recommending 
and approving appointees to the Board 
and Board committees.

 ■ consider and make recommendations 
on a periodic basis regarding the 
composition and membership of the 
board, the needs of the board and any 
gaps perceived in the composition of 
the board.  

 ■ conduct annual evaluations of the 
effectiveness and performance of the 
board as a whole and consider the 
contribution of each non-executive 
director.

 ■ review the board’s training, 
development and orientation needs.  
This includes induction programmes 
for new directors, training and 
development needs arising from the 
annual director/board performance 
evaluation process and the annual 
board training/workshop programme.

 ■ review the performance of the CEO 
and executive directors and planning 
regarding succession in respect of the 
CEO and executive directors.

The board is of the opinion that the 
chairman’s role on the remuneration and 
nomination committee does not affect his 
independence, as he does not chair the 
remuneration component of the meeting.

Investment committee
The investment committee has been 
established in terms of the investment 
committee charter approved by the 
committee and the board of directors and 
operates within the parameters set by 
the board, which are embodied within the 
investment committee charter. The primary 
purpose of the investment committee is 
to consider projects, acquisitions and the 
disposal of assets in line with the group’s 
overall strategy.

The committee members are:

 ■ JR Macey (non-executive chairman)

 ■ WC Ross (resigned 21 May 2014)

 ■ LI Jacobs (appointed 21 May 2014)

 ■ EG Dube

 ■ NM Anderson

 ■ NP Riley (independent investment 
committee member)

As part of the restructure agreement 
signed in 2010, Investec Bank Limited, a 
shareholder and financier of Vunani’s parent 
company, Vunani Group Proprietary Limited, 
was entitled to appoint one representative 
to the investment committee. This 
appointment provided additional expertise 
to the committee in its decision-making 
process. Post the restructure completed 
in December 2012, NP Riley continued to 
serve in the capacity of an independent 
investment committee member. 

The responsibilities and duties of the 
investment committee include, but are not 
limited to:

 ■ the disposal or transfer of any 
business, share, asset or other 
investment within the limits of authority;

 ■ the establishment of, or the acquisition 
or purchase of any business, either 
directly or indirectly by means of 
purchasing shares or an interest in 
or assets of the entity to which such 
business may belong, within the limits 
of authority;

 ■ the encumbering of any assets in any 
manner whatsoever;

 ■ any transactions or agreements 
with related parties as defined in the 
JSE Listing Requirements;

 ■ the liquidation or winding-up, de-
registration or the discontinuance or 
suspension of any business activities;

 ■ the implementation of any re-
structuring, merger or any joint venture 
agreements;

 ■ amendment of the MOI of any 
designated group company;

 ■ any variation to the authorised and/or 
issued share capital or rights attaching 
to any shares or class of shares of any 
designated group company;

 ■ any matter relating to the financing 
of capital or borrowings which 
would have the effect of directly or 
indirectly reducing the proportionate 
shareholding of any ordinary 
shareholder in a designated 
group company;

 ■ the issue of guarantees or other similar 
undertakings of any nature;

 ■ a change in the business of any 
designated group company; and

 ■ performing such other investment-
related functions as may be designated 
by the board from time to time.

The committee’s limits of authority are as 
follows:

Category 1 investments – all investments 
up to and including R2 million are the sole 
responsibility of the executive management 
of Vunani and these investments do not 
require committee or board approval.

Category 2 investments – all investments in 
excess of R2 million and up to a maximum 
of R30 million require approval by the 
committee. These investments do not 
require board approval.
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Category 3 investments – all investments 
relating to an exposure in excess of 
R30 million are reviewed by the committee. 
Any approved investment proposal 
is referred to the board together with 
the committee’s recommendation for the 
board’s final determination. The above 
limits of authority are subject to the 
authority limits contained in the JSE Listing 
Requirements, as transactions exceeding 
a set financial limit also require shareholder 
approval.

Attendance at the investment committee 
meetings during the year is reflected in the 
table on page 31.

Social and ethics committee
The social and ethics committee was 
established in terms of the Companies 
Act during March 2012. The committee 
is chaired by NS Mazwi and includes E. 
Chimombe-Munyoro (resigned 1 March 
2014), A Judin and A Zuma. The committee 
met three times during the 2013 financial 
year. The social and ethics committee’s 
terms of reference were approved by the 
committee and by the board.

The committee assists the board in 
discharging its duties relating to:

 ■ the group’s legal obligations;

 ■ prevailing codes of good practice 
pertaining to social and economic 
development;

 ■ good corporate citizenship;

 ■ the environment;

 ■ health and public safety;

 ■ consumer relations; and 

 ■ compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations.

Attendance at the social and ethics 
committee meetings during the year is 
reflected in the table on page 31.

Internal audit

Nkonki Inc. is the appointed external 
provider of internal audit services to 
the group. An internal audit plan for the 
2013 financial year was presented to and 
approved by the audit and risk committee. 
The internal audit plan is based on an 
assessment of risk areas identified by 
internal audit and management. The 
approved internal audit plan was executed 
in various stages during the 2013 financial 
year. The first step in this process was 
an assessment of the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the group’s system of 
internal controls and risk management, 
using a risk-based approach.

The Internal audit function is governed 
by a formal internal audit charter which is 
reviewed and approved by the audit and 
risk committee. The charter sets out the key 
responsibilities of the internal audit function 
as well as the scope of the function. The 
key responsibilities of the internal audit 
function are listed below:

 ■ evaluating the group’s governance 
processes including ethics;

 ■ performing an objective assessment of 
the effectiveness of risk management 
and the internal control framework;

 ■ systematically analysing and evaluating 
business processes and associated 
controls; and

 ■ providing a source of information, as 
appropriate, regarding instances of 
fraud, corruption, unethical behaviour 
and irregularities.

Internal audit reports directly to the audit 
and risk committee and Nkonki Inc. 
representatives attended all audit and 
risk committee meetings during the year. 
At each meeting, they provided feedback 
to the committee covering progress on 
the audit plan, areas of significant control 
weakness and recommendations to correct 
these weaknesses.

Dealing in securities

A formal policy has been adopted 
whereby directors, company secretary and 
employees are prohibited from trading in 
the group’s securities during defined closed 
periods. These closed periods run from 
the end of the interim and annual reporting 
periods, until the financial results are 
disclosed on the Securities Exchange News 
Service (“SENS”) as well as any period 
during which the company is trading under 
cautionary.

In terms of the JSE Listing Requirements, 
the directors, the group company 
secretary, employees and directors of major 
subsidiaries (that contribute more than 
25% to Vunani Limited’s revenue) require 
advance approval from the chief operating 
officer or alternatively the managing 
director if the former is not available, for 
dealings in Vunani shares. Once executed, 
appropriate disclosure is released on SENS.

Governance of information 
technology

The group appointed a head of IT early 
in 2014 who will be responsible for IT 
governance at group level. The head of IT 
will be responsible for the implementation 
of the IT governance framework. This 
framework will ensure that IT investments 
and expenditure are managed effectively 
and are aligned with business objectives.All 
the group’s subsidiaries are responsible for 
IT governance in their respective business 
environments and this is monitored on a 
group basis. In terms of the board charter, 
the board assumes responsibility for the 
overall supervision of IT risk.

Financial reporting

The group provides financial reports to its 
shareholders twice a year. Details regarding 
significant transactions undertaken are 
reported in the appropriate form as required 
by the JSE Listing Requirements.

Company secretary

Aphrodite Judin, the group chief financial 
officer, currently fulfils the role of company 
secretary for the group. The board 
recognises that in terms of King III and the 
JSE Listing Requirements the company 
secretary should not be an executive 
director, so as to ensure an arm’s length 
relationship is maintained with the board. 
The board has reviewed the role of the 
company secretary and plans have been 
put into place to appoint a new company 
secretary in the 2014 financial year.

Once the new company secretary has 
been appointed, the board will, in terms 
of the JSE Listing Requirements, consider 
and satisfy itself, on an annual basis, of the 
competence, qualifications and experience 
of the company secretary and will report to 
shareholders in the integrated report as to 
how it has executed this responsibility.

Despite the above mentioned intended 
review, the board has satisfied itself as 
to the competence, qualifications and 
experience of the current company 
secretary.
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Meeting attendance

Board meeting attendance

Directors 19 Mar 2013 12 June 2013 5 Aug 2013 27 Nov 2013

Executive        

EG Dube ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

BM Khoza ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

NM Anderson ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

CE Chimombe-Munyoro ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

A Judin ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Independent 
non-executive       

WC Ross (Chairman) ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Dr XP Guma * * ✓ ✓

NS Mazwi ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

G Nzalo ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

JR Macey ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

* Dr XP Guma was appointed as a director on 1 July 2013.

Audit and risk committee meeting attendance

Directors 6 Mar 2013 6 Jun 2013 25 July 2013 12 Nov  2013

G Nzalo (non-executive 
chairman) ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

JR Macey ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

NS Mazwi ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Investment committee meeting attendance

 
15 Feb 
2013

20 May 
2013

8 July 
2013

12 Aug 
2013

18 Nov 
2013

9 Dec 
2013

JR Macey (non-executive 
chairman) ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

WC Ross  ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

EG Dube ✓ ✓ ✓ X ✓ ✓

NM Anderson ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

NP Riley X ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Social and ethics committee meeting attendance

Directors 20 Feb 2013 30 May 2013 13 Nov 2013

NS Mazwi (non-executive chairman) ✓ ✓ ✓

A Judin ✓ ✓ ✓

E Chimombe-Munyoro X ✓ ✓

A Zuma ✓ ✓ ✓

Industry associations
As at 31 December 2013, Vunani is 
represented at the following industry 
associations or organisations:

 ■ Vunani Securities, Vunani Capital 
Markets and Vunani Fund 
Managers are members of the JSE 
(www.jse.co.za).

Certain Vunani employees are 
members of the following professional 
associations:

 ■ The South African Institute of 
Chartered Accountants (www.
saica.co.za);

 ■ The South African Institute of 
Stockbrokers (www.sais.co.za);

 ■ Chartered Financial Analyst charter 
holders (www.cfasa.ac.za);

 ■ The Investment Analysts Society of 
Southern Africa (www.iassa.co.za);

 ■ Registered with the JSE as 
Approved Executives;

 ■ Institute of Directors Southern 
Africa (www.iodsa.co.za); and

 ■ Association of Black Securities and 
Investment Professionals (www.
absip.co.za).

Certain Vunani group companies are: 

 ■ Licensed as financial service 
providers by the Financial Services 
Board (www.fsb.co.za); 

 ■ Registered with the JSE as a 
sponsor in terms of the JSE Listing 
Requirements;

 ■ Members of the Association for 
Savings and Investment South 
Africa (www.asisa.co.za); and   

 ■ Members of the Association for 
Savings and Investment in South 
Africa (www.asisa.co.za); 
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REMUNERATION REPORT 

Remuneration is a vital tool that is utilised 
in the group. Incentivising and retaining 
our employees is central to the group’s 
strategy. Vunani’s remuneration policy 
sets out the group’s goal to attract and 
retain critical talent as well as to motivate 
employees to perform in the best interests 
of the company and its stakeholders. 
During the year, the terms of reference for 
the remuneration committee were altered 
such that the committee is now responsible 
for both remuneration and nomination 
matters. As such, the committee is now the 
remuneration and nomination committee.

The remuneration and nomination 
committee assists the board in ensuring 
that group remuneration and recruitment is 
aligned with overall business strategy.

Committee governance

The remuneration component of the 
remuneration and nomination committee 
is chaired by JR Macey and the other 
member of the committee was WC Ross. 
LI Jacobs will be appointed as a member 
of the remuneration committee from 21 
May 2014. The committee meets at least 
annually or more frequently if required. The 
committee’s responsibilities include:

 ■ Determing and agreeing the framework 
for remuneration of the group’s 
executive management;

 ■ Determining targets for any 
performance based executive incentive 
scheme;

 ■ Assessing total remuneration for 
executive directors including, basic 
salary, bonuses, incentive payments 
and share options;

 ■ Assessing remuneration of non-
executive directors and make 
recommendations to the board 
on the fees of the chairman and 
the non-executive directors, for 
subsequent approval by the company’s 
shareholders in a general meeting;

 ■ Review appropriate market information 
regarding remuneration related matters; 
and

 ■ Be aware of and oversee any major 
changes in employee benefit structures 
throughout the group.

The nomination committee was chaired 
by WC Ross and the other member is JR 
Macey. LI Jacobs will be appointed as 
chairman of the nomination committee from 
21 May 2014. The nominations committee’s 
responsibilities include:

 ■ Identifying, evaluating, recommending 
and approving appointees to the board 
and board committees;

 ■ Conducting annual evaluations of the 
effectiveness and performance of the 
board as a whole and consider the 
contribution of each non-executive 
director;

 ■ Reviewing the board’s training, 
development and orientation needs;

 ■ Reviewing the performance of the CEO 
and executive directors; and 

 ■ Planning regarding succession in 
respect of the CEO and executive 
directors.

Remuneration philosophy and 
policy

The group recognises that it operates in a 
competitive environment and that one of 
the drivers of its performance is its people. 
The group wishes to provide a level of 
remuneration that attracts, retains and 
motivates employees of the highest calibre, 
while rewarding them for performance.

The group defines total remuneration as 
a combination of all types of rewards, 
including financial and non-financial, direct 
and indirect. The group’s position is to 
reward performance, while ensuring that 
there is a distribution of remuneration 
around the market median.

The key remuneration philosophies adopted 
by the group are summarised as follows:

 ■ Performance conditions have been 
determined to motivate individuals in 
terms of the overall business strategy 
and to ultimately maximise shareholder 
value;

 ■ Remuneration levels are fair, reasonable 
and are set at levels that are relevant 
and competitive within the market;

 ■ Application of philosophy and policies 
consistently across the group; and

 ■ Encourage a focus on long-term 
sustained performance and growth 
within the group.

Components of total 
remuneration

Basic remuneration
The levels of basic remuneration are 
reviewed and revised annually. The criteria 
that have been adopted for determining 
remuneration increases are as follows:

 ■ CPI (Inflation);

 ■ Market comparisons;

 ■ Individual performance; 

 ■ Affordability based on group budgets; 
and

 ■ Group performance.

Remuneration consists of the following 
guaranteed components and is applicable 
to all employees:

 ■ Basic salary;

 ■ Group life assurance;

 ■ Medical aid; and

 ■ Provident fund.

Annual salary increases are approved by 
the remuneration committee. Provident fund 
contributions are based on a scale between 
10% -20% of the annual total remuneration 
package, as elected by the individual 
employees. These contributions ensure 
monetary security and dignity to employees 
and their beneficiaries (on retirement, death 
or disability).

Short-term incentives
Annual incentive bonuses are paid if key 
performance targets including but not 
limited to, financial targets are met.

All employees are eligible to participate 
in the group’s incentive bonus scheme, 
which is well established within each of 
the operating subsidiaries. The bonus is 
conditional on company and individual 
performance and is paid annually subject 
to the achievement of performance targets 
combined with key performance indicators 
agreed to by the chief executive and the 
remuneration committee.

Historically, no predetermined methodology 
existed for rewarding the group executive 
directors and short-term incentives were 
based on a discretionary allocation made 
by the remuneration committee. During 
the 2013 financial year, the remuneration 
committee approved the methodology for 
an executive short term incentive plan. The 
key drivers of this plan are summarised as 
follows:

 ■ As the group’s executive directors 
provide leadership, support and 
guidance to all operating subsidiaries, 
the incentive is dependent on the 
overall group performance;

 ■ The incentive is biased towards 
realisations and therefore all non-
cash items and minority interests are 
eliminated in arriving at the adjusted 
profit pool;
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Long-term incentive plan

Executive directors’ remuneration
The group aims to adhere to the broad 
guidelines of executive remuneration set 
out in King III. The overall principles applied 
consist of the following:

 ■ Establish appropriate and competitive 
balance between fixed and variable 
remuneration structure to achieve 
performance excellence;

 ■ Establish a performance oriented 
culture with a pay-for-performance 
approach that aligns with sustainable 
shareholder value;

 ■ Appropriately leverage market and 
industry benchmarks to ensure 
competitive remuneration aligned to 
market median; and

 ■ Drive sustainable business results 
through short-term and long-term 
performance driven incentives.

For details of the executive directors’ 
remuneration refer to Note 45 of the annual 
financial statements.

Non-executive directors’ 
remuneration
Non-executive directors receive fixed fees 
for their services as directors of the board 
and as members of board committees. The 
remuneration committee proposes fees 
for non-executive directors, which are 
agreed by the board and approved 
by shareholders.

Non-executive directors do not participate 
in the group’s incentive bonus plan or share 
option scheme. There were no direct or 
indirect beneficial holdings in the current or 
prior year.

The level of fees paid to non-executive 
directors is reviewed by the remuneration 
committee on an annual basis. For details 
regarding fees paid during the current and 
prior year, refer to note 45 of the annual 
financial statements. 

Non-executive remuneration for the 2013 financial year and the proposed remuneration for the 
2014 financial year (which is subject to approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting) 
are set out in the table below:

Proposed
  Remuneration remuneration
  for the 2013 for the 2014
  financial year financial year
  R’000 R’000

Board    
Chairman* 250 250
Member 100 115
     

Audit and Risk Committee    
Chairman 20 20
Member – 10
     

Investment Committee    
Chairman 20 20
Member – 10
     
Remuneration and Nomination Committee    
Chairman* and member – 10
     
Social and Ethics Committee    
Chairman – 10
Member – –
     
* The chairman of the board is also the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the 
investment committee and remuneration committee. This fee is remuneration for all services rendered by the 
chairman of the board to the group. 

Prescribed offi cers

The board has determined that there are no prescribed officers employed by the company as 
defined by the Companies Act No. 71 of 2008.  

 ■ The profit pool is split between 
investment activities and non-
investment activities and these two 
pools are treated differently;

 ■ The incentive on the investment 
pool is based on a carried 
interest model where the reward 
is calculated as a percentage of 
the realised capital growth after a 
notional cost of capital charge is 
applied; and

 ■ The incentive on the non-
investment pool is calculated as a 
percentage of the adjusted profit 
pool on a sliding scale.

Share option scheme

The group has a share scheme in place, 
which was introduced in June 2011, 
whereby employees were entitled to acquire 
shares in the company. A second issue was 
made to employees in December 2012. 
At 31 December 2013, 45% of the shares 
issued in June 2011 and 20% of the shares 
issued in December 2012 had vested.

The purchase price was funded by the 
Vunani Share Incentive Scheme Trust 
(“VSIST”) and in turn the employees 
became indebted to the VSIST for the 
value of the shares offered. The shares 
are pledged as security to the VSIST until 
the employee has settled the debt. The 
employee’s debt shall include interest 
charged thereon, which interest will be 
charged and rolled up with the outstanding 
debt at the official rate as published by the 
South African Revenue Service from time 
to time.

Employees shall be entitled to settle the 
outstanding debt though the sale of the 
shares once they have vested on the dates 
set out below.

Vesting of shares

The Shares shall vest in tranches as follows: 

 ■ 20% of the shares after the 1st 
anniversary of the acceptance date;

 ■ 25% of the shares after the 2nd 
anniversary of the acceptance date;

 ■ 25% of the shares after the 3rd 
anniversary of the acceptance date; 
and

 ■ 30% of the shares after the 4th 
anniversary of the acceptance date.

Employees may instruct the trustees to 
sell the shares once they have vested. The 
proceeds shall firstly be used to settle debt.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

METHODS OF ENGAGEMENT

REASONS FOR ENGAGEMENT

 Annual general meeting.
 Website.
  Stock Exchange .
News Service.

  Interim and annual 
results publications.

  Investor presentations.
  Ongoing discussions with 

investment analysts, 
institutional investors 

and journalists in 
South Africa.
  Integrated report 

and interim 
fi nancial report.

   In depth one-on-one 
presentations to various 
clients and prospective 
clients.

  Facilitation of workshops.
  Advertising.
  Corporate website.
 Newsletters.

  Personal contact with 
regulatory and industry 
associations such as the  
JSE, Financial Services 
Board, SARS and 
Department of Labour.

  Contact via 
compliance 
        offi cers.

  Open door policy 
to all employees.

  Performance reviews.
  Bi-annual newsletters.
  Staff training.
  Employee wellness 

days.
  Periodic climate 

surveys.
  Provision of 

study 
assistance.

   Personal contact 
with strategic 
service providers.

   Distribution of 
press releases.

   Interviews by key 
executives on 
broadcast, radio 
and print media.

 To ensure 
compliance 

with all regulatory 
requirements.

 
 To 

obtain 
feedback on our 

products and services, 
promote our services 

and obtain feedback on 
customer needs.

  To ensure we can 
continuously service our
clients’ needs.

 To present 
a transparent 
view of our 
business.

 Obtaining 
fi nance and 

investment 
solutions.

  Constant interaction 
with funders’ top 
executives.

  Specifi c funders 
attend board 
meetings and are 
represented on 
the investment 
committee.

KEY STAKEHOLDERS

1

2

34

5

6

7

SHAREHOLDER
AND INVESTOR 
COMMUNITY

1 FUNDERS2 CLIENTS3 REGULATORY 
AUTHORITIES4 EMPLOYEES5 SUPPLIERS 

AND SERVICE 
PROVIDERS

6 MEDIA7

KEY STAKEHOLDERS

  To ensure that 
staff goals are 
aligned to the 
company’s 
goals.

  Effective 
communication 
is fundamental.

  Creation of a 
rewarding work 

environment 
that encourages 

personal 
development 

and growth for 
the success of the 

company.

  To understand 
any service 

provider’s 
concerns and 

ensure that 
service providers 

adhere to the 
company’s 

standards and 
service level 

agreements.

  To 
positive 

relationships with 
the media.

  To maintain a positive profi le in 
the media.

   To communicate developments 
and signifi cant events in 

the group.

  To 
keep 
shareholders and 
the investor community 
updated on our 
fi nancial results, 
group performance, 

strategy, risks and 
opportunities.

 To provide insight 
into the business

and value 
creation

initiatives.

build
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KING III 

King III 

The Institute of Directors of South Africa 
(“IoDSA”) is the convener of the King 
Committee and the custodian of the King 
Reports. It is one of the main objectives 
of the IoDSA to promote corporate 
governance, and one of the best ways 
to do this is to enable application of King 
III. The IoDSA aspires towards an economy 
that is founded on good governance 
principles, namely: strong ethics, 
beneficial relationships, greater training 
and competence, greater transparency 
and accountability and an aspiration 
for credibility and trust. This will provide 
the platform for sustained growth in 
businesses.

Challenges with King III

There are two primary challenges for 
organisations when attempting to 
implement King III:

1. King III has to be interpreted and 
understood within the nature, size 
and complexity of an organisation; and  

2. There has been no credible and 
generally accepted national benchmark 
to measure and compare application 
of King III.

7. Providing an audit programme for internal and external service providers; and

8. Offering a reporting benchmark to stakeholders, that is fit for peer-to-peer comparison of 
organisations, enhancing confidence in governance reporting. 

The GAI calculates an overall score indicating the status of application of King III as follows:

Ratings key

AAA Highest application
AA High application
BB Notable application
B Moderate application
C Application to be improved
L Low application

Since 2012, Vunani has used the GAI for the purposes of assessing the level of application of 
King III, which results in the scores per category as detailed below. Details of the full checklist 
have been included on our website www.vunanilimited.co.za. Vunani’s overall rating in terms of 
the GAI is AA. Vunani strives to improve its compliance with King III and additional information 
is provided in areas that need improvement.

Category
Sub-category 

score 
Category 

score

1. Board composition   AAA

2. Remuneration   AAA

3. Governance office bearers   AA

  3.1 Chairman AAA  

  3.2 CEO AA  

  3.3 Company secretary AA  

4. Board roles and duties   AA

  4.1 Focal point of corporate governance AAA  

    4.1.1 Fiduciary duties AAA  

    4.1.2 Strategy AA  

    4.1.3 Ethical leadership BB  

  4.2 Corporate citizenship and leadership AAA  

    4.2.1 Risk AA  

    4.2.2 IT governance BB  

    4.2.3 Compliance AA  

    4.2.4 Internal audit AAA  

    4.2.5 Business rescue AAA  

5. Accountability   AAA

  5.1 Stakeholder relations AAA  

  5.2 Integrated reporting and disclosure AAA  

6. Performance assessment   L

7. Board committees   AAA

  7.1 Audit committee AAA  

  7.2 Risk committee AAA  

  7.3 Remuneration committee AA  

  7.4 Nomination committee AA  

  7.5 Social and ethics committee AAA  

8. Group boards   C

Challenges averted

To assist with the above challenges, the 
IoDSA has developed the Governance 
Assessment Instrument (“GAI”), an online 
tool that will assist in the following ways: 

1. Evaluating implementation of 
governance structures and processes 
as recommended in King III; 

2. Enabling ongoing tracking of progress 
on implementation of King III, 
understanding that it is a process; 

3. Providing a simplified framework 
to the board for a risk-based review 
of the application of King III, without 
voluminous reading;

4. Facilitating a meaningful scoring 
mechanism reflective of an 
organisation’s adoption of King III; 

5. Providing a framework by which 
governance can be assured by 
independent service providers;

6. Giving holding companies a 
concise view of their subsidiaries’ 
governance status; 
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Company secretary

King III and JSE Listing Requirements 
require that the company secretary is 
an individual who is not an executive 
director. Currently, the role is filled by the 
group CFO, Aphrodite Judin. The board 
is in the process of reviewing the role of 
the company secretary, and plans have 
been put into place to appoint a new 
company secretary in 2014. The company 
secretary will not be an executive director 
of the group. In addition, the role of the 
company secretary will become more 
prominent within the group. The roles and 
responsibilities of the company secretary 
will be amended and clearly defined on the 
increased level of responsibility.

Ethical leadership

The board is responsible for ensuring 
that management endorses a culture of 
ethical conduct and sets the values to 
which the company should adhere. These 
values are to be incorporated in a code of 
conduct. The group is currently reviewing 
the code of conduct that exists to ensure 
that it adequately encapsulates the ethical 
conduct and culture which the board strives 
to achieve. It is anticipated that this process 
will be completed in the 2014 year. 

Risk

Detailed risk assessments have been 
performed for the key operating subsidiaries 
within the group. While the boards of those 
subsidiaries have been involved in compiling 
the risk registers and monitoring the risks, 
the board is required to have oversight of 
the key risks within the group. While this 
has been performed at a strategic level, the 
board, through the audit and risk committee 
will be performing a detailed review of the 
operational risk registers during the 2014 
financial year. The review will include the 
identification and description of the risk, 
potential impact, identified compensating 
controls, residual risk and corrective action 
required. Through this process, the board 
will set the levels of risk tolerance, which 
will be reviewed annually. 

IT governance

The reliance on IT within the group varies 
from subsidiary to subsidiary based on 
the nature of their operations. Certain 
subsidiaries are much more dependent 
on IT while others are not so reliant. 
The board assumes responsibility for the 

group’s IT governance and a high level 
risk assessment relating to IT governance 
has been performed. IT governance is 
also a standing item on the audit and 
risk committee agenda. This area does, 
however, require improvement in order to 
comply with the requirement of King III from 
a group perspective. Vunani appointed a 
new head of IT in February 2014 who is 
responsible for the implementation of the IT 
governance framework. This framework will 
ensure that IT investments and expenditure 
are managed effectively and are aligned 
with business objectives.

King III recognises that IT has become an 
integral part of doing business today, as it 
is fundamental to the support, sustainability 
and growth of organisations. IT cuts across 
all aspects, components and processes 
in business and is therefore not only an 
operational enabler for a company, but an 
important strategic asset which can be 
leveraged to create opportunities and to 
gain competitive advantage. As part of its 
risk mitigation plan, Vunani will implement 
the COBIT5 IT governance framework. 
The head of IT has regular interaction with 
senior executives in the group. In 2014, the 
following will be put in place:

 ■ An IT governance framework that 
supports the effective and efficient 
management of IT resources within 
the group;

 ■ An IT charter will be established and 
implemented;

 ■ An IT strategy will be formally 
documented; and

 ■ An updated IT risk register.

An IT steering committee will be established 
to assist in defining and supporting 
the group IT strategy. The IT steering 
committee will be made up of the heads of 
the different business units. An additional 
deliverable for the steering committee will 
be to approve and prioritise IT projects 
based on the Group business strategy.

The IT long-term goal is to move the 
Vunani IT department from the role of a 
cost centre to that of a business enabler, 
utilising technology and innovation to deliver 
greater value to the business. This will be 
accomplished through the implementation 
of IT governance and related frameworks.

Performance assessment

The board recognises the importance of 
conducting evaluations of its performance, 
constitution, leadership and supporting 
structures. We commenced the process 
at the end of 2013 and the results to 
be collated and sent to the nominations 
committee for assessment and then 
presented to the board. Evaluation of board 
committees will take place in the 2014 
financial year.

Group boards

King III requires that a documented 
governance framework is in place between 
the group and its subsidiaries. A formal 
governance framework between Vunani 
and its subsidiaries is not currently 
in place; however, the boards of all 
subsidiaries in the group include at least 
one Vunani executive director. The group’s 
interests in the subsidiary companies are 
represented through these appointments. 
Vunani directors are provided with 
feedback at all board meetings regarding 
developments and the performance of 
subsidiary companies.

KING III (continued)
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DIRECTORS' STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES
and approval of the annual financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the consolidated and separate annual financial statements of 
Vunani Limited, comprising the statements of financial position at 
31 December 2013, and the statements of comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa. In addition, the 
directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report.

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the 
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate accounting records and 
an effective system of risk management. 

The directors have made an assessment of the ability of the company 
and its subsidiaries to continue as going concerns and have no 
reason to believe that the businesses will not be going concerns in 
the year ahead.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the consolidated 
and separate financial statements are fairly presented in accordance 
with the applicable financial reporting framework.

The audit and risk committee (“the committee”) reports that it has 
considered the matters set out in section 94(7)(f) of the Companies 
Act and is satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the 
external auditor, KPMG Inc. 

The committee has considered and approved the fees payable to the 
external auditor and is satisfied with the extent of non-audit-related 
services performed.

The committee consists of three members, each of whom are 
independent non-executive directors and who have the requisite 
financial skills and experience to contribute to the committee's 
deliberations. The committee met four times during the year with 
the managing director, chief financial officer, group financial manager 
and representatives from external and internal audit attending each 
meeting by invitation.

The committee has satisfied itself that the finance function, including 
the chief financial officer, has the appropriate expertise, experience 
and resources, and is satisfied that the internal financial controls of 
the company and group are working effectively.

A board-approved audit and risk committee charter stipulating, inter 
alia, the committee’s composition, duties and responsibilities, has 
been adopted. The committee is satisfied that it complied with the 

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
responsibilities as set out in the audit and risk committee charter as 
well as relevant legal and regulatory responsibilities.

Based on the information and explanations given by management 
and discussions with the internal auditor and the independent 
external auditor regarding the results of their audits, the committee is 
satisfied that there was no material breakdown in the internal financial 
controls during the financial year under review. The committee has 
evaluated the financial statements of Vunani Limited and the group 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and, based on the information 
provided to the committee, considers that the group complies, in all 
material respects, with the requirements of the Companies Act of 
South Africa, 2008, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued 
by the Accounting Practices Committee and Financial Reporting 
Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards 
Council.

GS Nzalo
Chairman of the audit and risk committee

21 May 2014, Sandton

Approval of consolidated and separate annual 
fi nancial statements 

The consolidated and separate annual financial statements of Vunani 
Limited, as identified in the first paragraph, were approved by the 
board of directors on 21 May 2014 and are signed by:

EG Dube A Judin
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Authorised director Authorised director

21 May 2014, Sandton 
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Review of activities

Main business and operations
The company was incorporated on 1 December 1997 and carries 
on the business of a financial services company with certain 
strategic investments. It has operations in asset management, 
securities broking, investment banking, corporate advisory services, 
property development and investment holdings.

The operating results and state of affairs of the group and company 
are fully set out in the attached financial statements and do not in our 
opinion require any further comment.

Events after reporting date

Refer to note 49 of financial statements.

Special resolutions

The following special resolutions were passed by Vunani Limited and 
its major subsidiaries:

Vunani Limited 

1. On 10 July 2013, remuneration payable to the non-executive 
directors was approved by a special resolution at the company’s 
annual general meeting.

2. On 10 July 2013, the authority of directors to repurchase the 
company’s shares was approved by special resolution at the 
company’s annual general meeting.

3. On 10 July 2013, the provision of financial assistance (direct 
or indirect) by way of a loan, guarantee or otherwise to the 
company’s future or present subsidiaries, and/or directors was 
approved by special resolution at the company’s annual general 
meeting. 

4. On 8 October 2013, the approval of the adoption of Vunani 
Properties Proprietary Limited’s new memorandum of 
incorporation was approved by the company by special 
resolution.

5. On 25 October 2013, the company approved the sale of 
business agreement to be entered into by Vunani Property 
Asset Management Proprietary Limited and Texton Property 
Investments Proprietary Limited.

Major subsidiaries

1. On 28 February 2013, Vunani Capital Proprietary Limited passed 
a special resolution in terms of Section 45 of the Companies 
Act to provide financial assistance to Vunani Mining Proprietary 
Limited by way of a guarantee with regards to the agreement 
entered into between Anglo Operations Proprietary Limited, 
Anglo American Zimele Proprietary Limited and Butsanani Energy 
Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited.

2. On 12 March 2013, the adoption of Vunani Properties Proprietary 
Limited’s new memorandum of incorporation was approved by 
the company by special resolution.

3. On 6 August 2013, Vunani Properties Proprietary Limited 
passed a special resolution approving the sale of the business 
conducted by Vunani Property Asset Management Proprietary 
Limited to Texton Property Investments Proprietary Limited.

Directors
Executive directors Independent non-executive 

directors 
EG Dube 
(chief executive officer)

WC Ross (chairman) 
(resigned 21 May 2014)

BM Khoza (managing director) GS Nzalo
A Judin (chief financial officer) JR Macey 
NM Anderson NS Mazwi
CE Chimombe-Munyoro 
(resigned 1 March 2014)

Dr XP Guma 
(appointed 1 July 2013)

DIRECTORS' REPORT 
for the year ended 31 December 2013

  

LI Jacobs (Chairman) 
(appointed as a non-executive 
director on 14 April 2014 and 
chairman on 21 May 2014)

Secretary

A Judin

There have been no changes to the company secretary, as well as 
her roles and responsibilities during the year.

During 2014, A Judin will resign from the role of company secretary in 
order to comply with JSE listing requirements and the requirements 
of King III Report. A new company secretary, who is not an executive 
director, will be appointed.

Shareholding of directors

The shareholding of directors in the issued share capital of the 
Company as at 31 December 2013 was as follows:

  Number of shares held  Total 

  Beneficially Beneficially  number

Shareholding direct indirect of shares

per director (000s)  (000s)  (000s)

EG Dube – 23 441 23 441
BM Khoza – 14 620 14 620
NM Anderson – 14 635 14 635
A Judin 86 – 86

  86 52 696 52 782

The following shares were traded by directors’ associates since year 
end and date of approval of the annual report.

Dealings in securities by an associate (Z. Dube – minor child) of 
director of the company:

    No of   Total

    Shares  Price Consideration

Date Buy/Sell  (000s)  (cents)  (R’000)

16 April 2014 Buy 2  155 R3
29 April 2014 Buy 40 154 R61
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CERTIFICATION BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY 

In my capacity as company secretary, I hereby certify, that for the financial year ended 31 December 2013, Vunani Limited has filed with the 
Companies and Intellectual Properties Commission, all such returns and notices as are required in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, and 
that all such returns appear to be true, correct and up to date.

A Judin 
Company Secretary 

21 May 2014, Sandton 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
To the Shareholders of Vunani Limited

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Vunani Limited, which comprise the statements of financial position at 
31 December 2013, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to 
the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 42 to 113. 

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The company's directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate financial position of Vunani Limited 
at 31 December 2013, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

Other Reports Required by the Companies Act
As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 we have read the Directors’ Report, the Audit and Risk 
Committee’s Report and the Company Secretary’s Certificate for the purpose of identifying whether there are material inconsistencies between 
these reports and the audited financial statements. These reports are the responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on reading these 
reports we have not identified material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited financial statements. However, we have not audited 
these reports and accordingly do not express an opinion on these reports. 

KPMG Inc.
Registered Auditor

Per G Parker
Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registered Auditor
Director

21 May 2014

KPMG Crescent
85 Empire Road
Parktown 
Johannesburg



42 VUNANI LIMITED

Re-presented
Figures in Rand 000's Note 2013 2012

Continuing operations
Revenue from trading services 5 109 958 100 878
Other income 6 6 265 8 620
Investment revenue 7 10 469 2 355
Interest received from investments 8 2 733 22 557
Net profit on disposal of assets 9 11 169 5 854
Fair value adjustments and impairments 10 18 470 43 786
Operating expenses 11 (144 608) (125 437)

Results from operating activities 14 456 58 613

Finance income 12 2 404 1 007
Finance costs 12 (5 174) (48 845)

Net fi nance costs (2 770) (47 838)

Results from operating activities after net finance costs 11 686 10 775
Equity accounted earnings (net of income tax) 18 (3 438) 17 218

Profi t before income tax expense 8 248 27 993
Income tax expense 13 (1 553) (18 640)

Profi t from continuing operations 6 695 9 353

Discontinued operations
Profit from discontinued operations (net of taxation) 14 1 611 2 402

Profi t for the year 8 306 11 755

Other comprehensive income
Items that are or may be reclassifi ed to profi t or loss
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations (897) –

Total comprehensive income for the year 7 409 11 755

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company 9 869 (216)
Non-controlling interest (1 563) 11 971

8 306 11 755

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company 9 205 (216)
Non-controlling interest (1 796) 11 971

7 409 11 755

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share 9.9 (0.2)

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations (cents) 40 8.6 (2.1)
Basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations (cents) 40 1.3 1.9

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

 VUNANI LIMITED – Groupfor the year ended 31 December 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Figures in Rand 000's Note 2013 2012

Assets
Plant and equipment 15 1 934 2 611
Goodwill 16 34 123 34 123
Intangible assets 16 2 207  489
Investment property 17 – 4 000
Investments in associates 18 22 425 80 073
Other investments 19 115 317 73 728
Deferred tax assets 20 40 397 40 917
Other non-current assets 21 25 358 15 984

Total non-current assets 241 761 251 925

Other investments 19 – 78 513
Other current assets 21 1 451 3 994
Taxation prepaid 30 1 041  254
Non-current assets held for sale 22 2 634 –
Trade and other receivables 23 30 729 25 768
Accounts receivable from trading activities 24 113 077 199 629
Trading securities 25  320 1 564
Cash and cash equivalents 26 42 271 29 378

Total current assets 191 523 339 100

Total assets 433 284 591 025

Equity
Stated capital 27 610 088 610 088
Treasury shares 27 (15 265) (14 899)
Share based payment reserve 28 10 256 5 906
Foreign currency translation reserve (897) –
Accumulated loss (389 709) (399 578)

Equity attributable to equity holders of Vunani Limited 214 473 201 517
Non-controlling interest 42 (6 226) 12 794

Total equity 208 247 214 311

Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 29 45 605 60 080
Deferred tax liabilities 20 4 061 8 610

Total non-current liabilities 49 666 68 690

Other financial liabilities 29 7 870 68 646
Non-current liabilities held for sale 22 2 479 –
Tax payable 30 9 896 10 310
Trade and other payables 31 39 274 25 861
Accounts payable from trading activities 24 112 941 200 373
Bank overdraft 26 2 911 2 834

Current liabilities 175 371 308 024

Total liabilities 225 037 376 714

Total equity and liabilities 433 284 591 025

Shares in issue (000s) 27 and 40 105 415 105 415
Net asset value per share (cents) 40 203.5 191.2
Net tangible asset value per share (cents) 40 169.0 158.3

 VUNANI LIMITED – Groupfor the year ended 31 December 2013
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Total
Share Foreign attribu- 
based currency table Non-

Share Share Stated Treasury payment translation Accumulated to equity controlling Total
Figures in Rand 000's Note capital premium capital shares reserve * reserve loss holders interest equity

Balance at 31 December 2011  527 609 561 – (14 276) 2 524 – (399 480) 198 856 13 842 212 698
Total comprehensive income 
for the year
(Loss)/profit for the year – – – – – – (216) (216) 11 971 11 755

Total comprehensive income 
for the year – – – – – – (216) (216) 11 971 11 755

Transactions with owners, 
recorded directly in equity
Share capital conversion to no 
par value shares  27 (527) (609 561) 610 088 – – – – – – –
Share based payment  28 – – – – 3 382 – – 3 382 – 3 382
Treasury shares acquired  27 – – – (623) – – – (623) – (623)
Dividends paid – – – – – – – – (12 901) (12 901)
Acquisition of non-controlling 
interest  36 – – – – – –  118  118 (118) –

Total transactions with owners (527) (609 561) 610 088 (623) 3 382 –  118 2 877 (13 019) (10 142)

Balance at 31 December 2012 – – 610 088 (14 899) 5 906 – (399 578) 201 517 12 794 214 311

* The share based payment reserve is as a result of employees receiving shares of the company for services rendered. 

Refer to note 28 for additional information.

Total
Share Foreign attribu-
based currency table Non-

Share Share Stated Treasury payment translation Accumulated to equity controlling Total
Figures in Rand 000's Note capital  premium capital shares reserve * reserve loss holders interest equity

Balance at 31 December 2012 – – 610 088 (14 899) 5 906 – (399 578) 201 517 12 794 214 311

Total comprehensive income for 
the year
Profit/(loss) for the year – – – – – – 9 869 9 869 (1 563) 8 306

Other comprehensive income 
for the year – – – – – (664) – (664) (233) (897)

Total comprehensive income 
for the year – – – – – (664) 9 869 9 205 (1 796) 7 409

Transactions with owners, 
recorded directly in equity

Transfers between reserves – – – – – (233)  233 – – –

Share based payment  28 – – – – 4 350 – – 4 350 – 4 350

Treasury shares acquired  27 – – – (366) – – – (366) – (366)

Dividends paid – – – – – – – – (15 345) (15 345)

Disposal of non-controlling 
interest  37 – – – – – –  884  884 (884) –

Acquisition of non-controlling 
interest

35 & 
36 – – – – – – (1 117) (1 117) 1 117 –

Acquisition of subsidiaries  35 – – – – – – – – (2 112) (2 112)

Total transactions with owners – – – (366) 4 350 (233) – 3 751 (17 224) (13 473)

Balance at 31 December 2013 – – 610 088 (15 265) 10 256 (897) (389 709) 214 473 (6 226) 208 247

* The share based payment reserve is as a result of employees being given the right to acquire shares of the company for services rendered. 

Refer to note 28 for additional information.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

 VUNANI LIMITED – Groupfor the year ended 31 December 2013
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Figures in Rand 000's  Note 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash utilised by operating activities  33 (12 895) (21 628)
Investment revenue  7 10 469 2 355
Finance income received 4 809 22 084
Finance costs paid (10 594) (61 304)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest (15 345) –
Income tax paid  34 (10 630) (1 914)

Net cash utilised by operating activities (34 186) (60 407)

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of plant and equipment (894) (486)
Proceeds on disposal of plant and equipment –  128
Proceeds on disposal of businesses – 3 300
Proceeds on disposal of associates 26 119 2 732
Increase in investments in associates (1 835) –
Proceeds from loans to associates repaid 35 186 4 067
Dividends received from associates 2 725 4 229
Acquisition of other investments (9 252) –
Proceeds on disposal of other investments 65 423 190 101
Increase in other non-current assets (2 220) (3 950)
Proceeds from repayments of other non-current assets  186 –

Net cash inflow from investing activities 115 438 200 121

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in other financial liabilities  107 9 516
Repayments of other financial liabilities (68 036) (139 695)

Net cash outflow from financing activities (67 929) (130 179)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13 323 9 535

Transfer to non-current assets held for sale  22 (1) –
Cash acquired in business acquisitions  35  124 –
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 26 544 17 009

Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  26 39 990 26 544

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2013

 VUNANI LIMITED – Groupfor the year ended 31 December 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reporting activities

Vunani Limited (“the company”) is a company domiciled in 
South Africa at Vunani House, Vunani Office Park, 151 Katherine 
Street in Sandton. The consolidated and separate financial 
statements of the company at and for the year ended 31 December 
2013 comprise the company and its subsidiaries (together referred 
to as the “group”) and the group’s interest in structured entities and 
associated entities. The group operates in the financial services 
industry. 

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

1.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”), the requirements of the Companies Act 
of South Africa, 2008, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides 
issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and Financial 
Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial 
Reporting Standards Council.

1.2 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost 
basis, except for certain financial instruments and investment 
property, which are measured at fair value and disposal groups 
held for sale, which are disclosed at the lower of the carrying 
amount and fair value less costs of disposal.

1.3 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in South African Rand, 
which is the company’s functional currency.

All financial information presented in South African Rand 
have been rounded to the nearest thousand unless 
indicated otherwise.

1.4 USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses. Although estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances, actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimate is revised, if revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
that have a significant risk of resulting in a material 
adjustment within the next financial year are included in 
the following notes:

Notes 19, 29 and 46 – fair value of financial instruments

Note 16 – impairments of goodwill and intangible assets

Notes 18 and 46 – impairment losses on loans and advances

Note 20 – utilisation of tax losses

1.5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The group has adopted all standards and interpretations 
which become effective during the current year. The group 
has adopted the following new standards, including any 
consequential amendments to other standards, with a date of 
initial application of 1 January 2013.

(a) Disclosures – Offsetting financial assets and financial 
liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 7).

(b) IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements (2011).

(c) IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities.

(d) IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement.

(e) Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive Income 
(Amendments to IAS 1).

(f) Recoverable amount disclosures for Non-financial assets 
(Amendments to IAS 36) (2013).

The nature and effects of the changes are explained below:

(a) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities.

There has been no impact on group disclosures as a 
result of the amendments to IFRS 7.

(b) Subsidiaries

 ■ As a result of IFRS 10 (2011), the group has 
changed its accounting policy for determining 
whether it has control over and consequently 
whether it consolidates its investees.

 ■ In accordance with the transitional provision of 
IFRS 10 (2011), the group reassessed the control 
conclusion for its investees at 1 January 2013. As 
a consequence, the group has changed its control 
conclusion in respect of its investment in Vunani 
Capital Zimbabwe (Private) Limited, which was 
previously accounted for as an associate using the 
equity method (refer to note 39).

(c) Disclosure of interest in other entities

 ■ As a result of IFRS 12, the group has expanded its 
disclosures about interests in subsidiaries (see note 
42 and 44) and equity accounted investees (see 
note 18).

(d) Fair value measurement 

 ■ IFRS 13 establishes a single framework for 
measuring fair value and making disclosures about 
fair value measurements when such measurements 
are required or permitted by other standards. It 
unifies the definition of fair value as the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 
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a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. As a result 
the group has included additional disclosures in this 
regard (see notes 17, 21, 22 and 46).

 ■ In accordance with the transitional provisions of 
IFRS 13, the group has applied the new fair value 
measurement guidance prospectively and has 
not provided any comparative information for new 
disclosures. Notwithstanding the above, the change 
had no significant impact on the measurements of 
the group’s assets and liabilities.

(e) Presentation of items of other comprehensive income 
(“OCI”)

 ■ As a result of the amendments to IAS 1, the group 
has modified the presentation of items of OCI in 
its statement of profit or loss and OCI, to present 
separately items that would be reclassified to profit 
or loss from those that would never be. There were 
no material changes to comparative information 
and therefore comparative information has not been 
represented accordingly.

(f) Disclosures of recoverable amount disclosures for non-
financial assets

 ■ The group has adopted the amendments to IAS 
36 (2013). As a result, the group has expanded its 
disclosures of recoverable amounts when they are 
based on fair value less costs of disposal and an 
impairment is recognised (see note 16). 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied 
consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated 
and separate financial statements, and have been applied 
consistently by group entities.

2.1 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, 
liabilities and results of operations of the holding company, its 
subsidiaries and investments in associates.

2.1.1 SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. 
The group controls the entity when it is exposed to 
or has rights to variable returns from its involvement 
with the entity and has the ability to affect those 
returns through its power over the entity. The financial 
statements of subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date that 
control commences until the date that control ceases. 
The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been 
changed when necessary to align them with the 
policies adopted by the group. 

The company accounts for subsidiaries at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses in the separate 
financial statements. 

2.1.2 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Associates are those entities in which the group 
has significant influence, but not control, over the 
financial and operating policies. Significant influence 
is presumed to exist when the group holds between 
20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the 
equity method (“equity-accounted investees”) and are 
recognised initially at cost. The group’s investment 
includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any 
accumulated impairment losses. The consolidated 
financial statements include the group’s share of the 
profit and equity movements of equity-accounted 
investees, after adjustments to align the accounting 
policies with those of the group from the date that 
significant influence commences until the date 
that significant influence ceases.

When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest 
in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount 
of that interest, including any long-term investments, 
is reduced to nil, and the recognition of further losses 
is discontinued, except to the extent that the group 
has an obligation or has made payments on behalf 
of the investee.

When the group loses control of a subsidiary and as 
a result of that the remaining interest is accounted for 
as an associate, then such interest is measured at fair 
value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is 
accounted for as an equity-accounted investee.

The company accounts for associates at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses in the separate 
financial statements.

2.1.3 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests are measured at their 
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net 
assets at acquisition date.

Changes in the group’s interest in a subsidiary that do 
not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity 
transactions.

2.1.4 TRANSACTIONS ELIMINATED ON 
CONSOLIDATION

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any 
unrealised profit or loss arising from intra-group 
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the 
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains 
arising from transactions with equity-accounted 
investees are eliminated against the investment to 
the extent of the group’s interest in the investee. 
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as 
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no 
evidence of impairment.

2.2 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2.2.1 NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS

The group and company initially recognises loans 
and receivables and deposits on the date that they 
are originated. All other financial assets (including 
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assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) 
are recognised initially on the trade date at which 
the group and company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The group and company derecognises a financial 
asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to 
receive the contractual cash flows on the financial 
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset 
are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial 
assets that is created or retained by the group and 
company is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets or liabilities are offset and the net 
amount presented in the statement of financial 
position when, and only when, the group and 
company has a legal right to offset the amounts and 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The group has the following non-derivative 
financial assets: financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss and loans and receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss

A financial asset is classified at fair value through 
profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading 
or is designated as such upon initial recognition. 
Financial assets are designated at fair value 
through profit or loss if the group manages such 
investments and makes purchase and sale decisions 
based on their fair value in accordance with the 
group’s documented risk management or investment 
strategy. Upon initial recognition, attributable 
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as 
incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss are initially measured at fair value and changes 
therein are recognised in profit or loss through fair 
value adjustments and impairments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed 
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market. Such assets are recognised initially 
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and 
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and other receivables comprise trade and other 
receivables, loans to associates, accounts receivable 
from trading activities and cash and cash equivalents.

Loans to group companies are initially measured 
at fair value and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances 
used by the group in the management of short term 
commitments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on 
demand and form an integral part of the group’s cash 

management system are included as a component 
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the 
statement of cash flows.

2.2.2 NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities (including liabilities designated at 
fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially 
on the trade date at which the group becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The group derecognises a financial liability when its 
contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or expire.

The group has the following non-derivative financial 
liabilities: financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss; and other financial liabilities and trade 
and other payables.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss

The group designates certain financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss on initial recognition. Ring-
fenced structured entities have historically been used 
to house the group’s geared equity investments and 
any financial liabilities that relate to such investments. 
Financial assets and liabilities that arise in terms of 
these ring-fenced structures are both fair valued 
through profit or loss in terms of IAS 39.

The reason for the above designation was to reduce 
the measurement inconsistency on ring-fenced 
liabilities relative to the assets that they funded. 
Because the liability to lenders is limited to the value 
of the assets, if the assets were fair valued through 
profit or loss and the liabilities carried at amortised 
cost, inconsistency would arise that would not reflect 
the true liability of the group. In order to eliminate this 
inconsistency on ring-fenced structures, these specific 
liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or 
loss on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities, accounts payable from 
trading activities, and trade and other payables 
are recognised initially at fair value less any directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.2.3 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value. Any 
directly attributable costs are recognised in profit 
or loss as they are incurred. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value and 
changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.

2.2.4 STATED CAPITAL

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental 
costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary 
shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, 
net of any tax effects.
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Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is 
non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the company’s 
option, and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends 
thereon are recognised as distributions within equity 
upon approval by the company’s shareholders.

Preference share capital is classified as a liability 
if it is redeemable on a specific date or at the option 
of the shareholders, or if dividend payments are not 
discretionary. Dividends thereon are recognised as 
interest expense in profit or loss as accrued.

Treasury shares

Where share capital is repurchased and held by a 
subsidiary or structured entity, the amount of the 
consideration paid, which includes directly attributable 
costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a 
deduction from equity.

2.3 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2.3.1 RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Items of plant and equipment are measured at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable 
to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials, 
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable 
to bringing the assets to a working condition for 
their intended use, the costs of dismantling and 
removing the items and restoring the site on which 
they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs. 
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality 
of the related equipment is capitalised as part of 
that equipment.

When parts of an item of plant and equipment 
have different useful lives, they are accounted for 
as separate items (major components) of plant and 
equipment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an item of plant 
and equipment are determined by comparing the 
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of 
plant and equipment and are recognised within net 
profit or loss on disposal of assets.

2.3.2 SUBSEQUENT COSTS

The cost of replacing a part of an item of plant and 
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the 
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
embodied within the part will flow to the group, and its 
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount 
of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of 
the day-to-day servicing of plant and equipment are 
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

2.3.3 DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, 
which is the cost of an asset less its residual value.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 
each part of an item of plant and equipment since 
this most closely reflects the expected pattern 
of consumption of the future economic benefits 
embodied in the asset. Leased assets are depreciated 
over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives 
unless it is reasonably certain that the group will obtain 
ownership by the end of the lease term. 

The estimated useful lives for the current and 
comparative periods are as follows:

Leasehold improvements remaining lease period

Motor vehicles 4 years

Furniture and fittings 6 years

Office equipment 3 – 5 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values 
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, 
if appropriate.

2.4 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The acquisition method is used when a business is acquired. 
A business may comprise an entity, group of entities or an 
unincorporated operation including its operating assets and 
associated liabilities. On acquisition date, fair values are 
attributed to the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities. A non-controlling interest at acquisition date is 
determined as the non-controlling shareholder’s proportionate 
share of the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the 
entity acquired.

Fair values of all identifiable assets or liabilities included in the 
business combination are determined by reference to market 
values of those or similar items, where available, or by 
discounting expected future cash flows using the discount rate 
to present values. When an acquisition is achieved in stages 
(step acquisition), the identifiable assets and liabilities are 
recognised at their full fair value when control is obtained, 
and any adjustment to fair values related to these assets and 
liabilities previously held as an equity interest is recognised 
are profit or loss.

When there is a change in the interest in a subsidiary after 
control is obtained, that does not result in a loss in control, 
the difference between the fair value of the consideration 
transferred and the amount by which the non-controlling 
interest is adjusted is recognised directly in the statement 
of changes in equity.

The consideration transferred is the fair value of the group’s 
contribution to the business combination in the form of assets 
transferred, shares issued, liabilities assumed or contingent 
consideration at the acquisition date. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition are charged to profit or loss. On 
acquisition date, goodwill is recognised when the consideration 
transferred and the recognised amount of non-controlling 
interests exceeds the fair value of the net identifiable assets of 
the entity acquired. Goodwill is tested at each reporting date 
for impairment.
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To the extent that the fair value of the net identifiable assets of 
the entity acquired exceeds the consideration transferred and 
the recognised amount of non-controlling interests, the excess 
is recognised in profit or loss on acquisition date as a gain on 
bargain purchase. The profit or loss realised on disposal or 
termination of an entity is calculated after taking into account 
the carrying amount of any related goodwill.

2.5 GOODWILL

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of business combinations.

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for 
as transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity 
holders and therefore no goodwill is recognised as a result of 
such transactions.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses. In respect of equity-accounted investees, the carrying 
amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the 
investment, and an impairment loss on such an investment is 
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part 
of the carrying amount of the equity-accounted investee.

2.6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2.6.1 RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Intangible assets that are acquired by the group 
and have finite useful lives are measured at cost 
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

2.6.2 SUBSEQUENT EXPENDITURE

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it 
increases the future economic benefits embodied 
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other 
expenditure, including expenditure on internally-
generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in 
profit or loss as incurred.

2.6.3 AMORTISATION

Amortisation is calculated on the cost of the asset, or 
other amount substituted for cost.

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 
intangible assets, from the date that they are available 
for use, since this most closely reflects the expected 
pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful 
life for the current and comparative periods is as 
follows:

Customer lists 3 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values 
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, 
if appropriate.

2.7 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property is property held either to earn rental 
income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale 
in the ordinary course of business, nor use in the production 
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. 

Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition 
and subsequently at fair value with any change therein 
recognised in profit or loss.

When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified 
as property, plant and equipment, its fair value at the date of 
reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated 
as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and 
the carrying amount of the property) is recognised in profit or 
loss.

2.8 LEASED ASSETS

Leases in terms of which the group does not assume 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating 
leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis 
over the term of the lease.

2.9 IMPAIRMENT

2.9.1 FINANCIAL ASSETS (INCLUDING RECEIVABLES)

A financial asset, not carried at fair value through 
profit or loss, is assessed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is objective evidence that it 
is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective 
evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after 
the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss 
event had a negative effect on the estimated future 
cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including 
equity securities) are impaired can include default 
or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount 
due to the group on terms that the group would not 
consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer 
will enter bankruptcy and the disappearance of an 
active market for a security.

The group considers evidence of impairment for 
receivables at both a specific asset and collective 
level. All individually significant assets are individually 
assessed for impairment. Those found not to be 
impaired are then collectively assessed for any 
impairment that has been incurred but not yet 
individually identified. Assets that are not individually 
significant are assessed for impairment collectively. 
Collective impairment is carried out by grouping 
together assets with similar credit risk characteristics.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset 
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the 
difference between its carrying amount and the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. 
Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in 
an allowance account against receivables. Interest on 
the impaired asset continues to be recognised through 
the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent 
event causes the amount of impairment loss to 
decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed 
through profit or loss.
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2.9.2 NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial 
assets, other than investment property and deferred 
tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If any such indication exists, then 
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount 
of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit 
or loss. For goodwill, the recoverable amount is 
estimated bi-annually.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together 
into the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 
cash generating units (“CGUs”). Goodwill arising 
from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or 
groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the 
synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the 
greater of its fair value less cost to sale and its value 
in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future 
cash flows, discounted to their present value using 
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset or CGU. 

In respect of other assets, impairment 
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at 
each reporting date for any indications that the loss 
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss 
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had 
been recognised. An impairment loss in respect of 
goodwill is not reversed.

Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of 
an investment in an associate is not recognised 
separately and therefore is not tested for impairment 
separately. Instead, the entire amount of the 
investment in an associate is tested for impairment as 
a single asset when there is objective evidence that 
the investment in an associate may be impaired.

2.10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

2.10.1 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment 
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity and will have no 
legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. 
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution 
pension plans are recognised as an employee 
benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during 
which services are rendered by employees. Pre-paid 
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent 
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments 
is available.

2.10.2 SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured 
on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the 
related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be 
paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing 
plans if the group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past 
service provided by the employee and the obligation 
can be estimated reliably.

2.11 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Share-based arrangements in which the group receives goods 
or services as consideration for its own equity instruments 
are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment 
transactions, regardless of how the equity instruments are 
obtained by the group.

The grant date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment 
awards granted to employees is recognised as an employee 
expense with a corresponding increase in the share-based 
payment reserve in equity over the period that the employees 
become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount 
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of 
awards for which the related service and non-market vesting 
conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount 
ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number 
of awards that do meet the related service and non-market 
performance conditions at the vesting date. For share-based 
payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date 
fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect 
such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between 
expected and actual outcomes.

2.12 PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, 
the group has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow 
of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation. 
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as 
finance cost.

2.13 REVENUE

2.13.1 SERVICES RENDERED

Revenue from services rendered including property 
management and development fees, management fees, client 
services and advisory services, is recognised in profit or loss 
in proportion to the stage of completion (based on services 
performed as a percentage of total services to be performed) 
of the transaction at the reporting date. 

2.13.2 COMMISSIONS

Commissions comprise brokerage fees and asset 
management fees arise when the group acts in the 
capacity of an agent rather than as the principal in 
a transaction. The revenue recognised is the net 
amount of commission earned by the group. This is 
recognised when the transaction giving rise to the 
commission is concluded. 
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2.13.3 PROPRIETARY TRADING REVENUE

Proprietary trading revenue consists of trading income 
earned from trading activities that the company carries 
out for its own account. Trading income is recognised 
upon the successful conclusion of trades.

2.13.4 TRADING REVENUE 

Trading revenue consists of trading income earned 
from bond and money market trading activities. 
Trading income is recognised upon the successful 
conclusion of trades. 

2.13.5 DIVIDENDS

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on 
the date that the group’s right to receive payment is 
established, which in the case of quoted securities 
is the ex-dividend date.

2.14 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. 
Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, 
using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, 
unwinding of the discount on provisions and dividends on 
preference shares classified as liabilities. Borrowing costs are 
recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

2.15 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs when a 
component of an entity is disposed or when the operation 
meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, and when 
the component:

 ¢ represents a separate major line of business or geographical 
area of operations; or

 ¢ is part of a co-ordinated single plan to dispose of a separate 
major line of business or geographical area of operations; or

 ¢ is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, 
the comparative statement of comprehensive income is 
re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued 
from the start of the comparative year.

2.16 NON-CURRENT ASSETS OR DISPOSAL GROUP HELD 
FOR SALE

A non-current asset or disposal group (a business grouping 
of assets and their related liabilities) is designated as held for 
sale when its carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. 
The classification as held for sale of a non-current asset or 
disposal group occurs when it is available for immediate sale in 
its present condition and the sale is highly probable. A sale is 
considered highly probable if management is committed to a 
plan to sell the non-current asset or disposal group, an active 
divestiture programme has been initiated, the non-current asset 
or disposal group is marketed at a price reasonable to its fair 
value and the disposal is expected to be completed within one 
year from classification.

Where a disposal group held for sale will result in the loss of 
control or loss of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of 
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale, regardless of 
whether a non-controlling interest in the former subsidiary is to 
be retained after the sale.

Upon classification of a non-current asset or disposal group as 
held for sale it is reviewed for impairment. The impairment loss 
charged to profit or loss is the excess of the carrying amount of 
the non-current asset or disposal group over its expected fair 
value less costs of disposal.

No depreciation or amortisation is provided on non-current 
assets from the date they are classified as held for sale. If 
a non-current asset or disposal group is classified as held 
for sale, but the criteria for classification as held for sale are 
no longer met, the disclosure of such non-current asset or 
disposal group as held for sale is ceased.

On ceasing such classification, the non-current assets are 
reflected at the lower of:

 ¢ the carrying amount before classification as held for sale 
adjusted for any depreciation or amortisation that would 
have been recognised had the assets not been classified as 
held for sale; or 

 ¢ the recoverable amount at the date the classification 
as held for sale ceases. The recoverable amount is the 
amount at which the asset would have been recognised 
after the allocation of any impairment loss arising on the 
cash generating unit as determined in accordance with the 
group’s policy on impairment of non-financial assets.

Any adjustments required to be made on reclassification are 
recognised in profit or loss on reclassification and are included 
in profit or loss from continuing operations. Where the disposal 
group was also classified as a discontinued operation, the 
subsequent classification as held for use also requires that the 
discontinued operation be included in continuing operations.

Comparative information relating to the classification as a 
discontinued operation is represented accordingly.

2.17 INCOME TAX

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 
Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss, except to 
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or 
other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in 
equity or other comprehensive income. 

Current taxation comprises taxation payable calculated on the 
basis of the expected taxable income for the year, using the 
taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date, and any adjustment of taxation payable for previous 
years.

Deferred taxation is provided based on temporary differences. 
Temporary differences are differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets or liabilities for financial reporting purposes 
and their tax base.

The amount of deferred taxation provided is based on the 
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying 
amount of assets or liabilities using the taxation rate enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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The carrying amount of investment property is to be recovered 
through sale.

Deferred taxation is charged to profit or loss, except to the 
extent that it relates to a transaction that is recognised directly 
in equity or other comprehensive income, or a business 
combination that is an acquisition. The effect on deferred 
taxation of any changes in taxation rates is recognised in 
the profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
previously charged or credited directly to equity.

Deferred taxation is not recognised for the following 
temporary differences:

The initial recognition of goodwill, initial recognition of assets 
or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination 
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and 
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and 
associates to the extent that the parent is able to control the 
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and they will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

A deferred taxation asset is recognised to the extent that it 
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the associated unused taxation losses and deductible 
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred taxation assets 
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related taxation 
benefit will be realised. Deferred tax assets or liabilities are 
offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax liabilities or assets, and they relate to income taxes levied 
by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities, and they intend to settle current tax 
liabilities or assets on a net basis or their tax assets or liabilities 
will be realised simultaneously.

Dividends withholding tax

Dividends withholding tax is a tax on shareholders receiving 
dividends and is applicable to all dividends declared on or after 
1 April 2012.

The company withholds dividend tax on behalf of its 
shareholders at a rate of 15% on dividends declared. 
Amounts withheld are not recognised as part of a company’s 
tax charge, but rather as part of the dividend paid recognised 
directly in equity.

Where withholding tax is withheld on dividends received, the 
dividend is recognised at the gross amount with the related 
withholdings tax recognised as part of tax expense unless it 
is otherwise reimbursable in which case it is recognised as 
an asset.

2.18 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The group presents basic and diluted earnings per share 
(“EPS”), and headline and diluted headline earnings per 
share data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by 
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
of the company by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares 
held. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted 
for own shares held and profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary 
shares, which comprise convertible notes and share options 
granted to employees.

Headline earnings per share is determined in terms of SAICA 
Circular 2/2013 by dividing headline earnings attributable 
to ordinary shareholders of the company by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
period adjusted for own shares held. Diluted headline earnings 
per share is calculated by dividing the headline earnings 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for 
the period after an adjustment for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares.

2.19 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions are transactions which result in a 
transfer of resources, services or obligations between related 
parties, regardless of whether a price is charged. Related 
parties refer to entities which the group, directly or indirectly, 
through one or more intermediaries controls or is controlled 
by it, which is in common control or has significant influence 
over. These include the holding group, subsidiaries, fellow 
subsidiaries, associates and key management.

2.20 SEGMENT REPORTING

An operating segment is a component of the group that 
engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues 
and incur expenses, including revenues or expenses that relate 
to transactions with any of the group’s other components. All 
operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly 
by the group’s chief executive officer and managing director 
who are defined by the group as the group’s chief operating 
decision makers, to make decisions about resources to be 
allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for 
which discrete financial information is available. 

The group has the following operating segments:

 ¢ Asset management – operations comprise institutional 
and retail product offerings, which include equities, bonds, 
inflation-linked bonds and property, as well as absolute 
return funds and smart beta funds.

 ¢ Advisory services – whose function is to provide corporate 
advisory and investment services.

 ¢ Investment holdings – whose mandate is to acquire equity 
stakes in both listed and unlisted companies.

 ¢ Institutional securities broking – provides securities broking 
services to institutional clients. Products traded include 
equity trading, index futures, single stock futures, yield-X 
(currency and interest rate futures), equity options, over the 
counter options, money market and derivatives trading.

 ¢ Private wealth and investments - provides a trading platform 
to retail clients wanting to trade their own portfolios. 
Products on offer include, equities, geared derivatives 
(like contracts for difference and single stock futures) and 
money market as well as a range of absolute, balanced and 
directional funds for discretionary mandates.

 ¢ Properties – asset management – provides property asset 
management services.

 ¢ Properties – investments and developments – include 
greenfield property developments and the refurbishment 
of existing buildings. The developments include the 
commercial, industrial, retail and residential sectors of the 
market.
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 ¢ Group – the segment comprises the revenues and expenses 
related to managing the corporate affairs of the group. 
Revenues are generated from services provided by directors, 
which may involve arbitrage opportunities.

2.21 FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the 
functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at the date 
of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from 
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets 
or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies re recognised in 
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets or liabilities, measured at historical cost 
in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate 
at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using 
the foreign exchange rates at the dates the fair value were 
determined.

Foreign operations

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none 
of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) 
that have a functional currency different from the group’s 
presentation currency are translated into Rand, as follows:

 ¢ assets and liabilities are translated at the foreign exchange 
rate ruling at the reporting date; and

 ¢ income and expenses are translated at average exchange 
rates for the year, to the extent that such average rates 
approximate rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. 

Exchange differences arising on translation are recognised 
directly in other comprehensive income and presented in the 
equity foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign 
operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised 
in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.22 NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
NOT YET ADOPTED

In terms of IFRS, the group and company are required to 
include in their financial statements disclosure about the 
future impact of standards and interpretations issued but 
not yet effective at the issue date.

All standards and interpretations will be adopted at their 
effective dates (except for the effect of those standards 
and interpretations that are not applicable to the entity).

The newly issued IFRIC 21 is not applicable to the business of 
the group and will therefore have no impact on future financial 
statements. The directors are of the opinion that the impact of 
the application of the remaining standards and interpretations 
will be as follows:

IFRS 9 (2009 and 2010)

IFRS 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the 
classification and measurement of financial assets. Under 
IFRS 9 (2009), financial assets are classified and measured 
based on the business model in which they are held and the 
characteristics of their contractual cash flows. IFRS 9 (2010) 

introduces additions relating to financial liabilities. The IASB 
currently has an active project to make limited amendments to 
the classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 and 
add new requirements to address the impairment of financial 
assets and hedge accounting.

IFRS 9 (2010 and 2009) effective periods are yet to be 
determined. The adoption of IFRS 9 (2010) is expected to 
have an impact on the group’s financial assets and the group’s 
financial liabilities.

The impact on the financial statements for the group and the 
company has not yet been estimated, as  the standard is 
incomplete and the group is waiting until it is finalised.

Amendment to IAS 32

The amendment to IAS 32 will be adopted by group and 
company for the first time for its financial reporting period 
ending 31 December 2014.

The group does not believe that the adoption of this standard 
will have a significant impact on the financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27

The amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 will be 
adopted by group and company for the first time for its financial 
reporting period ending 31 December 2014.

The amendments clarify that a qualifying investment entity 
is required to account for investments in controlled entities, 
as well as investments in associates and joint ventures, at 
fair value through profit or loss; the only exception would be 
subsidiaries that are considered an extension of the investment 
entity’s investment activities. The consolidation exemption is 
mandatory and not optional. 

This amendment will result in the group having to account for 
investments in controlled entities, as well as investments in 
associates and joint ventures, at fair value through profit or 
loss. The adoption of this amendment will result in additional 
disclosure for financial assets or financial liabilities that 
are offset in the statement of financial position.

The group does not believe that the adoption of this standard 
will have a significant impact on the financial statements. 

Amendments to IAS 36

The amendments to IAS 36 will be adopted by group and 
company for the first time for its financial reporting period 
ending 31 December 2014.

The amendments reverse the unintended requirement in IFRS 
13 Fair Value Measurement to disclose the recoverable amount 
of every cash-generating unit to which significant goodwill or 
indefinite-lived intangible assets have been allocated. Under 
the amendments, the recoverable amount is required to be 
disclosed only when an impairment loss has been recognised 
or reversed. The group does not believe that the adoption 
of this standard will have a significant impact on the financial 
statements.
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3. DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

A number of the group’s accounting policies and disclosures 
require the determination of fair value, for both financial and 
non-financial assets and liabilities. When applicable, further 
information about the assumptions made in determining fair 
values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability. 
Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or 
disclosure purposes based on the following methods:

3.1 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

In the current year an external, independent valuation company, 
having appropriate recognised professional qualifications and 
recent experience in the location and category of property 
being valued, valued the group’s investment property portfolio. 
Valuations are performed annually.

The fair values are based on market values, being the price that 
would be received to sell the property in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date.

3.2 INVESTMENTS IN LISTED EQUITY 
AND DEBT SECURITIES

The fair value of listed financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss is determined by reference to their quoted closing 
bid price at the reporting date.

3.3 UNLISTED INVESTMENTS

Unlisted investments are fair valued annually by the directors 
using generally accepted valuation techniques. As with any 
valuation, a degree of subjective judgement is involved. 
These valuation techniques include reference to the value of 
the assets of underlying business, earnings multiples (e.g. 
unlisted investments), discounted cash flow analysis (e.g. 
unlisted investments, loans and advances) and various option 
pricing models. Operating businesses are valued using a 
combination of all of the following: discounted cash flow 
analysis, application of earnings multiples on sustainable 
after tax earnings, current and projected net asset values to 
determine overall reasonability. The cash flows are based on 
expected future dividends that will be paid by the businesses.

3.4 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS

The derivative is measured initially at fair value and 
subsequently at fair value with changes in fair value recognised 
in profit or loss.

IAS 39 does not permit a day 1 gain to be recognised in profit 
or loss if the fair value of the asset is not based on a valuation 
technique that uses data from only observable inputs. The 
valuation technique used is the Monte-Carlo Simulation 
technique, which includes unobservable inputs.

3.5 NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, 
is calculated based on the present value of future principal and 
interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at 
the reporting date.

3.6 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 
PROFIT OR LOSS

The group’s financial liabilities held at fair value through profit 
or loss are all linked to listed equity investments held by the 
group and are accounted for in structured entities. The fair 
value adjustments that relate to financial liabilities are not a 
result of the group’s inability to discharge its obligation, but 
rather in terms of the agreements with its lenders. The terms 
of the financial liability are such that, in the event that asset fair 
value falls below the face value of the liability, the group is not 
obligated to pay the full face of the debt, but rather a value that 
is directly linked to the value of the related asset. The full fair 
value adjustment is considered to be as a result of a change in 
market conditions.

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The group and company has exposure to the following risks 
from its use of financial instruments:

 ¢ Liquidity risk.

 ¢ Credit risk.

 ¢ Market risk.

This note presents information about the group’s exposure 
to the above risks, the group’s objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the group’s 
management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are 
included throughout these financial statements.

Risk management framework

The board of directors has overall responsibility for the 
establishment and oversight of the group’s risk management 
framework. The board is responsible for developing and 
monitoring the group’s risk management policies.

The group’s risk management policies are established to 
identify and analyse the risks faced by the group, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and 
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems 
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions 
and the group’s activities.

The group, through its training and management standards 
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive 
control environment in which all employees understand their 
roles and obligations.

The group audit and risk committee oversees how 
management monitors compliance with the group’s risk 
management policies and procedures and reviews the 
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the 
risks faced by the group.

4.1 LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty 
in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 
The group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as 
far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to 
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 
damage to the group’s reputation.



56 VUNANI LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

 VUNANI LIMITED – Groupfor the year ended 31 December 2013
4.2 CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group and company 
if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations.

The group and company manages this risk by transacting with 
customers that have good credit records and good standing in 
the markets.

Financial assets, which potentially subject the group to 
concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of trade and 
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Loans are granted to group companies after the necessary 
approval have been obtained. The company reviews all loan 
balances for recoverability annually and loans are impaired, 
if necessary.

The trade and other receivables relate to trade receivables. 
The group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the 
individual characteristics of each client. However, management 
also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of 
its client base, including the default risk of the industry. Each 
client is analysed individually for creditworthiness. The group 
reviews accounts receivable monthly. Unless customers have 
good payment records, an impairment allowance is created 
for any accounts greater than 60 days. Other impairment 
indicators considered include bankruptcy and the insolvency 
of clients.

The group deposits cash surpluses with major banks of good 
credit standing to address the related credit risk. The cash and 
cash equivalents are held with banks, which are rated A1+ 
based on rating agency Moodys' ratings.

4.3 MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices, such 
as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will 
affect the group’s income or value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters while optimising the return.

The group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as it 
borrows funds at variable interest rates. The group generally 
adopts a policy of ensuring that its exposure to changes in 
interest rates is limited by either fixing the rate or by linking 
the rate to the prime rate over the period of the respective loan. 
The group is not exposed to significant currency risk.

4.3.1 EQUITY PRICE RISK

The group is exposed to equity price risk on its 
listed investments that are not ring-fenced through 
underlying funding arrangements. The investments 
are not hedged and the pricing is reviewed on a daily 
basis. This risk is managed by linking the debt to the 
value of the underlying assets. This will ensure that the 
group will limit the amount payable on the underlying 
debt by limiting it to the value of the asset.

4.4 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so 
as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidences 
and to sustain future development of the business. The 
board of directors monitors the return on capital, which the 
group defines as: result from operating activities divided 
by total shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests. 
The board of directors also monitors the level of dividends 
to ordinary shareholders.

The board seeks to maintain a balance between the 
higher returns that might be possible with higher levels 
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded 
by a sound capital position.

The capital structure of the group consists of debt, which 
includes other liabilities and trade and other payables disclosed 
in notes 29 and 31 and equity as disclosed in the statement of 
financial position. The group monitors capital on the basis of 
the gearing ratio.

In all externally-regulated entities, there are capital adequacy 
requirements for the day-to-day operations. Each entity has 
a compliance officer who is responsible for monitoring these 
requirements. The compliance officers report to the board of 
directors of each entity to ensure the requirements are met. 
There have been no instances of non-compliance reported to 
the board of directors throughout the reporting period.   

  2013 2012
  R R

Gearing ratio    
Total debt 225 037 376 714
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (42 271) (29 378)
Net debt 182 766 347 336
Equity 214 473 201 517
Debt equity ratio 85.21% 172.36%



ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS
SHAREHOLDER 
INFORMATION

57

REPORTS TO 
STAKEHOLDERS

VUNANI LIMITED Integrated Annual Report 2013

57

VUNANI AT 
A GLANCE

Re-presented

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

5. REVENUE FROM TRADING SERVICES

Trading revenue
Bond trading 7 466 6 338
Money market  708 2 237

Proprietary trading revenue – 6 706
Fees 

Property developments and investments 1 953 7 864
Advisory 6 481 9 283
Brokerage 45 378 31 786
Asset management 36 822 25 039
Client service fees  535 1 001
Management fees 10 615 10 624

109 958 100 878

6. OTHER INCOME
Foreign currency translation gain  813 –
Directors fees for services rendered on external boards 1 868 1 135
Recognition of amortisation of day one gain (refer to note 21) 3 575 3 571
Rental guarantee reversal  9 1 662
Purchase price adjustment on disposal of subsidiary – 2 252

6 265 8 620

7. INVESTMENT REVENUE
Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments 3 351 2 355
Dividend income from unlisted investments 7 118 –

10 469 2 355

8. INTEREST RECEIVED FROM INVESTMENTS
Recognised in profit and loss

Interest received – investments 1 650 11 343
Interest received – other non-current assets  582  133
Interest received – loans and receivables  501 11 081

2 733 22 557

9. NET PROFIT ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS
Profit on disposal of businesses (refer to note 38)  19 5 907
Profit on disposal of associates 11 150 –
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment – (53)

11 169 5 854
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10. FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENTS AND IMPAIRMENTS

Fair value adjustment on financial assets and liabilities 
– Held at fair value through profit or loss (refer below) 22 709 42 176
Fair value adjustment on investment property (1 400) –
Impairment of investment in associate (refer to note 18) – (933)
Impairment of other non-current assets (refer to note 21) (3 576) –
Impairment (created)/ reversal on loans to associates (refer to note 18) (504) 2 543
Reversal of impairment of loans to associates due to IFRS 10 (refer to note 18 and 39) 1 241 –

18 470 43 786

Adjustments on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise the following:
Other financial liabilities (refer to note 29) (625) 19 552
Other investments (refer to note 19) 19 247 15 009

Other investments – listed investments 3 136 35 536
Other investments – unlisted investments 16 111 (20 527)

Other non-current assets – options (refer to note 21) 4 087 7 615

22 709 42 176

Refer to note 17, 19, 21, 29 and 46.4 for details of assumptions used in determining the fair values of 
investment property, other investments and other financial liabilities respectively.

11. OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operating expenses are arrived at after taking the following into account:
Amortisation of intangible assets  489  977
Plant and equipment
Depreciation 1 962 1 885
External auditors' remuneration 2 936 3 271

Current year 2 536 2 707
Prior year  300  501
Other services  100  63

Internal auditors' remuneration
Current year  322  450
Operating lease expense for office rentals 4 043 6 449
Foreign currency losses –  198
Directors' emoluments (refer to note 45) 19 465 11 494

Non-executive directors' fees  660  710
Salaries 9 490 8 849
Bonuses paid 2 000 –
Bonuses accrued 4 833 –
Provident fund and medical aid contributions 1 246  971
Equity-settled share-based payment charge 1 236  964

Staff costs (excluding directors' emoluments) 68 573 57 151
Staff provident fund and medical aid contributions (excluding directors) 3 127 2 812
Bad debt reversal (934) (18)
Equity-settled share based payment charge (excluding directors) 3 114 2 418

Re-presented
Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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12. FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS 
Recognised in profi t and loss
Interest received – cash and cash equivalents 2 404 1 007

Finance income 2 404 1 007

Interest charge – bank overdraft (147) (114)
Interest charge – long-term borrowings (2 114) (43 068)
Interest charge – debentures (2 776) (5 663)
Interest charge – trade and other payables (137) –

Finance costs (5 174) (48 845)

Net finance costs (2 770) (47 838)

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (3 230) (7 400)
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (1 944) (41 445)

Finance costs (5 174) (48 845)

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current tax expense
Current year (5 513) (4 090)

(5 513) (4 090)

Deferred tax expense
Current year 3 960 (14 550)

– Origination and reversal of temporary differences 3 532 (12 502)
– Previously unrecognised deferred tax assets  428  576
– Change in tax rate – (2 624)

3 960 (14 550)

Total income tax expense recognised in profi t and loss (1 553) (18 640)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate % %
Company tax rate 28.0 28.0
Disallowed expenditure 46.7 62.5
Capital loss on sale of shares (5.3) –
Equity accounted earnings 11.7 (17.2)
Tax exempt income (35.5) (2.3)
Fair value gains or losses at Capital Gains Tax rate (2.3) (43.3)
Capital Gains Tax not recognised on disposal of assets – (5.9)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets 91.8 50.6
Secondary tax on companies (current and deferred) – (20.0)
Fair value adjustments not taxed (recovered via dividends) (83.9) –
Assessed loss utilised (32.4) –
Schedule 8C interest allowance – 4.8
Tax rate change – 9.4

18.8 66.6

Basis of calculation 

The above is a numerical reconciliation between the average effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate.  The applicable tax rate is the 
national income tax rate of 28.0%. The effective Capital Gains Tax rate is 18.6%.

Re-presented
Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 

A strategic decision was made in November 2013 to dispose of the group's property asset management business. Management 
had committed to and board had approved a plan to sell the property management contract that was held in Vunani Property Asset 
Management Proprietary Limited ("VPAM"). This has therefore been disclosed as a non-current asset held for sale (refer to note 22). 
As this contract related to a major line of the group's business, the related activities have been presented as a discontinued operation. 
The comparative for the December 2012 consolidated statement of comprehensive income has been re-presented to show the 
discontinued operation separately from continuing operations.

Re-presented 
Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

Results of discontinued operations
Revenue 8 858 7 014
Operating expenses (6 190) (3 692)

Results from operating activities 2 668 3 322
Finance costs (179) –

Profi t before income tax 2 489 3 322
Income tax expense (878) (920)

Profi t from discontinued operations 1 611 2 402

Profit from discontinued operations attributable to:
Non-controlling interest  354  528
Owners of the company 1 257 1 874

1 611 2 402

Effect on basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) 1.3 1.9
Effect on basic and diluted headline earnings per share (cents) 1.3 1.9

Cash fl ows from discontinued operations
Net cash (utilised)/generated by operating activities (1 777) 2 090
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 1 898 (1 755)
Net cash in outflow from financing activities – (335)

Net cash infl ow for the year  121 –
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15. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

Cost
Balance at 31 December 2011 3 756  75 1 710 1 263 7 047 13 851
Additions – –  34  1  451  486
Disposals (3) – (41) (95) ( 220) (359)

Balance at 31 December 2012 3 753  75 1 703 1 169 7 278 13 978

Acquisition through business combination  18 –  119  146  117  400

Additions  133 –  83  39  639  894

Disposals – – – – (297) (297)

Balance at 31 December 2013 3 904  75 1 905 1 354 7 737 14 975

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 31 December 2011 (3 139) (75) (1 161) (1 071) (4 214) (9 660)
Depreciation (431) – (130) (88) (1 236) (1 885)
Disposals  3 –  15  27  133  178

Balance at 31 December 2012 (3 567) (75) (1 276) (1 132) (5 317) (11 367)

Depreciation (131) – (136) (82) (1 613) (1 962)

Disposals – – – –  288  288

Balance at 31 December 2013 (3 698) (75) (1 412) (1 214) (6 642) (13 041)

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2011  617 –  549  192 2 833 4 191
At 31 December 2012  186 –  427  37 1 961 2 611

At 31 December 2013  206 –  493  140 1 095 1 934

Leasehold Motor Furniture Office Computer

Figures in Rand 000's improvements vehicles and fittings equipment equipment Total
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16. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost
Balance at 31 December 2011 87 054 28 001 115 055

Balance at 31 December 2012 87 054 28 001 115 055
Acquisition through business combination – 2 207 2 207

Balance at 31 December 2013 87 054 30 208 117 262

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at 31 December 2011 (52 931) (26 535) (79 466)
Amortisation – (977) (977)

Balance at 31 December 2012 (52 931) (27 512) (80 443)

Amortisation – (489) (489)

Balance at 31 December 2013 (52 931) (28 001) (80 932)

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2012 34 123  489 34 612

At 31 December 2013 34 123 2 207 36 330

The remaining goodwill and intangibles in the group arose from the business combinations of Vunani Securities Proprietary Limited, Vunani 
Fund Managers Proprietary Limited and Vunani Private Clients Proprietary Limited.

It is  the group's policy to test the impairment of goodwill and intangibles on an annual basis even if there are no indicators of impairment. 
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the following cash generating units (operating companies) as follows: 

2013 2012

Vunani Fund Managers Proprietary Limited 27 703 27 703
Vunani Securities Proprietary Limited 6 420 6 420

34 123 34 123

Assumptions applied in testing for the impairment of goodwill

Vunani Fund Managers Proprietary Limited

The carrying amount of goodwill that arose through the business combination is R27,7 million.

The recoverable amount was determined as the fair value less costs of disposal of the company. 

The fair value less costs of disposal is determined using the funds under management at the date of disposal. An appropriate multiple will be 
applied to funds under management to determine the fair value. The fair value measurement was categorised as a level 3 fair value based 
on the valuation technique used.

An established industry benchmark for valuing fund management firms is to apply a percentage to the funds under management. The 
percentage can be determined by a combination of factors, inter alia, quantum of funds under management; profitability; average term 
of mandates; average management fees charged and growth prospects. As any or all these factors improve, the higher the percentage 
applied. In applying the impairment test to goodwill held in respect of the investment in Vunani Fund Managers, fair value has been 
determined on the basis of a percentage of the funds under management. This percentage has been set at one percent and applied to 
14.6 billion funds under management at 31 December 2013 to arrive at a fair value of R146 million. The value has been determined solely 
for the purpose of the impairment test. 

As a result of the above, the group does not believe that the goodwill needs to be impaired.

Funds under management would need to decrease by R11.9 billion for the fair value less costs to sell to equal the carrying amount 
of goodwill.

Customer

Figures in Rand 000's Goodwill lists Total
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Vunani Securities Proprietary Limited

The carrying amount of goodwill that arose through the business combination is R6.4 million.

The recoverable amount was determined as the value in use of the company. The key assumptions used in the calculation of the 
recoverable amount are discount rates and EBITDA growth rate. The values assigned to the key assumption represented management's 
assessments for future trends in the securities broking industries and were based on internal sources and historical data.

An after tax discount rate of 9% was used in the valuation, estimated based on past experience, which is consistent with previous periods.

Four years of cash flows were included in the discounted cash flow model. The cash flows were adjusted to take into account the expected 
growth rate of the EBITDA. An EBITDA rate of 12% was used.

The significant driver of the expected growth in EBITDA is due to increased research offering and stock, bonds and money market dealing 
capability that arose from the acquisition of Kagiso Securities Limited in 2010. Assumptions are supported by past experience.

As a result of the above the group does not believe that the goodwill needs to be impaired.

Management has identified two key assumptions for which there could be a reasonably possible change that could cause the carrying 
amount to exceed the recoverable amount. The amount by which these two assumptions would need to change individually in order for the 
estimated recoverable to equal the carrying amount are shown below:

Discount rate – 100%

EBITDA growth rate – (12%)

16. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Balance at beginning of year 4 000 4 000
Fair value adjustment of investment property (1 400) –
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale (2 600) –

Balance at end of the year – 4 000

The investment property portfolio comprised a single piece of land that was held for capital 
appreciation purposes.

Details of valuation

The effective date of the valuation was 31 December 2013. Valuations are performed annually. In 
the current year the valuation was performed independently by Pam Golding Properties Estate 
Agents. In determining the fair value for financial accounting purposes, market values have been 
used. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell the property in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date.

Signifi cant assumptions

The valuation for the investment property was based on current market conditions and property 
sales achieved recently in the Blair Atholl area between a willing buyer and a willing seller in 
an arm’s length transaction. The fair value measurement for the investment property has been 
classified as a level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used.

The investment property is situated at Erf 562 Blair Atholl, Extension 3.

At 31 December 2013 the group agreed in principle to dispose of the subsidiary that held the land. 
As a result of that the land was transferred from investment property to non-current assets held for 
sale. The deal to dispose of the subsidiary had not been finalised at the date of the signing of this 
report.

Level 3 fair value 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for 
level 3 fair values.

Balances at 1 January 2013 4 000 4 000
Loss included in fair value adjustments and impairments 
– changes in fair value (1 400) –
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale (2 600) –

Balance at 31 December 2013 – 4 000

The significant unobservable inputs used were based on the current market conditions and property sales achieved recently. The estimated 
fair value would increase/(decrease) if the expected selling prices were higher/(lower).

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
Balance at 31 December 2011 56 413 41 680 98 093
Reduction in investments in associates (623) – (623)
Disposal of associates * (27 728) (27 728)
Loans advanced – 25 570 25 570
Loans repaid – (4 067) (4 067)

(Impairments)/impairment reversals (933) 2 543 1 610
Equity accounted earnings 17 218 – 17 218
Dividends declared (30 000) – (30 000)

Balance at 31 December 2012 42 075 37 998 80 073

Increase in investments in associates 1 835 – 1 835

Disposal of associates (14 969) – (14 969)

Loans advanced – 16 668 16 668

Loans repaid – (35 186) (35 186)

Transfer to subsidiary (8) (3 894) (3 902)

Impairments – (504) (504)

Impairments reversed – 1 241 1 241

Equity accounted earnings (3 438) – (3 438)

Dividends declared (19 393) – (19 393)

Balance at 31 December 2013 6 102 16 323 22 425

* Amount less the R1 000

Impairments

The group reviews the recoverability of investments in associates and loans to associates annually. Investments in associates and loans to 
associates are impaired if the investee is making losses and the cumulative losses are in excess of the carrying amount of the investment.

The loans to associates have been impaired on the basis that the associates are making losses and the group believes it will not be able to 
recover the loans in the future.

Disposals

The following investments in associates were disposed of in 2013:

– Buttonwood Proprietary Trading Proprietary Limited

– Integrated Managed Investments Proprietary Limited

– Lexshell 638 Investments Proprietary Limited

– Greenstone Hill Offi ce Park Proprietary Limited

Investment in Loans to
Figures in Rand 000’s associate associates Total
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Buttonwood Integrated Greenstone
Proprietary Managed Lexshell 638  Hill

Trading Investments Investments Offi ce Park
Proprietary Proprietary Proprietary Proprietary

Limited Limited Limited Limited Total

Investment in associate * 9 568 5 401 * 14 969
Loans to associates –  313  112 28 413 28 838

Proceeds (670) (10 513) (5 623) (38 151) (54 957)

Profi t on disposal of associates (670) (632) (110) (9 738) (11 150)

* Amount less the R1 000

Credit quality

An analysis of the credit quality of loans to associates not impaired is as follows. 2013 2012

Internal credit ratings
Four or more years trading history with the group 10 877 34 471
Less than four years trading history with the group 5 446 3 527

16 323 37 998

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Current
assets

(including 
cash Non- Non-

Effective and cash current Total Current current Total
Figures in Rand 000's ownership equivalents assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities

at 31 December 2013
Avram International LLC (dormant) 26.0% – – – – – –
Before Sunset Properties 37 Proprietary Limited 25.3% * – – (4) (57) (61)
Black Wattle Colliery Proprietary Limited 37.5% 115 703 118 317 234 020 (146 166) (46 463) (192 629)
Butsanani Energy Investment Holdings 
Proprietary Limited 33.3% 7 496 – 7 496 ( 465) (10 060) (10 525)
English Breeze Investments (Private) Limited** 50.0% –  802  802 – (819) (819)
Glenhove Fund Managers Proprietary Limited 29.6% 1 498 5 850 7 348 (71) (3 086) (3 157)
Loato Properties Proprietary Limited 31.6%  330 7 031 7 361 (1 864) (7 859) (9 723)
Micawber 534 Proprietary Limited * 47.6%  3 –  3 (7) (10 673) (10 680)
Orion Properties 14 Proprietary Limited 39.0% 7 914 18 715 26 629 (2 214) (24 204) (26 418)
Papillon in Flight Proprietary Limited 26.0% – – – – – –
Purpose Vunani Asset Management (Private) 
Limited** 45.0% 2 125 5 820 7 945 – – –
Royal Albatross Properties 379 Proprietary 
Limited 39.0%  527 –  527 (450) (15) (465)
Space Launch Investments (Private) Limited** 50.0% – 1 997 1 997 – (1 997) (1 997)
Vunani Solar Power Proprietary Limited 
(dormant) 26.0% – – – – – –
Wisdom of Africa Proprietary Limited (dormant) 35.0% – – – – – –

135 596 158 532 294 128 (151 241) (105 233) (256 474)

* The company is in the process of being deregistered

** The company is incorporated in Zimbabwe

No impairment has been raised on the loan with Butsanani Energy Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited, as Butsanani is a start up 
mining company which is only expected to generate revenues and profi ts in the future.



ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS
SHAREHOLDER 
INFORMATION

67

REPORTS TO 
STAKEHOLDERS

VUNANI LIMITED Integrated Annual Report 2013

67

VUNANI AT 
A GLANCE

Current
assets

(including 
cash Non- Non-

Effective  and cash current Total Current current Total
Figures in Rand 000's ownership  equivalents assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities

at 31 December 2012
Avram International LLC (dormant) 26.0% – – – – – –
Baycove Properties 2 Proprietary Limited * 35.1%  60 –  60 (59) – (59)
Before Sunset Properties 37 Proprietary Limited 25.3% – – – (62) – (62)
Black Wattle Colliery Proprietary Limited 37.5% 104 537 119 259 223 796 (141 729) (40 517) (182 246)
Buttonwood Proprietary Trading 
Proprietary Limited 40.0% – – – – – –
Glenhove Fund Managers Proprietary Limited 29.6%  366 7 242 7 608 (698) (2 375) (3 073)
Greenstone Hill Offi ce Park Proprietary Limited 31.2% 1 720 207 356 209 076 (552) (190 793) (191 345)
Integrated Managed Investments 
Proprietary Limited 48.0% 2 480  85 2 565 – (2 517) (2 517)
Lexshell 638 Investments Proprietary Limited 39.0% 53 950 14 067 68 017 (7 830) (34 397) (42 227)
Loato Properties Proprietary Limited 31.6% 16 057 – 16 057 (4 590) (9 711) (14 301)
Micawber 534 Proprietary Limited * 47.6%  4 –  4 (10 680) – (10 680)
Orion Properties 14 Proprietary Limited 39.0% 89 994  27 90 021 (86 301) – (86 301)
Papillon in Flight Proprietary Limited 26.0% – – – – – –
Royal Albatross Properties 379 
Proprietary Limited 39.0% 90 890 – 90 890 (20 012) (59 295) (79 307)
Vunani Capital Zimbabwe (Private) Limited** 49.0%  180  993 1 173 (3 705) – (3 705)
Vunani Private Client Holdings Proprietary Limited 40.0% 3 223  169 3 392 (1 386) (1 286) (2 672)
Vunani Solar Power Proprietary Limited (dormant) 26.0% – – – – – –
Wisdom of Africa Proprietary Limited (dormant) 35.0% – – – – – –

363 461 349 198 712 659 (277 604) (340 891) (618 495)

*    In the process of being deregistered

** The company is incorporated in Zimbabwe

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
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Cumulative
equity

earnings Net
Profit/ Cost of Loans to net of carrying

Figures in Rand 000's Revenue (loss) investment associates Impairments dividends amount

for the year ended 31 December 2013
Avram International LLC (Note 1) – – 1 833 – – – 1 833
Before Sunset Properties 37 Proprietary 
Limited –  1 * – – – –
Black Wattle Colliery Proprietary Limited 38 474 (1 737) – – – – –
Butsanani Energy Investment Holdings 
Proprietary Limited – (3 030) * 3 323 – – 3 323
English Breeze Investments (Private) Limited*** – (18)  1 – – –  1
Glenhove Fund Managers Proprietary Limited 1 144 (134) 1 150  499 (772) (117)  760
Loato Properties Proprietary Limited – (1 094) * 3 848 –  247 4 095
Micawber 534 Proprietary Limited ** – – * 5 160 (5 160)  71  71
Orion Properties 14 Proprietary Limited – – * 6 934 –  106 7 040
Papillon in Flight Proprietary Limited – – 3 191 – (3 191) – –
Purpose Vunani Asset Management (Private) 
Limited*** 6 553  11 1 833  126 – – 1 959
Royal Albatross Properties 379 Proprietary 
Limited 8 480 (26)  711  15 (711)  30  45
Space Launch Investments (Private) Limited*** – *  1 1 997 – – 1 998
Vunani Solar Power Proprietary Limited (Note 1) – – 1 300 – – – 1 300
Wisdom of Africa Proprietary Limited (dormant) – – – – – – –

54 651 (6 027) 10 020 21 902 (9 834)  337 22 425

*    Less than R1 000

**  The company is in the process of being deregistered

*** The company is incorporated in Zimbabwe

Note 1 – acquired in terms of vendor financed transaction (refer to note 29 for corresponding liability)

A reconciliation of the movements in associates is shown below:

Investment Loans to
at cost associates Total

Investment at cost and loans to associates 10 020 21 902 31 922
Cumulative impairments (4 255) (5 579) (9 834)
Cumulative equity earnings net of dividends  337 –  337

6 102 16 323 22 425

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Cumulative
equity

earnings
Profi t/ Cost of Loans to net of Carrying

Figures in Rand 000's Revenue (loss) investment associates Impairments dividends amount

at 31 December 2012
Avram International LLC (Note 1) – – 1 833 – – – 1 833
Baycove Properties 2 Proprietary Limited  6  17 –  46 (46) – –
Before Sunset Properties 37 
Proprietary Limited – (7) * – – – –
Black Wattle Colliery Proprietary Limited 460 479 22 352 – – – – –
Buttonwood Proprietary Trading 
Proprietary Limited – –  933 – (933) – –
Glenhove Fund Managers Proprietary Limited 2 952  24 1 150  499 – (471) 1 178
Greenstone Hill Offi ce Park 
Proprietary Limited 48 036 27 105 * 20 460 – 7 093 27 553
Integrated Managed Investments 
Proprietary Limited 7 687 (4) 9 329  313 –  2 9 644
Lexshell 638 Investments Proprietary Limited 5 305 3 811 *  850 – 12 899 13 749
Loato Properties Proprietary Limited – 4 447  1 3 748 –  528 4 277
Micawber 534 Proprietary Limited ** – – * 5 160 (5 160)  72  72
Orion Properties 14 Proprietary Limited 160 359 4 261 – 9 855 – 1 899 11 754
Papillon in Flight Proprietary Limited – – 3 191 – (3 191) – –
Royal Albatross Properties 379 
Proprietary Limited 88 141 10 054  711  8 – 5 700 6 419
Vunani Capital Zimbabwe (Private) Limited***  361 (3 184)  8 3 527 (1 241) – 2 294
Vunani Private Client Holdings 
Proprietary Limited 11 676 (1 625) – – – – –
Vunani Solar Power Proprietary Limited (Note 1) – – 1 300 – – – 1 300
Wisdom of Africa Proprietary Limited 
(dormant) – – – – – – –

785 002 67 251 18 456 44 466 (10 571) 27 722 80 073

*    Less than R 1000

**  The company is in the process of being deregistered

*** The company is incorporated in Zimbabwe

Note 1 – acquired in terms of vendor financed transaction (refer to note 29 for corresponding liability)

A reconciliation of the movements in associates is shown below:

Investment Loans to
at cost associates Total

Investment at cost and loans to associates 18 456 44 466 62 922
Impairments (4 103) (6 468) (10 571)
Cumulative equity earnings net of dividends 27 722 – 27 722

42 075 37 998 80 073
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

All associates are incorporated in the Republic of South Africa, with the exception of Purpose Vunani Asset Management (Private) Limited, 
English Breeze Investments (Private) Limited and Space Launch Investments (Private) Limited. The carrying amounts of associates are 
shown net of impairment losses. The group cannot withdraw cash from the associates until such time as the funding to the associates 
has been repaid. The following associates have different year ends to the group, and are equity accounted on the basis of the associates' 
December 2013 fi nancial information:

– Glenhove Fund Managers Proprietary Limited

– English Breeze Investments Private Limited

– Space Launch Investments Private Limited

The group has accounted for losses incurred by associates to the extent of investments made. The group has not recognised losses relating 
to the following associates in 2013, since the group has no obligation in respect of these losses:

The group's share of associates' losses in excess of the carrying value of the investment

Current year losses Cumulative losses
Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012 2013 2012

Butsanani Energy Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited 1 009 – 1 009 –
Vunani Capital Zimbabwe (Private) Limited*** –  436 –  436
Vunani Private Client Holdings Proprietary Limited –  650 –  650

1 009 1 086 1 009 1 086

Below is a description of the nature of the operations and activities of associates:

Associate Nature of operations and activities

Avram International LLC (dormant) Dormant entity

Before Sunset Properties 37 Proprietary Limited Dormant entity

Black Wattle Colliery Proprietary Limited Mining operations

Butsanani Energy Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited Mining operations

English Breeze Investments (Private) Limited*** Investment holding company

Glenhove Fund Managers Proprietary Limited Private equity fund management 

Loato Properties Proprietary Limited Investment holding company

Micawber 534 Proprietary Limited Dormant entity

Orion Properties 14 Proprietary Limited Property development projects

Papillon in Flight Proprietary Limited Dormant entity

Purpose Vunani Asset Management (Private) Limited*** Asset management 

Royal Albatross Properties 379 Proprietary Limited Property development projects

Space Launch Investments (Private) Limited*** Investment holding company

Vunani Solar Power Proprietary Limited (dormant) Dormant entity

The following associates were deregistered in the current year:

– Baycove Properties 2 Proprietary Limited 

*** The company is incorporated in Zimbabwe
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19. OTHER INVESTMENTS 
Balance at beginning of year 152 241 419 668
Fair value adjustments 19 247 15 009
Additions 9 252 –
Disposals (65 423) (190 101)
Other investments declared as in-specie dividends to non-controlling shareholders – (12 901)
Other investments used to settle other fi nancial liabilities – (79 434)

Balance at end of year 115 317 152 241

Less:

Non-current 115 317 73 728
Current – 78 513

Disposals

During the year, the group disposed of a signifi cant portion of its other investments. The proceeds from the disposals were used to repay 
debt in the group.

INVESTMENTS
Number of

shares held

(000s) % holding Listed Unlisted Fair value

At 31 December 2013
Non-current
African Legends Limited 2 248 2.40% – * *

Arrowhead Limited 214 0.10% 1 474 – 1 474

BSI Limited 20 150 2.80% 14 914 – 14 914

Esor Limited 7 305 1.80% 5 552 – 5 552

Gidani Proprietary Limited ** * 10.80% – 6 971 6 971

Johannesburg Stock Exchange Limited 228 0.30% 20 501 – 20 501

Solethu Investments Proprietary Limited 23 881 15.00% – 26 418 26 418

Redefine Properties Limited 1 358 0.05% 13 231 – 13 231

Portfolios managed by Vunani Hedge Funds 
Proprietary Limited * * – 1 534 1 534

Listed portfolios managed by Vunani Private Clients 
Proprietary Limited * * 3 118 – 3 118

Virimai Investments Private Limited * 15.00% –  154  154

Workforce Holdings Limited 42 900 17.90% 21 450 – 21 450

80 240 35 077 115 317

*  Less than 1000 or R1 000

** Any investment revenue received until 31 May 2015 from the investment has been pledged to Investec Bank Limited (refer to note 29.9).

Figures in Rand 000’s 2013 2012
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The fair value of unlisted investments is determined using appropriate valuation techniques that may include, but are not limited to, 
discounted cash fl ow analysis, current and projected net asset value calculations, earnings multiples and directors' valuations. The fair value 
of Gidani Proprietary Limited is determined using cash fl ows based on future dividends that will be paid using an after tax discount rate. 
Solethu Investments Proprietary Limited’s valuation was determined using earnings multiples on sustainable after tax earnings. As with any 
valuation a degree of subjective judgement is involved.

The fair values of listed investments is determined with reference to quoted bid prices at the close of business on the relevant securities 
exchange. Both the listed and unlisted investments are designated at fair value through profi t or loss. 

INVESTMENTS RELATED BORROWINGS
Number of Secured by Secured

shares held Total underlying by group
Figures in Rand 000's (000s) % holding Listed Unlisted Fair value borrowings investment companies

At 31 December 2012
Non-current
African Legends Limited 2 248 2.40% – * * – – –
BSI Limited 20 150 2.80% 10 800 – 10 800 – – –
Esor Limited 7 660 1.94% 10 187 – 10 187 – – –
Gidani Proprietary 
Limited *** * 10.80% – 13 022 13 022 – – –
Johannesburg Stock 
Exchange Limited 228 0.30% 17 839 – 17 839 – – –
Qphoto Investment – 0.00% – – * – – –
Solethu Investments 
Proprietary Limited 15 900 15.00% –  2  2 – – –
Workforce Holdings 
Limited 42 900 17.90% 21 878 – 21 878 – – –

60 704 13 024 73 728 – – –

Current
Arrowhead Limited 505 0.20% 3 313 – 3 313 – – –
Redefi ne Properties 
Limited ** 8 000 0.30% 75 200 – 75 200 (62 145) (62 145) –

78 513 – 78 513 (62 145) (62 145) –

139 217 13 024 152 241 (62 145) (62 145) –

*      Less than 1000 or R1 000

**   The proceeds on the disposal of the investment will be utilised to settle the corresponding liability.

*** Any investment revenue received until 31 May 2015 from the investment has been pledged to Investec Bank Limited (refer to note 29.9).

19. OTHER INVESTMENTS (continued)
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Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

20. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax comprises
Deferred tax assets 40 397 40 917
Deferred tax liabilities (4 061) (8 610)

36 336 32 307

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities comprise
Fair value adjustments 7 983 5 647
Intangible assets (1 466) (3 325)
Trade and other receivables  50  112
Provisions 3 110 3 704
Tax losses carried forward 26 719 26 228
Prepayments (60) (59)

36 336 32 307

Reconciliation of movement in deferred tax
Balance at the beginning of the year 32 307 47 102
Recognised in profi t or loss 3 960 (14 550)
Acquired through business combination  69 –
Disposals of subsidiary – (245)

Balance at the end of the year 36 336 32 307

Deferred tax assets acquired through business combination relate to leave pay provision.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Estimated tax losses available for utilisation against future taxable income 152 909 123 440

Recognised as deferred tax assets (95 425) (93 671)

Unrecognised estimated tax losses carried forward not accounted for in deferred tax 57 484 29 769

Estimated capital tax losses available for utilisation against future taxable income 323 269 54 011
Recognised as deferred tax assets – –

Unrecognised estimated capital tax losses carried forward not accounted for in deferred tax 323 269 54 011

The group has recognised certain deferred tax assets as they are expected to be utilised against future taxable profi ts. The basis of future 
taxable profi ts has been established through a detailed budgeting process performed by the group. The group's budgeting process is 
based on a bottom up approach. Each operating entity in the group has its own detailed monthly budget for the next year. The budgets also 
include forecasts for the next three years, which are adjusted for expected increases in revenues for the forecasted years. These are then 
incorporated to create a group budget.

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax assets have in instances not been recognised 
in respect of estimated tax losses carried forward because it is not probable that future taxable profi t will be available against which the 
group can utilise the benefi ts there from.
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21. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2013
Balance at the beginning of the year 5 219 14 759 19 978

Additions 2 220 – 2 220

Acquired through business combination  129 –  129

Interest  582 –  582

Repayments (186) – (186)

Impairment (refer to note 10) (3 576) – (3 576)

Fair value adjustment (refer to note 10) – 4 087 4 087

Movement between fair value of option and deferred income – 3 575 3 575

Balance at the end of the year 4 388 22 421 26 809

2012
Balance at the beginning of the year 1 136 3 573 4 709
Additions 3 950 – 3 950
Interest  133 –  133
Fair value adjustment (refer to note 10) – 7 615 7 615
Movement between fair value of option and deferred income – 3 571 3 571

Balance at the end of the year 5 219 14 759 19 978

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

Non-current
Black Wattle Option 22 421 14 759
Other loans 2 937 1 225

25 358 15 984

Current
Other loans 1 451 3 994

Total 26 809 19 978

Other loans
C4Life Proprietary Limited 3 128 3 994

   Non-current 6 384 3 994
   Current  320 –
   Impairment (3 576) –

The loan bears interest at the prime rate, is secured by a cession of book debts in the company and 
is repayable in tranches up to 1 January 2017. 

RRL Holdings Proprietary Limited 1 131 1 225

The loan bears interest at the prime rate, is unsecured and is repayable on 30 July 2014.

Kirloska Investments (Private) Limited  129 –

The loan is unsecured and bears no interest.

4 388 5 219

Black Wattle

Figures in Rand 000’s Other loans Option Total
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21. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Black Wattle Option 

During the 2010 fi nancial year, Vunani Mining Proprietary Limited (“Vunani Mining”), a subsidiary of 
Vunani Limited, obtained a 37.5% interest in Black Wattle through a vendor fi nanced transaction. 
The 37.5% shareholding consists of 22.5% A ordinary shares and 15% ordinary shares. Vunani 
Mining has classifi ed this investment as an associate as it has the ability to exercise signifi cant 
infl uence in the company.

Vunani Mining is not entitled to share in the economic benefi ts of ownership until such time as the 
debt associated with the acquisition is settled. The debt would be redeemed through dividends 
received by Vunani Mining on the A ordinary shares. Cash fl ows relating to the 15% ordinary shares 
will be paid to Vunani Mining. The risks and rewards of ownership have not passed to Vunani Mining 
and accordingly Vunani Limited equity accounts 0% of Black Wattle in profi t or loss.

Vunani Mining benefi ts from the upside of the investment being dividends and the capital growth; 
however, it does not bear the downside of the risk. The substance of the transaction is a call option 
with dividend rights. Vunani Mining has therefore recognised an in-substance call option.

The option is a derivative fi nancial instrument as defi ned by IFRS classifi ed at fair value through profi t 
or loss. The derivative is measured initially at fair value and subsequently at fair value with changes in 
fair value recognised in profi t or loss.

On day 1 in 2010, the fair value of the in-substance call option was signifi cantly greater than the 
R375 that was paid. The fair value amounted to R17.9 million. Since only R375 was paid, this would 
results in a day one gain of R17.9 million. 

IAS 39 does not permit a day 1 gain to be recognised in profi t or loss if the fair value of the asset 
is not based on a valuation technique that uses data from only observable inputs. The valuation 
technique used was the Monte-Carlo Simulation technique, which includes unobservable inputs. 
Accordingly the day one profi t of R17.9 million could not be recognised immediately in profi t or loss. 
This resulted in an unrecognised day 1 gain of R17.9 million which is recognised in profi t or loss over 
a fi ve year period.

Fair value of option to acquire investment in Black Wattle Colliery Proprietary Limited 29 568 25 481
Unrecognised fair value gain (7 147) (10 720)

Carrying value at year end 22 421 14 761

Unrecognised fair value gain reconciliation
Unrecognised fair value gain on day 1 17 864 17 864
Unrecognised fair value gain recognised – prior years (7 142) (3 573)
Unrecognised fair value gain recognised – current year (3 575) (3 571)

Unrecognised fair value gain at year end 7 147 10 720

The option is revalued six monthly, with any movements in the value of the option after acquisition being taken to profi t or loss for the period. 

Level 3 Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement for the derivative fi nancial instrument has been classifi ed as a level 3 fair value based on the inputs of the 
valuation technique used (refer to note 46.5).

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade debtors 16 484 12 401
Sundry accounts receivable 15 250 15 306
Allowance for impairment (1 005) (1 939)

30 729 25 768

Reconciliation of movement in allowance for impairment
Balance at the beginning of the year (1 939) (3 706)
Utilised – 1 749
Decrease/(increase) in impairment allowance  934  18

Balance at the end of the year (1 005) (1 939)

Factors considered in impairment 
The group reviews accounts receivables monthly. Unless customers have good payment records an 
impairment allowance is created at 50% of accounts older than 60 days and 100% of accounts older 
than 90 days.
Ageing of trade and other receivables
Not past due 25 034 24 756
Past due 1 – 30 days 5 549  348
Past due 31 – 60 days  93  487
Past due 61 – 90 days  105  354
Past due 91 days and greater  953 1 762

31 734 27 707

Impairment allowance
Past due 61 – 90 days (52) (177)
Past due 91 days and greater (953) (1762)

(1 005) (1 939)

An analysis of the credit quality of trade and other receivables not impaired is as follows.
Internal credit ratings
Four or more years trading history with the group 7 948 18 640
Less than four years trading history with the group 22 781 7 128

30 729 25 768

22. NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE
During the year the group made a decision to dispose of its investment in Selectria Investments 49 Proprietary Limited (“Selectria”) and the 
property asset management business in Vunani Property Asset Management Proprietary Limited (“VPAM”), which fall under the Properties 
Development and Investments segment and the Properties Asset Management segment respectively. The investment in Selectria and the 
assets and liabilities related to the sale of VPAM’s business have been presented as a disposal group held for sale. The disposal of Selectria 
is expected to be concluded during the 2014 financial year, while the sale of VPAM’s business was concluded on 28 February 2014. 
At 31 December 2013 the disposal group was stated at fair value less cost to sell and consisted of assets of R2.6 million less liabilities 
of R2.5 million.

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

As at 31 December 2013 the non-current assets and liabilities held for sale were detailed as follows:
Assets classifi ed as held for sale
Investment property 2 600 –
Trade and other receivables  33 –

Cash and cash equivalents  1 –

2 634 –

Liabilities classifi ed as held for sale
Other financial liabilities 2 450 –
Trade and other payables  29 –

2 479 –

Fair value hierarchy
The non-recurring fair value measurement for the disposal group of R0.155 million has been 
categorised as a level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used 
(refer to note 17).
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES

Accounts receivable from trading activities
Trading debtors 113 077 199 412
Prepaid expenses –  217

113 077 199 629

Accounts payable from trading activities
Accounts payable 112 941 200 373

These amounts arise primarily from securities trading activities that the group, through its subsidiary Vunani Securities Proprietary Limited 
("Vunani Securities"), carries out on behalf of its clients. 

The accounts receivable from stockbroking activities represents amounts due from clients for the purchases of equities and the accounts 
payable from stockbroking activities represents amounts due to clients for sales of equities. No set off of receivables and payables is 
permitted as Vunani Securities has no legal right to do so as the transactions are with different counterparties with differing settlement dates.

Vunani Securities must ensure the settlement of all transactions executed by them on behalf of clients. The Settlement Authority (which 
is a separate entity established in terms of the JSE Rules and Directives ) is responsible for the management of the settlement of these 
transactions and the management of the risks associated with such settlement.

Both Vunani Securities and the Settlement Authority monitor settlements and ensure that the obligation of members and their clients are 
met on settlement date. The Settlement Authority monitors uncommitted settlements (i.e. trades where there is either insufficient cash or 
dematerialised scrip to facilitate settlement) and has the authority to take all necessary action when the settlement of a transaction in equity 
securities is unlikely to take place on settlement date. The Settlement Authority has the ability to buy and sell equity securities as well as 
borrow cash as agent on behalf a member to ensure settlement.

Vunani Securities is protected by a clause in its controlled account mandate which states that where the controlled client fails to put the 
member in a position before the required time to settle the transaction on settlement day, the controlled client will forfeit any rights the client 
may have had in respect of the said transaction. The clause also states that the client shall remain liable for any losses, costs and charges 
incurred or charges imposed by the member which affect the said transaction. This is covered in the material obligations section of the 
controlled account mandate signed by the client.

In addition, Vunani Securities ensures that no purchase transaction takes place unless the controlled client has sufficient funds in their 
account, which are held at JSE Trustees, and on the sell side, that the client has sufficient equity securities in dematerialised form before a 
sale is executed.

2013 2012

25. TRADING SECURITIES
Trading securities receivable (held for trading)  320 1 564

 320 1 564

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents 42 271 29 378
Bank overdraft (2 911) (2 834)

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 39 360 26 544

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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27. STATED CAPITAL, SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

Authorised 
200 000 000 Ordinary shares of no par value – –
99 000 Redeemable preference shares of R0.01 each  1  1

 1  1

Issued 
105 414 649 ordinary shares of no par value 610 088 610 088
Treasury shares (refer to note 40) (15 265) (14 899)

594 823 595 189

The company reacquired R0.37 million (2012: R0.62 million) worth of shares that were issued in 2011 
for the acquisition of an associate. The group has disposed of its investment in that associate during 
the year.

Reconciliation of movement in number of shares issued (000s): 
Reported at the beginning of the year 105 415 5 270 732

Share consolidation – (5 165 317)

Balance at end of year 105 415 105 415

Unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors in terms of a resolution of members 
passed at the last annual general meeting. This authority remains in force until the next annual 
general meeting.

The authorised share capital at 31 December 2013 was 200 million ordinary shares of no par value 
(2012: 200 million ordinary shares of no par value.)

Reconciliation of movement in share capital (Rand 000s): 
Reported at the beginning of the year –  527

Converted to no par value shares – (527)

Balance at end of year – –

Reconciliation of movement in share premium (Rand 000s): 
Reported at the beginning of the year – 609 561

Converted to no par value shares – (609 561)

Balance at end of year – –

Reconciliation of movement in stated capital (Rand 000s): 
Reported at the beginning of the year 610 088 –
Converted from par value shares – 610 088

Balance at end of year 610 088 610 088

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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28. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

A group share scheme was introduced in June 2011, whereby employees were entitled to 
receive shares in the Company upon vesting (which takes place over a four year service period). 
At 31 December 2013, 45% of the shares issued in Grant 1 had vested and 20% of the shares 
issued in Grant 2 had vested. 

Share based payment reserve 10 256 5 906

Share option programme (equity-settled)

Grant 1

At 29 June 2011 the company implemented the following share-
based payment arrangements:

Grant date Vesting dates 
29 June 2011 1st Tranche 2nd Tranche 3rd Tranche 4th Tranche 

29 June 2012 29 June 2013 29 June 2014 29 June 2015
(20% Vesting) (25% Vesting) (25% vesting) (30% vesting)

The options outstanding under Grant 1 at 31 December have a weighted average exercise price of R3.00 and a weighted average 
contractual life of 4 years.

2013 2012
Number Number

 of options of options

Balance at beginning of year 3 861 4 385
Granted during the year – –
Forfeited during the year (569) (524)

Balance at end of year 3 292 3 861

Exercisable at 31 December 2013 1 634  841

Grant 2
At 28 December 2012 the company implemented the following 
share-based payment arrangements:

Grant date Vesting dates 
28 December 2012 1st Tranche 2nd Tranche 3rd Tranche 4th Tranche 

28 December 
2013

28 December 
2014

28 December 
2015

28 December 
2016

(20% Vesting) (25% Vesting) (25% vesting) (30% vesting)

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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28. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

2013 2012
Number of 

options
Number of 

options

Balance at beginning of year 3 359 –
Granted during the year – 3 359
Forfeited during the year (50) –

Balance at end of year 3 309 3 359

Exercisable at 31 December 2013  662 –

The options outstanding at 31 December have an exercise price of R1.48 and a weighted average 
contractual life of 4 years.

Inputs for measurement of grant date fair value

The benefit accrued per grant to an employee on exercise date under the share scheme is the 
difference between the spot share price at the time and the higher of the strike price and zero. The 
fair value of the benefits granted to an employee prior to exercise can be calculated using a call 
option model.

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

Fair value of share options and assumptions
Fair value at grant date 1 (29 June 2011) 14 277 14 277
Fair value at grant date 2 (28 December 2012) 4 971 4 971
Share price at grant date 1 (exercise price) R 3.00 R 3.00
Share price at grant date 2 (exercise price) R 1.48 R 1.48
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) – grant date 1 152.23% 152.23%
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) – grant date 2 119.34% 119.34%
Option Life 4 years 4 years
Assumed dividends payable 0% 0%
Risk free interest rate (ZAR zero coupon swap curve) 5.52% 5.52%

Employee Expenses R'000 R'000

Share options granted in 2011 2 524 2 524
Share options granted in 2012 3 382 3 382
Share options granted in 2013 4 350 –

Total expense recognised as employee costs 10 256 5 906

Volatility is determined based on the daily returns of the company's share price under the assumption that the share price returns are 
log-normally distributed. 

The equally weighted volatility as at 29 June 2011 was calculated as 152.23%. The amount of history preceding 29 June 2011 that was 
used to calculate the volatility equals the term of the option. 

The equally weighted volatility as at 28 December 2012 was calculated as 119.34%. The amount of history preceding 28 December 2012 
that was used to calculate the volatility equals the term of the option.
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29. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Other fi nancial liabilities comprise:
Carried at amortised cost 46 504 51 586

Capital 45 836 50 710
Accrued interest  668  876

Carried at fair value through profi t or loss 6 971 77 140

Capital – 52 055
Accrued interest – 5 559
Fair value adjustments 6 971 19 526

53 475 128 726

Reconciliation of movement of other fi nancial liabilities
Balance at the beginning of the year 128 726 401 725
Accrued interest 4 890 48 845
Advances  107 9 516
Transfers to trade and other payables (1 349) –
Transfers to non-current assets held for sale (2 450) –
Acquired through business combination 1 340 –
Repayments (78 414) (200 999)
Disposals – (31 375)
Settled – (79 434)
Fair value adjustments through profi t or loss  625 (19 552)

Balance at end of year 53 475 128 726

Reconciliation of cumulative fair value adjustments
Balance at beginning of year 19 526 (208 474)
Fair value adjustments through profi t or loss  625 (19 552)
Settled (13 180) 247 552

Balance at end of year 6 971 19 526

Carried at amortised cost

29.1 Development Bank of South Africa
Redeemable, cumulative debentures in Vunani Capital Proprietary Limited, with fi xed interest at 
9.09%, secured by the investment in Pacifi c Heights Investments 118 Proprietary Limited and the 
investment in Redefi ne Properties Limited. The debentures are redeemable on 30 September 2020. 29 829 32 459

Capital 29 161 31 592
Accrued interest  668  867

29.2 Force Holding Limited
Cumulative redeemable participating preference shares in Verbicept Proprietary Limited which are 
interest free. Capital is repayable from dividends from Workforce Holdings Limited as and when 
dividends are declared by Workforce Holdings Limited. No dividends are expected from Workforce 
Holdings Limited in 2014 and the liability is therefore classifi ed as non-current.

Capital 9 000 9 000

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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29.9 Investec Bank Limited
This represents the value of the liability payable to Investec in respect of investment 
income received from Gidani Proprietary Limited until 31 May 2015. This liability is 
repayable on 31 May 2015. 6 971 13 022

Capital – –
Fair value adjustment (refer to note 19) 6 971 13 022

29. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

29.3 Rand Merchant Bank Limited development bond
Bond over Erf 562 Blair Athol extension 3 over land (investment property) in Selectria 
Investments 49 Proprietary Limited with interest at bank facility rate less 0.35% repayable in 
20 years from 12 January 2009 on 12 January 2029. The loan was transferred to non-current 
liabilities held for sale at 31 December 2013. – 2 466

Capital – 2 457
Accrued interest –  9

29.4 Vendor fi nanced loan– Avram International LLC 1 833 1 833
This loan relates to the acquisition cost of the investment in Avram International LLC. This liability 
is unsecured, interest free and will be repaid using the dividends from Avram International LLC. 
No dividends are expected from Avram International LLC in 2014 and the liability is therefore 
classifi ed as non-current.

29.5 Vendor fi nanced loan – Vunani Solar Power Proprietary Limited 1 300 1 300
This loan relates to the acquisition cost of the investment in Vunani Solar Power Proprietary Limited. 
This liability is unsecured, interest free and will be repaid using the dividends from Vunani Solar 
Power Proprietary Limited. No dividends are expected from Vunani Solar Power Proprietary Limited 
in 2014 and the liability is therefore classifi ed as non-current.

29.6 Peligro Trust 1 340 –

This loan arose as a result of business combination when the group increased its stake in Vunani 
Private Clients Proprietary Limited from 40% to 51%. The loan is unsecured, bears no interest and 
is repayable in two years time.

Capital 1 340 –

29.7 Other fi nancial liabilities 3 202 4 528
Loans are unsecured, interest free and have no fi xed term of repayment. The amount 
consists of a number of small individual liabilities.

Total carried at amortised cost 46 504 51 586

Carried at fair value through profi t or loss on initial recognition

29.8 First National Bank Limited

 The loan was repaid on 22 February 2013. – 52 043

Capital – 46 400
Accrued interest – 1 347
Fair value adjustment – 4 296

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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29.10 Redefi ne Properties Limited
The loan was repaid on 22 February 2013. – 1 973

Capital – –
Fair value adjustment – 1 973

29.11 Standard Bank Limited
The loan was repaid on 22 February 2013. – 10 102

Capital – 5 655
Accrued interest – 4 212
Fair value adjustment –  235

Total carried at fair value through profi t or loss 6 971 77 140

Total fi nancial liabilities 53 475 128 726
Less current fi nancial liabilities (7 870) (68 646)

Non-current fi nancial liabilities 45 605 60 080

Ring-fenced structured entities have historically been used to house the groups' geared equity investments and any fi nancial liabilities that 
relate to such investments. Financial assets and liabilities that arise in terms of these ring-fenced structures are both fair valued through 
profi t or loss in terms of IAS 39.

The fair value adjustments that relate specifi cally to fi nancial liabilities are not as a result of the group's inability to discharge its obligation, 
but rather in terms of the agreements with its lenders. The terms of the fi nancial liabilities are such that in the event that the fair value 
of the asset falls below the face value of the liability, the group is not obligated to pay the full face value of the debt, but rather a value 
that is directly linked to the value of the related asset. The full fair value adjustment is considered to be as a result of a change in market 
conditions and no portion relates to changes in the group's own credit risk.

30. TAX PAYABLE
Current tax (receivable)/ payable (852) 3 387
Dividends withholding tax (payable as a result of securities broking activities) 7 712 4 526
Securities transfer tax (payable as a result of securities broking activities) 1 995 2 143

8 855 10 056

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 3 388 2 604
Other payables 13 869 10 911
Accrued expenses 15 947 9 475
Value added tax 3 743  520
Accrued leave pay 2 327 2 351

39 274 25 861

32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Defi ned contribution plan

It is the policy of the group to provide retirement benefits to all its employees through a defined contribution provident fund, which is 
subject to the Pension Funds Act of 1956. The Group is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits. 

Employees make an election to join the provident fund and their contributions to the fund are included with staff costs as detailed 
in note 11.

29. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
Carried at fair value through profi t or loss on initial recognition (continued)

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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33. CASH UTILISED BY OPERATIONS
Profit before income tax expense from continuing operations 8 248 27 993
Profit before income tax expense from discontinuing operations 2 489 3 322
Adjusted for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment 1 962 1 885
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment –  53
Profit on disposal of businesses (19) (5 907)
Fair value adjustments on investment property 1 400 –
Equity accounted earnings 3 438 (17 218)
Net impairment of investment and loans in associates (737) (1 610)
Profit on disposal of associates (11 150) –
Fair value adjustments on other investments (19 247) (15 009)
Fair value adjustments on options (4 087) (7 615)
Impairment of non-current assets 3 576 –
Amortisation of intangible assets  489  977
Realisation of deferred income (3 575) (3 571)
Rental guarantee reversal (9) (1 662)
Movement in impairment allowance ( 934) (18)
Share based payments expense 4 350 3 382
Foreign currency translation (813)  198
Fair value adjustments on other financial liabilities  625 (19 552)
Investment revenue (10 469) (2 355)
Interest received from investments (2 733) (22 557)
Finance income (2 404) (1 007)
Finance costs (continuing and discontinued operations) 5 353 48 845
Prior period effect of consolidating Vunani Capital Zimbabwe (Private) Limited in 2013 in terms of 
IFRS 10 (refer to note 39) 2 853 –

Cash utilised by operations before changes in working capital (21 394) (11 426)

Changes in working capital:
Increase in trade and other receivables (692) (3 379)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 5 789 (19 674)
Decrease/ (increase) in trading securities 1 244 (793)
Decrease in accounts receivable and payable from trading activities 2 158 13 644

Cash utilised by operations (12 895) (21 628)

Figures in Rand 000's 2013
Re-presented

2012
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34. INCOME TAX PAID
Payable at beginning of the year (3 387) (291)
Current year tax charge – continuing operations (5 513) (4 090)
Current year tax charge – discontinued operations (878) (920)
(Receivable)/payable at end of the year (refer to note 30) (852) 3 387

(10 630) (1 914)

35. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

Vunani Private Clients Proprietary Limited

On 1 May 2013, Vunani increased its investment in Vunani Private Clients Proprietary Limited (“VPC”) from 40% to 51% for a nominal 
amount. The 40% shareholding was previously held indirectly through Vunani Private Client Holdings Proprietary Limited (“VPCH”), which 
owned 100% of VPC. VPCH sold 51% of its shareholding in VPC to Vunani and 49% to the non-controlling interests.

The carrying amount of the investment in VPC by VPCH was a nominal amount. At acquisition date, the net asset value of VPC was R 
4.310 and R2.1 million was allocated to the non-controlling interest. Since acquisition, an after tax loss of R0.6m has been included in 
Vunani’s profit or loss. R0.3m of this loss is attributable to non-controlling interests. If the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the 
year, an after tax profit of R0.03m would have been included in Vunani’s profit or loss. R0.01m of this profit would have been attributable to 
non-controlling shareholders’ interests. R7.624 million has been included in Vunani's revenue since the acquisition of VPC. A purchase price 
allocation in terms of IFRS 3 is presented below.

The acquisition resulted in the recognition of intangible assets of R2.2 million at acquisition date. These are attributable to VPC having an 
existing client base and the ability to secure a number of additional clients through their business activities, which are expected to result 
in revenue streams in the future. VPC has significant trading platforms in place, which will enable it to service the expected increase in the 
client base with ease.

Trade receivables acquired are at fair value and are expected to be collected in their entirety. No contingent liabilities arose as a result of the 
business combination. The valuation of the non-controlling interest was based on the net asset value of VPC at acquisition date.

At the date of acquisition, the fair value of the previously held interest was valued at nil, and no gains and losses were realised on that date.

The values of the net assets in terms of the business combination are presented below:

Figures in Rand 000's 2013

Net assets acquired

Plant and equipment  254

Intangible assets 2 207

Deferred tax asset  69

Trade and other receivables 2 728

Cash and cash equivalents  124

Other financial liabilities (1 340)

Trade and other payables (6 154)

Non-controlling interest 2 112

Purchase price –

Transaction between shareholders recognised directly in equity –

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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36. INCREASE IN INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Vunani Technology Ventures Proprietary Limited 

During the year, the group acquired an additional 25% in Jala Group Proprietary Limited (trading as Vunani Technology Ventures Proprietary 
Limited) for a nominal consideration. This resulted in the group increasing it's shareholding from 75% to 100%. The non-controlling's share 
of net assets at the date of acquisition was R 0.134 million. 

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

Net assets acquired  134  118
Purchase price * *

Transaction between shareholders recognised directly in equity  134  118

* less than R1 000

There have been no changes in groups ownership of subsidiaries that resulted in a loss of control of 
subsidiaries.

37. DECREASE IN INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 

Vunani Fund Managers Proprietary Limited

On 28 February 2013, the group disposed of 2% of its investment in Vunani Fund Managers 
Proprietary Limited ("VFM") for a consideration of R0.132 million to non-controlling interest. This 
resulted in the group decreasing its shareholding in VFM from 97.5% to 95.5%. 

Net assets disposed of  12 –
Purchase price (132) –

Transaction between shareholders recognised directly in equity (120) –

Vunani Hedge Funds Proprietary Limited

During the year, the group disposed of 49% of its investment in Vunani Hedge Funds Proprietary 
Limited ("VHF") for a nominal consideration. This resulted in the group decreasing it's shareholding in 
VHF from 100% to 51%. 

Net assets disposed of  897 –
Purchase price * –

Transaction between shareholders recognised directly in equity  897 –

Vunani Resources Proprietary Limited

During the year, the group disposed of 49% of its investment in Vunani Resources Proprietary Limited 
("VR") for a nominal consideration. This resulted in the group decreasing it's shareholding in VR from 
100% to 51%. 

Net assets disposed of  107 –
Purchase price * –

Transaction between shareholders recognised directly in equity  107 –

* Less than R1 000

Figures in Rand 000’s 2013

35. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 

Vunani Capital Zimbabwe (Private) Limited

During the year, the group acquired an additional 25.5% in Vunani Capital Zimbabwe (Private) Limited for a nominal 
consideration. This resulted in the group increasing it's shareholding from 49% to 74.5%. The non-controlling 
interest's share of net assets at the date of acquisition was (R1.251) million. 
Net assets acquired (1 251)

Purchase price *

Transaction between shareholders recognised directly in equity (1 251)

* Less than R 1 000
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39. IMPACT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

IFRS 10,11 and 12

A number of new IFRS standards become applicable to the group in the 2013 fi nancial year. An assessment of the applicability of these 
standards to Vunani was performed. The requirements of the consolidation suite of standards (IFRS 10, 11 and 12) were assessed and 
in the assessment, it was determined that the group’s investment in Vunani Capital Zimbabwe (Private) Limited (“VCZ”) would need to be 
consolidated. The standards require retrospective application and if the impact of the application is material, prior periods would need to 
be restated to refl ect the application. The impact of the application of the standard has been quantifi ed and is considered immaterial for 
the prior periods. Consequently, the full impact of consolidating the subsidiary was included in the 2013 results. The consolidation of the 
subsidiary resulted in a foreign currency translation reserve of R0.9 million being recognised at 31 December 2013.

38. BUSINESS DISPOSALS

During the year the group deregistered the following entities: 

– Vunani Properties Fund Management Trust

– Vunani Properties International Proprietary Limited

– Hyrode Investments Proprietary Limited

– Kliprivier Property Development Proprietary Limited

These deregistrations were not considered to be discontinued operations as they did not represent the discontinuation of a major line of 
business in the group.

The effect of the deregistrations was as follows:
Deregistered companies

Vunani
Properties Fund

Management
Figures in Rand 000's Trust Total

Net assets/(liabilities) disposed
Trade and other payables (19) (19)

Net liabilities disposed (19) (19)
Proceeds on disposal * *

Profi t on disposal (19) (19)

* less than R 1 000

There was no profi t or loss on the deregistration of Vunani Properties International Proprietary Limited, Hyrode Investments Proprietary 
Limited and Kliprivier Property Development Proprietary Limited.

Deregistered companies
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40. BASIC AND HEADLINE EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share (cents) 9.9 (0.2)

   Continuing operations 8.6 (2.1)
   Discontinued operations 1.3 1.9

Headline and diluted headline (loss)/profi t per share (cents) 2.5 (11.2)

   Continuing operations 1.2 (13.1)
   Discontinued operations 1.3 1.9

Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share at 31 December 2013 was based on the profi t attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of R9.869 million (2012 : loss of R0.216 million), and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 
100.204 million (2012: 100.622 million), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (000's)

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year 105 415 5 270 732
Effect of share consolidation – (5 165 317)
Effect of own shares held (5 211) (4 793)

100 204 100 622

Potential dilutive shares

The grant 1 and grant 2 shares issued as part of the employee share incentive scheme could 
potentially dilute basic earnings in the future. In the current year the shares have an anti-dilutive effect 
due to not being in the money. 

Shares issued as part of the share incentive scheme (000's) 4 759 4 759

Net asset value per share (cents)
Net asset value per share is the equity attributable to equity holders per share in issue. 203.5 191.2

Net tangible asset value per share (cents)
Net tangible asset value per share is the equity attributable to equity holders (excluding goodwill and 
intangible assets) per share in issue. 169.0 158.3

Figures in Rand 000's 2 013 2 012
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Headline earnings/ (loss)
Total comprehensive income /(loss) attributable to owners: 9 869 (216)

Adjust for:

Gross fair value adjustment on investment property
Subsidiaries

  Fair value adjustment on investment property 1 400 –
  Deferred tax on fair value adjustment (261) –
  Non-controlling interest on fair value adjustment (251) –

Impact of tax rate change
  Deferred tax on revaluation –  38
  Non-controlling interest on revaluation – (8)

Associates
Gross fair value adjustment of investment property (1 400) (10 866)
Deferred tax on revaluation  261 2 026
Deferred tax on rate change –  984
Non-controlling interest on revaluation  251 1 728

Disposal of plant and equipment
Loss on disposal –  53
Tax – (10)

Disposal of subsidiaries
Profit on disposal (19) (5 907)
Tax  4 –

Disposal of associates
Profit on disposal (11 150) –
Tax 2 079 –
Non-controlling interest 1 762 –

Associates
Impairment –  933

2 545 (11 245)

Number of shares in issues 105 415 105 415
Weighted average number of shares 100 204 100 622

40. BASIC AND HEADLINE EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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41. COMMITMENTS

Guarantees and sureties provided

The group has provided guarantees and sureties for group companies as at 31 December 2013 (including investments in associates) in the 
amount of R41.6 million (2012: 146.7 million). The probability of the liability materialising in terms of these guarantees and sureties is 
dependent on the value of the underlying properties and equities that secure the debt. The decrease in the guarantees and sureties is due 
to the group repaying a significant amount of debt during the year. 

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

Operating leases – as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due
within one year 5 888 4 176
in second to fifth year inclusive 5 634 8 860

11 522 13 036

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office premises and office equipment. Leases are 
negotiated for an average term of four years. Rentals on the office and office equipment escalate at an average rate of 8.36% (2012: 9.5%) 
per annum.

42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

See accounting policy in note 2.1.3.

The following table summarises the information relating to each of the group's subsidiaries' material non-controlling interest ("NCI") before 
intra-group eliminations. Intra-group transactions and balances that eliminate on consolidation are refl ected separately.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Vunani Vunani  Vunani  
Vunani Fund Private  Capital  Other 

Properties Managers Clients  Zimbabwe  individually 
Proprietary Proprietary Proprietary  (Private) immaterial Intra-group 

Figures in Rand 000's Limited Limited* Limited**  Limited*** subsidiaries eliminations Total

NCI percentage 22% 4.5% 49% 25.5%

Non-current assets 7 535 1 247  324  256 –

Current assets 40 799 13 056 2 332  190  31

Non-current liabilities * – (1 340) – –

Current liabilities (52 477) (8 263) (6 085) (5 983) (2 149)

Net assets (4 143) 6 040 (4 769) (5 537) (2 118)

Carrying amount of NCI (911)  272 (2 337) (1 412) (1 006) (832) (6 226)

Revenue 10 811 36 822 7 582  622  43

Profi t/(loss) 3 353  33 (459) (4 655) (1 226)

OCI – – – (898) –

Total comprehensive income 3 353  33 (459) (5 553) (1 226)

Profi t allocated to NCI  738  1 (225) (1 416) (592) (69) (1 563)

OCI allocated to NCI – – – (233) – (233)

Net increase/(decrease) in 
cash and cash equivalents 1 800 (76)  79 (23) (20)

*    During the year the group disposed 2% of its investment in Vunani Fund Managers Proprietary Limited to non-controlling interest.

**   During the year the group increased its investment in Vunani Private Clients Proprietary Limited from 40% to 51%.

***  During the year the group increased its investment in Vunani Capital Zimbabwe (Private) Limited from 49% to 74.5%%.
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Vunani  
Vunani  Fund  Other 

Properties Managers individually 

Proprietary Proprietary immaterial Intra-group
Figures in Rand 000's Limited Limited subsidiaries eliminations Total

NCI percentage 22% 2.5%

Non-current assets 65 059 22 323  168
Current assets 24 844 8 579  382
Non-current liabilities (113) – –

Current liabilities (32 957) (4 222) (1 212)

Net assets 56 833 26 680 (662)

Carrying amount of NCI 12 503  667 (530)  154 12 794
Revenue 14 759 22 315 5 540
Profi t 44 971 (1 520) 3 851
OCI – – –

Total comprehensive income 44 971 (1 520) 3 851

Profi t allocated to NCI 9 894 (38) 2 115 11 971

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2 790 (6) (1)
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43. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The group has seven reportable segments being asset management, advisory services South Africa, advisory services Zimbabwe, 
investment holdings, properties investments and developments, institutional securities broking, private wealth and investments and 
group. The group’s strategic business segments, offering different products and services, are managed separately, requiring different skill, 
technology and marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business segments, the group’s chief executive officer and managing director 
reviews internal management reports on at least a monthly basis.  The group's chief executive officer and managing director are the chief 
operating decision makers.

All segments are located in South Africa except for advisory services Zimbabwe which operates in Zimbabwe. The costs associated 
with geographical reporting and information concerning products and services would be excessive and the necessary information is not 
available. There are no single major customers.

 The following summary describes the operations in each of the group’s reportable segments:

Basis of measurement

The groups uses the following principles to determine segment profit or loss, segment assets and segment liabilities.

– Any transactions between segments are eliminated.

– All segment profits or losses and the group's profits or losses are measured in the same manner, using the accounting policies described 
in notes 1 to 4.

– All segment assets and liabilities and the group's assets and liabilities are measured in the same manner, using the accounting policies 
described in notes 1 to 4.

– There have been no changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment profit or loss.

Continuing operations

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Properties Private

Advisory invest- wealth

Asset services- Advisory ments and Institutional and

manage- South services- Investment develop- securities invest-

Figures in Rand 000's ment Africa * Zimbabwe* holdings ments broking ** ments ** Group Total

Revenue 36 822 5 860  621 – 1 953 46 463 7 624 10 615 99 343

Finance income and 
interest received from 
investments  252  642 – 1 650  274  896  925  498 4 639

Finance costs – – – (4 789) (170) (77) (68) (70) (5 104)

Depreciation (255) (72) (58) – – (136) (166) (1 275) ( 687)

Amortisation of 
intangible assets (489) – – – – – – – (489)

Fair value adjustment of 
investment property – – – – (1 400) – – – (1 400)

Impairment on assets – 1 241 – (4 046) (34) – – – (2 839)

Equity accounted earnings  239 – – (346) (3 331) – – – (3 438)

Income tax income/
(expense) (119)  362 –  174 (3 028) 1 058 – – (1 553)

Reportable segment 
profit/(loss) after tax  992  554 (4 655) 25 073 1 048 7 945 (601) (23 661) 30 356

Reportable segment assets 42 030 10 958  190 195 830 19 205 140 140 2 470 19 332 410 823

Investment in associates – – – 15 340 7 085 – – – 22 425

Capital expenditure  360 – – – –  28  172  334  560

Reportable segment 
liabilities (5 999) (1 172) (121) (51 821) (11 218) (134 850) (3 445) (13 269) (208 626)

*   The advisory services segment was previously named “Investment banking and advisory”. The name was amended in 2012. The Zimbabwean operations have been 
consolidated for the first time during the current year (and hence no comparatives have been presented) and are disclosed separately.

** The institutional securities broking and private wealth and investments segments were previously reported as the securities broking segment. In the 2013 year, the securities 
broking segment was split up following the acquisition in the current year of a majority shareholding in vunani private clients proprietary limited. The institutional securities 
broking segment includes the institutional securities broking operations, while the private wealth and investments segment includes the retail securities trading and wealth 
management operations.

Properties Private

Advisory invest- wealth

Asset services- Advisory ments and Institutional and

manage- South services- Investment develop- securities invest-

Figures in Rand 000's ment Africa * Zimbabwe* holdings ments broking ** ments ** Group Total

Revenue 36 822 5 860  621 – 1 953 46 463 7 624 10 615 109 958

Finance income and 
interest received from 
investments  252  642 – 1 650  274  896  925  498 5 137

Finance costs – – – (4 789) (170) (77) (68) (70) (5 174)

Depreciation (255) (72) (58) – – (136) (166) (1 275) (1 962)

Amortisation of 
intangible assets (489) – – – – – – – (489)

Fair value adjustment of 
investment property – – – – (1 400) – – – (1 400)

Impairment on assets – 1 241 – (4 046) (34) – – – (2 839)

Equity accounted earnings  239 – – (346) (3 331) – – – (3 438)

Income tax income/
(expense) (119)  362 –  174 (3 028) 1 058 – – (1 553)

Reportable segment 
profit/(loss) after tax  992  554 (4 655) 25 073 1 048 7 945 (601) (23 661) 6 695

Reportable segment assets 42 030 10 958  190 195 830 19 205 140 140 2 470 19 332 430 155

Investment in associates – – – 15 340 7 085 – – – 22 425

Capital expenditure  360 – – – –  28  172  334  894

Reportable segment 
liabilities (5 999) (1 172) (121) (51 821) (11 218) (134 850) (3 445) (13 269) (221 895)
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43. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Discontinued operations

For the year ended 31 December 2013  Properties

 – asset

manage-

Figures in Rand 000's ment

Revenue 8 858

Finance income –

Finance costs (179)

Income tax expense (878)

Reportable segment profit after tax 1 611

Reportable segment assets 3 129

Reportable segment liabilities (3 142)

Continuing operations

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Properties
invest-

Asset Advisory ments and
manage- services Investment develop- Securities

Figures in Rand 000's ment * holdings ments broking Group Total

Revenue 25 039 9 283 – 7 864 48 068 10 624 90 254

Finance income  238  842 18 123 1 962  611 1 788 23 564
Finance costs – (7) (48 583) (113) (30) (112) (48 845)
Depreciation (382) (135) – ( 4) (150) (1 214) (1 885)
Amortisation of intangibles/assets (977) – – – – – (977)
Impairment on assets –  101 2 488 (46) (933) – 1 610
Equity accounted earnings – – (1 361) 18 779 (200) – 17 218
Income tax income/(expense)  510 (1 112) (12 396) (5 700)  58 – (18 640)

Reportable segment profit/(loss) after tax 1 248 (6 277) 3 282 20 951 (1 513) (8 338) 17 691
Reportable segment assets 49 440 2 045 221 071 89 213 220 449 8 117 582 218
Investment in associates 9 640 – 11 019 59 414 – – 80 073
Capital expenditure  134 – – –  98  254  486
Reportable segment liabilities (5 187) (1 592) (127 457) (16 881) (214 845) (10 724) (376 686)

Properties
invest-

Asset Advisory ments and
manage- services Investment develop- Securities

Figures in Rand 000's ment * holdings ments broking Group Total

Revenue 25 039 9 283 – 7 864 48 068 10 624 100 878

Finance income  238  842 18 123 1 962  611 1 788 23 564
Finance costs – (7) (48 583) (113) (30) (112) (48 845)
Depreciation (382) (135) – (4) (150) (1 214) (1 885)
Amortisation of intangibles/assets (977) – – – – – (977)
Impairment on assets –  101 2 488 (46) (933) – 1 610
Equity accounted earnings – – (1 361) 18 779 (200) – 17 218
Income tax income/(expense)  510 (1 112) (12 396) (5 700)  58 – (18 640)

Reportable segment profit/(loss) after tax 1 248 (6 277) 3 282 20 951 (1 513) (8 338) 9 353

Reportable segment assets 49 440 2 045 221 071 89 213 220 449 8 117 590 335
Investment in associates 9 640 – 11 019 59 414 – – 80 073
Capital expenditure  134 – – –  98  254  486
Reportable segment liabilities (5 187) (1 592) (127 457) (16 881) (214 845) (10 724) (376 686)

* The advisory services segment was previously reported as “Investment banking and advisory”. The amendment was made to include specific information relating to the 

advisory component of the group’s operations. The comparative information for this segment has been re-presented to reflect this change.

Discontinued operations 

For the year ended 31 December 2012 Properties
 – asset

manage-
Figures in Rand 000's ment

Revenue 7 014
Income tax expense (920)

Reportable segment profit after tax 2 402

Reportable segment assets  690
Reportable segment liabilities (28)
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44. RELATED PARTIES

Relationships

Ultimate holding company/parent Vunani Group Proprietary Limited

Associates Refer to note 18

Directors Refer to note 45

Effective equity holding

Direct and indirect subsidiaries 2013 2012

Vunani Capital Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Anchor Park Investments 42 Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Anchor Park Investments 81 Proprietary Limited 100% 100%

Aquarella Investments 507 Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Hyrode Investments Proprietary Limited* – 100%
Imvuno Fund Managers Proprietary Limited 55% 55%
Jala Group Proprietary Limited 100% 75%
Lexshell 630 Investments Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Onaghan Investments 20 Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Pacifi c Heights Investments 118 Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Spaciros Proprietary Limited 51% 51%

Vunani Mining Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Vunani Capital Zimbabwe (Private) Limited** 74.5% 0%
Vunani Corporate Finance Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
 Vunani Passenger Logistics (previously Vunani Energy Proprietary Limited) 100% 100%
Vunani Fund Managers Proprietary Limited 95.5% 97.5%
Vunani Metals and Minerals Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Camden Bay Investments 2 Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Vunani Private Clients Stockbroking Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Vunani Private Clients Proprietary Limited 51% 0%
Vunani Hedge Funds Proprietary Limited 51% 100%
Vunani Mining and Resources Proprietary Limited 75% 75%
Quintofor Investments Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Verbicept Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Vunani Sponsors Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Vunani Resources Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Wonderwall Investments Proprietary Limited  100% 100%

Vunani Securities Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Vunani Nominee Proprietary Limited 100% 100%

Vunani Capital Investments Proprietary Limited 
(previously Vector Equities Proprietary Limited) 100% 100%
Vector Nominees Proprietary Limited 100% 100%
Vunani Capital Markets Proprietary Limited 100% 100%

*   The company was deregistered during the year.

** The company is incorporated and conducts its business in Zimbabwe.
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Effective equity holding

Direct and indirect subsidiaries (continued) 2013 2012

Vunani Properties Proprietary Limited 78% 78%
Dreamworks Investments 125 Proprietary Limited 66% 66%
Kliprivier Property Development Proprietary Limited 78% 78%
(previously Vunani Property Asset Managers Proprietary Limited) 
Selectria Investments 49 Proprietary Limited 78% 78%
Vunani Properties International Proprietary Limited* – 78%
Vunani Property Asset Management Proprietary Limited 78% 78%
Vunani Property Fund Management Trust* – 78%
Wolfsberg Arch Investments Proprietary Limited 40% 40%

Vunani Share Incentive Scheme Trust 100% 100%

*   The company was deregistered during the year.

** The company is incorporated and conducts its business in Zimbabwe.

Other related parties 

– Akkersbloom Enterprises (Private) Limited (incorporated and conducts business in Zimbabwe)

– Tutuni Investments Proprietary Limited

Vunani has entered into an agreement with the shareholders and the companies which entitles Vunani, inter alia, to the economic benefits 
accruing from the activities of the companies and therefore on this basis, 100% of the company's results have been consolidated in the 
group's results.

Related party balances and transactions

All related party balances and transactions were eliminated on consolidation except for those balances and transactions with associates 
(refer to note 18) and directors (refer to note 45).

There were no transactions between the company and its ultimate holding company, Vunani Group Proprietary Limited.

44. RELATED PARTIES (continued)
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45. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS 

No loans were made to directors during the year (2012: R nil). There were no material transactions with directors, other than the following:

Provident Current year

Non-executive fund and share based

directors' medical aid payment

Figures in Rand 000's fees* Salaries Bonuses contributions expense # Total

for the year ended 
31 December 2013
EG Dube – 3 085 2 517  296  381 6 279
NM Anderson – 1 950 1 607  208  243 4 008
CE Chimombe Munyoro – 1 251 –  270  177 1 698
BM Khoza – 2 005 1 696  273  256 4 230
A Judin – 1 199 1 013  199  179 2 590
WC Ross (Chairman)  250 – – – –  250
G Nzalo  130 – – – –  130
JR Macey  130 – – – –  130
N Mazwi  100 – – – –  100
DR XP Guma  50 – – – –  50

Total  660 9 490 6 833 1 246 1 236 19 465

for the year ended 
31 December 2012
EG Dube – 2 853 –  248  287 3 388
NM Anderson – 1 821 –  158  183 2 162
CE Chimombe Munyoro – 1 287 –  175  140 1 602
BM Khoza – 1 839 –  250  194 2 283
A Judin – 1 049 –  140  160 1 349
WC Ross (Chairman)  250 – – – –  250
G Nzalo  130 – – – –  130
JR Macey  130 – – – –  130
Dr B Khumalo  100 – – – –  100
N Mazwi  100 – – – –  100

Total  710 8 849 –  971  964 11 494

* Fees for services as non-executives directors

# This expense represents the IFRS 2 costs for the year for any options or rights given.

Aggregate amounts paid to directors amounts to:

2013 2012

For services as directors of the company 
Total remuneration and benefi ts received from company  660  710
Total remuneration and benefi ts received from company’s subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries 18 805 10 784

19 465 11 494

There are no service contracts for non-executive directors. The executive directors have service contracts with the group terminable upon 
one month’s written notice. No executive director has a fi xed term contract. 

PRESCRIBED OFFICERS

The company does not have any prescribed offi cers.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

46.1 Liquidity risk

31 December 2013 Un-

discounted

Carrying contractual Less than Greater than

Figures in Rand 000's amount cash flows 1 year 1 – 5 years 5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities (204 981) (215 364) (172 849) (26 971) (15 544)

Non-interest bearing (169 791) (169 791) (162 820) (6 971) –

Fixed interest rate instruments (29 829) (40 212) (4 668) (20 000) (15 544)

Variable interest rate instruments (5 361) (5 361) (5 361) – –

31 December 2012
Non-derivative financial liabilities (355 443) (373 563) (314 123) (33 022) (26 418)

Non-interest bearing (255 539) (255 539) (242 517) (13 022) –
Fixed interest rate instruments (32 459) (50 418) (4 000) (20 000) (26 418)
Variable interest rate instruments (67 445) (67 606) (67 606) – –

Management of liquidity risk

The group’s approach to managing liquidity is by managing its working capital, capital expenditure and other fi nancial obligations, and 
to ensure as far as possible, that it will always have suffi cient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the group’s reputation. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk 
management rests with the board of directors. Typically the group ensures that it has suffi cient cash on hand to meet operational expenses, 
including the servicing of fi nancial obligations. The group also has access to R5.0 million undrawn overdraft facilities, which may be used to 
manage its fi nancial obligations if necessary.

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

46.2 Market risk
Interest rate risk
The company's interest rate exposure is as follows:
Fixed rate instruments

Financial liabilities (29 829) (32 459)
Variable rate instruments

Financial assets 46 530 34 597
Financial liabilities (5 361) (67 445)

11 340 (65 307)

Cash fl ow sensitivity analysis for fi xed rate instruments 

A sensitivity analysis has not been included for fi xed rate instruments as they are not sensitive to 
interest rate risk.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

46.2 Market risk (continued)
Cash fl ow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 
A change of 50 basis points in the interest rates at the reporting date would have 
increased/(decreased) profi t or loss and equity by the amount shown below. This analysis 
assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Effect on statement of comprehensive income (profi t/(loss)) and equity before taxation

50 bps increase  206 (327)
50 bps decrease (206)  327

Management of interest rate risk
The group generally adopts a policy of ensuring that its exposure to changes in interest rates 
is limited by either fi xing the rate or by linking the rate to the prime rate over the period of the 
respective loan.

Equity price risk
The company's equity price risk is as follows:
Unlisted fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t or loss 64 645 38 505
Listed fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t or loss 80 240 139 217
Trading securities  320 1 564

145 205 179 286

The company's listed equity investments are listed on the JSE Limited and are classifi ed at fair 
value through profi t and loss. 

A change of 10% in the fair value of investment at the reporting date would have increased/
(decreased) equity and profi t or loss by the amount shown below. This analysis assumes that all 
other variables remain constant.

Effect on statement of comprehensive income (profi t/(loss)) and equity before taxation

10% increase 14 521 17 929
10% decrease (14 521) (17 929)

46.3 Credit risk
The carrying amount of fi nancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure of credit risk was:

Loans to associates 16 323 37 998
Other loans 4 388 5 219
Accounts receivable from trading activities 113 077 199 629
Trade and other receivables 30 729 25 768
Cash and cash equivalents 42 271 29 378

206 788 297 992

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

46.3 Credit risk (continued)
Impairment losses
The ageing of fi nancial assets at the reporting date was:

Accounts
Trading receivable

Loans to and other Other from trading
2013 Total associates receivables Loans activities

Not past due 158 822 16 323 25 034 4 388 113 077
Past due 1 – 30 days 5 549 – 5 549 – –
Past due 31 – 60 days  93 –  93 – –
Past due 61 – 90 days  105 –  105 – –
Past due 91 days and greater  953 –  953 – –

165 522 16 323 31 734 4 388 113 077

Accounts
Trading receivable

Loans to and other Other from trading
2012 Total associates receivables Loans activities

Not past due 267 602 37 998 24 756 5 219 199 629
Past due 1 – 30 days  348 –  348 – –
Past due 31 – 60 days  487 –  487 – –
Past due 61 – 90 days  354 –  354 – –
Past due 91 days and greater 1 762 – 1 762 – –

270 553 37 998 27 707 5 219 199 629

2013 2012

Reconciliation of movement in allowance for impairment
Balance at the beginning of the year (1 939) (3 706)
Utilised – 1 749
Decrease/(increase) in allowance for impairment ( 934)  18

Balance at the end of the year (2 873) (1 939)

Factors considered in impairment

The group reviews accounts receivable monthly. Unless customers have good payment records an impairment allowance is created at 50% 
of accounts older than 60 days and 100% of accounts older than 90 days.

The group believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectable, based on historic payment 
behaviour and analysis of customer credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk

The majority of the group's trade and other receivables are located domestically except for the small amount of debtors located in 
Zimbabwe. The group does not have a wide variety of counterparties.
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46.4 Fair values

The fair value of a fi nancial instrument is the price that would be received for the sale of an asset or paid for the transfer of a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Underlying the defi nition of fair value is a presumption that 
an entity is a going concern without any intention or need to liquidate, to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a 
transaction on adverse terms. Fair value is not, therefore, the amount that an entity would receive or pay in a forced transaction, involuntary 
liquidation or distressed sale.

The existence of published price quotations in an active market is the best evidence of fair value and, where they exist, they are used to 
measure the fi nancial asset or fi nancial liability. A market is considered to be active if transactions occur with suffi cient volume and frequency 
to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. Financial instruments fair valued using quoted prices would generally be classifi ed as 
level 1 in terms of the fair-value hierarchy.

Where a quoted price does not represent fair value at the measurement date or where the market for a fi nancial instrument is not active, 
the group establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. These valuation techniques include reference to the value of the assets of 
underlying business, earnings multiples (e.g. unlisted investments), discounted cash fl ow analysis (e.g. unlisted investments, loans and 
advances) and various option pricing models. 

Valuation techniques applied by the group would result in fi nancial instruments being classifi ed as level 2 or level 3 in terms of the fair-value 
hierarchy. The determination of whether a fi nancial instrument is classifi ed as level 2 or level 3 is dependent on the signifi cance of observable 
inputs versus unobservable inputs in relation to the fair value of the fi nancial instrument. Inputs typically used in valuation techniques include 
discount rates, expected future cash fl ows, dividend yields, earnings multiples, volatility, equity prices and commodity prices. Valuation 
methodologies and techniques applied for level 3 fi nancial instruments include a combination of discounted cash fl ow analysis, application 
of earnings multiples on sustainable after tax earnings and or current and projected net asset values to determine overall reasonability. The 
valuation technique applied to specifi c fi nancial instruments depend on the nature of the fi nancial instrument and the most appropriate 
valuation technique is determined on that basis.

After the valuations of the unlisted fi nancial assets and liabilities are performed, these are presented to the group's investment committee for 
independent review. All signifi cant valuations are approved by the investment committee.

The valuation methodologies, techniques and inputs applied to the fair value measurement of the fi nancial instruments have been applied in 
a manner consistent with that of the previous fi nancial year.

2013 2012
Carrying Carrying

Figures in Rand 000's amount Fair value amount Fair value

Financial assets measured at fair value
Designated as fair value through profi t or loss on initial recognition 144 885 144 885 177 722 177 722

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loans and receivables 164 519 164 519 263 395 263 395
Trading securities  320  320 1 564 1 564
Non-current assets held for sale  34  34 – –
Cash and cash equivalents 42 271 42 271 29 378 29 378

352 029 352 029 472 059 472 059

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Designated as fair value through profi t or loss on initial recognition (6 971) (6 971) (77 140) (77 140)

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Amortised cost (198 720) (198 720) (275 469) (275 469)
Non-current assets held for sale (2 479) (2 479) – –
Bank overdraft (2 911) (2 911) (2 834) (2 834)

(211 081) (211 081) (355 443) (355 443)

At 31 December 2013 the fair values of all the fi nancial instruments are substantially identical to the carrying amount refl ected in the 
statement of fi nancial position.

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
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46.5 Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses recurring fair value measurements for fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities. These fair value measurements are 
categorised into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on inputs to valuation techniques used. The different levels are defi ned as 
follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) 
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Figures in Rand 000's

31 December 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets designated at fair value through profi t or loss 80 240 – 64 645

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profi t or loss – – (6 971)

80 240 – 57 674

31 December 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets designated at fair value through profi t or loss 139 217 – 38 505
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profi t or loss – – (77 140)

139 217 – (38 635)

2013 2012

Level 3 comprises:
Balance at beginning of year (38 635) (247 686)
Total gains or losses in profi t or loss 19 573 (975)
Proceeds from loan, interest, repayment 70 697 (67 302)
Purchases, sales, issues and settlements 6 039 277 328

Balance at end of year 57 674 (38 635)

A change of 10% in the fair value of investment and liability at the reporting date 
would have increased/(decreased) equity and profi t or loss by the amount shown 
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Effect on statement of comprehensive income (profi t/(loss)) and equity before 
taxation

10% increase 5 767 (3 864)
10% decrease (5 767) 3 864

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
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47. GOING CONCERN

The going concern principle requires that the group’s and company’s annual fi nancial statements be prepared on the basis that Vunani 
Limited will remain in business for the foreseeable future.

Prior to the approval of the annual fi nancial statements the board undertook processes to ensure that the going concern principle applies.

These processes included assessing:

– the group’s fi nancial budgets and 18-month rolling cash fl ow forecast;

– the performance of underlying business operations and their ability to make a positive contribution to the group’s objectives;

– the capital structure, liabilities and quality of the assets underpinning the statement of fi nancial position; and

– the banking facilities and the group’s assets to ensure that these are suffi cient to fund imminent liabilities and meet the group’s working 
capital requirements.

The board is of the view that, based on its knowledge of the group, assumptions regarding the outcome of the key processes underway 
and specifi c enquiries it has made, the group has adequate resources at its disposal to settle obligations as they fall due and the group will 
continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future.

48. DIVIDENDS

A gross ordinary dividend of 5 cents per share (2012: nil) and a gross special dividend of 25 cents per share (2012: nil) have been declared 
out of income reserves on 24 March 2014 and are payable to ordinary shareholders.

49. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

Subsequent to year end the following events took place:

1.    VPAM is a wholly owned subsidiary of Vunani Properties Proprietary Limited (“Vunani Properties”), which is 78% held by Vunani Limited. 
VPAM’s sole business activity is the provision of property asset management services to VPIF. On 9 November 2013, an agreement was 
entered into to sell VPAM’s business to Texton Property Investments Proprietary Limited (“Texton”). All the suspensive conditions were 
fulfi lled on Friday the 28th February 2014. The transaction includes the transfer of the asset management agreement and the transfer of 
employment contracts to Texton.

     The proceeds for the disposal of the business amount to a total of R117 million. Net of taxation, it is estimated that R82.5 million is 
attributable to the group and R12.7 million attributable to non-controlling interests. R102 million of the proceeds was received on 
28 February 2014 and the settlement of the balance of R15 million has been deferred to 28 February 2015 in accordance with the 
agreement. A special dividend of 25 cents per share will be declared as a result of the sale. 

2.   Royal Albatross 379 Proprietary Limited ('Royal Albatross") is 50% owned by Vunani Properties ,which is 78% owned by Vunani Limited. 
Royal Albatross' sole business activity is property developments. On 16 April 2014, an agreement was entered into to sell 50% of the 
issued shares of the company held by Vunani Properties to Barrow Properties Proprietary Limited.
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3.   In terms of the Agreement of sale and the Addendum thereto entered between Vunani Capital Proprietary Limited (“Vunani Capital”) 
and Purpose Vunani Asset Management (Private) Limited (“PVAM”) in January 2013, Vunani Capital has the right to purchase a further 
10% of the shares in PVAM at any time after 1 January 2014. At 31 December 2013, PVAM was 45% held by Vunani Capital, which 
is 100% held by Vunani Limited. PVAM’s sole business activity is the provision of asset management services and operates principally 
in Zimbabwe. On 27 January 2014, Vunani Capital gave notice to the Sellers that it exercises its right to acquire a further 10% of the 
ordinary shares in PVAM in terms of the Agreement of Sale of shares from the sellers. 

A provisional purchase price allocation in terms of IFRS 3 is presented below.

Net assets acquired R'000

Plant and equipment 5 193
Deferred tax asset  70
Trade and other receivables 1 568
Cash and cash equivalents  175
Financial assets designated at fair value  556
Other assets  383

Net asset value 7 945

Reconciled as:
Non-controlling interests (4 370)
Investment in associate (45%) (3 575)

(7 945)

Increase in investment
Cost of investment 7 945
Non-controlling interest (3 575)

4 370
Purchase price 3 995

Gain on bargain purchase  375

There were no fair value gains or losses on the fair value of the previously held 45% interest in Purpose Vunani Asset Management 
(Private) Limited.

49. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE (continued)
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Figures in Rand 000's Note 2013 2012

Management fees  50  696  717
Investment revenue  51 54 899 41 166
Fair value adjustments and impairments  52 (1 914) (336 420)
Operating expenses  53 (2 837) (3 034)

Results from operating activities 50 844 (297 571)

Finance income  54  941  928

Profi t/(loss) before income tax 51 785 (296 643)
Income tax  55  428 –

Profi t/(loss) for the year 52 213 (296 643)

Total comprehensive income for the year 52 213 (296 643)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Figures in Rand 000's Note 2013 2012

Assets
Investments in subsidiaries  56 22 833 19 203
Other investments  57 – –
Loan to subsidiary company  58 309 187 256 588
Loan to share trust  58 14 278 15 251
Deferred tax assets  59  428 –

Total non-current assets 346 726 291 042

Cash and cash equivalents * *

Total current assets * *

Total assets 346 726 291 042

Equity
Stated capital  60 610 088 610 088
Share based payment reserve 9 536 5 906
Accumulated loss (273 665) (325 878)

Equity attributable to equity holders 345 959 290 116

Liabilities
Trade and other payables  61  767  926

Current liabilities  767  926

Total equity and liabilities 346 726 291 042

* Less than R1 000 

 VUNANI LIMITED – Companyfor the year ended 31 December 2013
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share-

based

Share Share Stated Total share payment Accumu- Total

Figures in Rand 000's capital premium capital capital reserve lated loss equity

Balance at 31 December 2011  527 609 561 – 610 088 2 524 (29 235) 583 377
Total comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year – – – – – (296 643) (296 643)

Total comprehensive income for the year – – – – – (296 643) (296 643)

Transactions with owners, recorded 
directly in equity
Share capital conversion to no par value shares (527) (609 561) 610 088 – – – –
Share based payment – – – – 3 382 – 3 382

Total transactions with owners (527) (609 561) 610 088 – 3 382 – 3 382

Balance at 31 December  2012 – – 610 088 610 088 5 906 (325 878) 290 116

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year – – – – – 52 213 52 213

Total comprehensive income for the year – – – – – 52 213 52 213

Transactions with owners, recorded 
directly in equity
Share based payment – – – – 3 630 – 3 630

Total transactions with owners – – – – 3 630 – 3 630

Balance at 31 December  2013 – – 610 088 610 088 9 536 (273 665) 345 959

 VUNANI LIMITED – Companyfor the year ended 31 December 2013
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Figures in Rand 000's Note 2013 2012

Cash fl ows from operating activities
Cash utilised by operations  62 (2 300) (2 047)
Investment revenue 54 899 41 166

Cash generated by operating activities 52 599 39 119

Cash fl ows from investing activities
Loans (advanced to)/ repaid by subsidiary (52 599) 20 881

Cash (outfl ow)/ infl ow from investing activities (52 599) 20 881

Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities
Repayment of guarantee – (60 000)

Cash outfl ow from fi nancing activities – (60 000)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents – –
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year * *

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of year * *

* Less than R1 000 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
 VUNANI LIMITED – Companyfor the year ended 31 December 2013
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Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

50. MANAGEMENT FEES
Management fees  696  717

51. INVESTMENT REVENUE
Dividend received from subsidiary company 54 393 41 166
Dividend received from other investments  506 –

54 899 41 166

52. FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENTS AND IMPAIRMENTS
Guarantees of fi nancial liabilities measured at fair value through profi t or loss – (22 820)
Impairment of loan to subsidiary – (313 600)
Impairment of loan to share trust (1 914) –

(1 914) (336 420)

53. OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses include:
Auditors remuneration – current year 670  590
Directors' emoluments paid by company (refer note 45)  660  710

54. FINANCE INCOME
Recognised in profi t and loss
Interest income on loan to share incentive scheme trust  941  928

55. INCOME TAX
Deferred tax expense
Current year
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses  428 –

No taxation is payable in the current year as the company has an estimated tax loss brought forward of 
R1 527 249 (2012: R5 212 291) available for set off against future taxable income. 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets – 1 459

Reconciliation of effective tax rate % %

Income tax rate 28.0 28.0
Tax exempt income (29.7) 3.9
Disallowable expenditure 2.2 (31.8)
Tax losses utilised (0.5) –
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (0.8) –
Deferred tax asset not recognised – (0.1)

(0.8) –

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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56. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Number of
 shares/

Figures in Rand 000's % holding Unlisted Fair value

57. OTHER INVESTMENTS

at 31 December 2013
African Legends Limited 2 248 1 870 1 870
Impairment (1 870) (1 870)

– –

at 31 December 2012
African Legends Limited 2 248 1 870 1 870
NE Corp Holdings Limited – – *
Impairment (1 870) (1 870)

– –

* Less than R1 000 

Figures in Rand 000’s 2013 2012

Analysis of impairment
Balance at the beginning of the year (1 870) (1 999)
Impairment utilised –  129

Balance at the end of the year (1 870) (1 870)

58. LOAN TO SUBSIDIARY
Vunani Capital Proprietary Limited 622 787 570 188
Impairment (313 600) (313 600)

309 187 256 588

The loan to the subsidiary company is unsecured and is interest free. The carrying amount 
approximates fair value.
The loan has been subordinated in favour of Vunani Capital Proprietary Limited's creditors, to the 
extent that the liabilities exceed assets, fairly valued in Vunani Capital Proprietary Limited.
Loan to share trust
Vunani Share Incentive Scheme Trust 16 192 15 251
Impairment (1 914) –

14 278 15 251

The loan to the subsidiary trust is unsecured and bears interest at the official SARS interest rate. The carrying amount approximates 
fair value.

Holding Cost of investment

Figures in Rand 000’s 2013 2012 2013 2012

Investment in subsidiaries held at cost
Vunani Capital Proprietary Limited 100% 100% 4 374 2 498
Vunani Securities Proprietary Limited 100% 100% 12 775 11 248
Vunani Capital Markets Proprietary Limited 100% 100%  195  195
Vunani Capital Investments Proprietary Limited 100% 100% 4 655 4 655
Vunani Properties Proprietary Limited 78% 78%  834  607

22 833 19 203
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

60. STATED CAPITAL, SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 
Authorised  
200 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value – –
99 000 Redeemable preference shares of R0.01 each  1  1

 1  1

Issued  
105 414 649 ordinary shares of no par value 610 088 610 088

610 088 610 088

Reconciliation of movement in number of shares issued (000s): 
Balance at the beginning of the year 105 415 5 270 732

Share consolidation – (5 165 317)

Balance at the end of the year 105 415 105 415

Unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors in terms of a resolution of members 
passed at the last annual general meeting. This authority remains in force until the next annual 
general meeting.
Reconciliation of movement in share capital (000s): 
Balance at the beginning of the year –  527

Converted to no par value shares – (527)

Balance at the end of the year – –

Reconciliation of movement in share premium
Balance at the beginning of the year – 609 561

Converted to no par value shares – (609 561)

Balance at the end of the year – –

Reconciliation of movement in stated capital (R 000s): 
Reported at the beginning of the year 610 088 –
Converted from par value shares – 610 088

Balance at end of year 610 088 610 088

61. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Sundry payables  767  926

59. DEFERRED TAX 

Deferred tax assets –
Recognised deferred tax assets arise on:
Tax losses carry-forward  428 –

 428 –

Reconciliation of movement in deferred tax 
Balance at the beginning of the year – –
Recognised against profi t or loss  428 –

Balance at end of the year  428 –

 VUNANI LIMITED – Companyfor the year ended 31 December 2013

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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62. CASH UTILISED BY OPERATIONS
Profit/ (loss) before income tax 51 785 (296 643)
Adjusted for:
Investment revenue (54 899) (41 166)
Finance income (941) (928)
Fair value adjustments and impairments 1 914 336 420

(2 141) (2 317)
Changes in working capital:
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (159)  270

Cash utilised by operations (2 300) (2 047)

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

Figures in Rand 000's Note 2013 2012

63. RELATED PARTIES
Relationships

Ultimate holding company/parent Vunani Group Proprietary Limited*

Subsidiaries Refer to note 44

Directors Refer to note 45

* The parent does not produce financial statements for public use.

Related party balances
Investments in subsidiaries  56 22 833 19 203
Loan to subsidiary company  58 309 187 256 588
Loan to share trust  58 14 278 15 251

346 298 291 042

Related party transactions
Revenue – management fees  50  696  717
Finance income – share trust  54  941  928

1 637 1 645

Directors' remuneration and benefits (refer to note 45)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

64.1 Liquidity risk

31 December 2013 Un-discounted

Carrying contractual Less than Greater than

amount cash flows 1 year 1 - 5 years 5 years

Non-derivative fi nancial liabilities
Non-interest bearing (767) (767) (767) – –

Non-derivative fi nancial liabilities
Non-interest bearing (926) (926) (926) – –

Management of liquidity risk

The company’s approach to managing liquidity by managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows, is to ensure as far 
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests 
with the board of directors. Typically the company ensures that it has sufficient cash on hand to meet operational expenses, including the 
servicing of financial obligations. Vunani Limited has access to group undrawn overdraft facilities amounting to R5.0 million, which may be 
used to meet its financial obligations if necessary.

2013 2012

64.2 Market risk
Interest rate risk
The company's interest rate exposure is as follows:
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets 14 278 15 251

14 278 15 251

Cash fl ow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

A change of 50 basis points in the interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/
(decreased) profit or loss and equity by the amount shown below. This analysis assumes that all 
other variables remain constant.

Effect on statement of comprehensive income (profi t/(loss)) and equity before taxation

50 bps increase  71  76
50 bps decrease (71) (76)

Management of interest rate risk

The company generally adopts a policy of ensuring that its exposure to changes in interest rates is limited by either fixing the rate or by 
linking the rate to the prime rate over the period of the respective loan.

 VUNANI LIMITED – Companyfor the year ended 31 December 2013

31 December 2012
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64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

64.3 Credit Risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure of credit risk was:
Loans to subsidiary company 309 187 256 588
Loan to share trust 14 278 15 251
Cash and cash equivalents * *

323 465 271 839

* Less than R1 000

Impairment losses
The ageing of financial assets at the reporting date was:

Loan to Loan to

subsidiary share

Total company trust

2013
Not past due 323 465 309 187 14 278

2012
Not past due 271 839 256 588 15 251

Factors considered in impairment

The company reviews the recoverability of loans to the subsidiary on annual basis. The company reviews the budgets of the subsidiary, 
which include projected revenue, profits and cash flows forecasts. The valuations of underlying assets of the subsidiary are also reviewed. 
Loans are impaired if the company believes it will not be able to recover loans in the future.

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012

Accumulated impairment

Loans to subsidiary company (313 600) (313 600)

64.4 Fair values 2013 2012
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loans and receivables 323 465 323 465 271 839 271 839
Cash and cash equivalents * * * *

323 465 323 465 271 839 271 839

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Amortised cost (767) (767) (926) (926)

(767) (767) (926) (926)

* Less than R1 000

At 31 December 2013 the fair values of all the financial instruments are substantially identical to the carrying amount reflected in the 
statement of financial position.

Figures in Rand 000's 2013 2012
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SHAREHOLDERS’ DIARY

Financial year-end   31 December 2013

Announcement of results 24 March 2014

Annual report posted 19 June 2014

Annual general meeting 18 July 2014

Interim results release  August 2014

 VUNANI LIMITED – Companyfor the year ended 31 December 2013



116 VUNANI LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number: 1997/020641/06)

JSE code: VUN
ISIN: ZAE000163382

(the “company”)

 VUNANI LIMITED – Companyfor the year ended 31 December 2013

This document is important and requires your immediate attention.

If you are in any doubt about what action you should take, consult your broker, Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”), legal advisor, 
banker, financial advisor, accountant or other professional advisor immediately.

If you have disposed of all your shares in the company, please forward this document, together with the attached form of proxy, to the purchaser 
of such shares or the broker, CSDP, banker or other agent through whom you disposed of such shares. 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN to shareholders at 13 June 2014, being the record date to receive notice of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) 
for the year ended 31 December 2013 in terms of section 59(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended (the “Companies Act”), that 
the AGM of shareholders of the company will be held in the boardroom, Vunani Limited, Vunani House, 151 Katherine Street, Sandton at 10:00 on 
Friday, 18 July 2014 to: (i) deal with such other business as may lawfully be dealt with at the AGM and (ii) consider and, if deemed fit to pass, with 
or without modification, the following ordinary and special resolutions, in the manner required by the Companies Act, as read with the JSE Limited 
Listing Requirements (the “JSE Listing Requirements”), which meeting is to be participated in and voted by shareholders in terms of 
section 62(3)(a), read with section 59, of the Companies Act.

Salient dates applicable to the AGM  

Record date to be eligible to receive the notice of the AGM 13 June 2014

Last day to trade to be eligible to vote at the AGM 4 July 2014

Record date for determining those shareholders entitled to vote at the AGM 11 July 2014

Section 63(1) of the Companies Act – Identifi cation of Meeting Participants
Meeting participants (including proxies) are required to provide reasonably satisfactory identification before being entitled to attend or participate 
in shareholders’ meetings. Forms of identification include valid identity documents, drivers’ licences and passports.

When reading the ordinary and special resolutions below, please refer to the explanatory notes for AGM resolutions on pages 116 to 119.

1. PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated audited financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries (as approved by the board of directors of the company), 
including the directors’ report, the audit and risk committee report and the external auditor’s report for the year ended 31 December 2013 
have been distributed as required and will be presented to shareholders. The complete annual financial statements are set out on 
pages 38 to 113 of the integrated annual report.

2. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 1 
Re-election of A Judin as an executive director and chief financial officer

“It is hereby resolved that the re-election of A Judin, who retires as an executive director and chief financial officer of the company by 
rotation in accordance with the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment in this 
capacity, be approved.” 

Please refer to page 8 of the integrated annual report for a brief biography.

3. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 2
Re-election of NM Anderson as an executive director

“It is hereby resolved that the re-election of M Anderson, who retires as executive director of the company by rotation in accordance with the 
company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment in this capacity, be approved.” 

Please refer to page 8 of the integrated annual report for a brief biography.
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4. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 3
Confirmation of appointment of LI Jacob’s as a non-executive director, chairman of the board, chairman of the nomination 
committee, member of the investment committee and member of the numeration committee

Confirmation of appointment of LI Jacobs as an independent non-executive director of the company with effect from 14 April 2014 and 
as chairman of the board, chairman of the nomination committee, member of the investment committee and member of the numeration 
committee with effect from 21 May 2014.

Please refer to page 9 of the integrated annual report for a brief biography.

5. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 4
Re-election of GS Nzalo as a member and chairman of the audit and risk committee: Section 94(2) of the Companies Act

“It is hereby resolved that GS Nzalo be re-elected as a member and chairman of the audit and risk committee, with immediate effect, in 
terms of section 94(2) of the Companies Act.”

6. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 5
Re-election of JR Macey as a member of the audit and risk committee: Section 94(2) of the Companies Act

“It is hereby resolved that JR Macey be re-elected as a member of the audit and risk committee, with immediate effect, in terms of 
section 94(2) of the Companies Act.”

7. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 6
Re-election of NS Mazwi as a member of the audit and risk committee: Section 94(2) of the Companies Act

“It is hereby resolved that NS Mazwi be re-elected as a member of the audit and risk committee, with immediate effect, in terms of 
section 94(2) of the Companies Act.”

8. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 7
Re-appointment of KPMG Inc. as auditor in terms of section 61(8)(c) of the Companies Act

“It is hereby resolved that, on the recommendation of the audit and risk committee, KPMG Inc. be and is hereby re-appointed as the 
independent auditor of the company (for its financial year ending 31 December 2014) and that their appointment be of full force and effect 
until the conclusion of the company’s next annual general meeting, and noted that the designated auditor, G Parker, meets the requirements 
of section 90(2) of the Companies Act.”

9. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 8
General authority to directors to allot and issue authorised but unissued ordinary shares

“It is hereby resolved that the directors be and are hereby authorised to allot and issue, at their discretion, the unissued share capital of 
the company and/or grant options to subscribe for unissued shares, for such purposes and on such terms and conditions as they may 
determine, provided that such transaction(s) has/have been approved by the JSE Limited as and when required, and are subject to the 
JSE Listing Requirements and the Companies Act and shareholders hereby waive any pre-emptive rights thereto.”

10. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 9
General authority to directors to allot and issue ordinary shares for cash

“It is hereby resolved that, in terms of the JSE Listing Requirement, the mandate given to the directors of the company in terms of a general 
authority to issue securities for cash, as and when suitable opportunities arise, be renewed subject to the following conditions:

 ¢ any such issue of shares shall be to public shareholders as defined by the JSE Listing Requirements and not to related parties;

 ¢ any such issue of equity securities be of a class already in issue, or where this is not the case, must be limited to such securities or 
rights as are convertible into an existing class of equity securities;

 ¢ the authority shall only be valid until the next AGM of the company, provided it shall not extend beyond 15 months from the date of 
this AGM;

 ¢ an announcement giving details including impact on net asset value and earnings per share, will be published at the time of any such 
allotment and issue of shares representing, on a cumulative basis within one financial year, 5% or more of the number of shares of that 
class in issue prior to any such issues;

 ¢ that issues of shares (excluding issues of shares exercised in terms of any company/group share scheme) in any one financial year shall 
not, in aggregate, exceed 50% of the number of shares of any class of the company’s issued share capital; and

that, in determining the price at which an allotment and issue of shares will be made in terms of this authority, the maximum discount 
permitted will be 10% of the weighted average traded price of the class of shares to be issued over the 30 business days prior to the date 
that the price of issue is determined or agreed between the company and the party/parties subscribing for the securities.

Voting

In terms of the JSE Listing Requirements, the approval of 75% majority of votes cast in favour of ordinary resolution number 8 by 
shareholders present or represented by proxy at this AGM, excluding the Designated Advisor and the controlling shareholders together with 
their associates, will be required for this authority to become effective.
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11. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 10
Approval of remuneration policy (non-binding advisory note)

“It is hereby resolved that, through a non-binding advisory vote, the company’s remuneration policy (excluding the remuneration of 
non-executive directors and the members of board committees for their services as directors and members of committees) which is not 
to remunerate its executive directors for attendance at meetings, but rather to remunerate them in terms of an employment contract, be 
approved and endorsed.”

12. SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 1 

Approval of remuneration payable to non-executive directors

“It is hereby resolved as a special resolution in terms of section 66(9) of the Companies Act, as read with section 65(11)(h), and 
subject to the provisions of the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation that the company be and it is hereby authorised to pay 
remuneration to its non-executive directors for their service as directors as follows:

Chairman of the board R250 000 per annum, includes remuneration for services provided to the group, including 
chairman of the nomination committee and member of the investment committee and 
remuneration committee.

Base fee for other non-executive directors R115 000 per annum

Chairman of audit and risk committee R20 000 per annum, in addition to the base fee

Member of the audit and risk committee R10 000 per annum, in addition to the base fee 

Chairman of the investment committee R20 0000 per annum, in addition to the base fee

Member of the investment committee R10 000 per annum, in addition to the base fee  

Chairman of the remuneration committee R5 000 per annum, in addition to the base fee 

Member of the nomination committee R5 000 per annum, in addition to the base fee

Chairman of the social and ethics committee R10 000 in addition to the base fee

Special resolution number 1 is proposed in order to comply with the requirements of the Companies Act. The aforementioned rates have 
been recommended in order to ensure that the remuneration of non-executive directors remains competitive in order to enable the company 
to attract persons of the calibre, capability, skill and experience required in order to make a meaningful contribution to the company. The 
remuneration proposed is considered to be fair and reasonable and in the best interests of the company.

13. SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 2
Repurchase of company shares

“It is hereby resolved as a special resolution that, subject to the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, the Companies Act and the 
JSE Listing Requirements in force from time to time, the company and/or a subsidiary of the company be and it is hereby authorised to 
repurchase or purchase, as the case may be, shares issued by the company from any person, upon such terms and conditions and in such 
manner as the directors of the company or the subsidiary may from time to time determine, including that such securities be repurchased or 
purchased from share premium or capital redemption reserve fund, subject to the following:

 ¢ that the repurchase of securities be effected through the order book operated by the JSE trading system and be done without any prior 
understanding or arrangement between the company and the counterparty;

 ¢ that this general authority be valid only until the next annual general meeting or the variation or revocation of such general authority by 
special resolution at any subsequent general meeting of the company, provided that it shall not extend beyond 15 months from the date 
of this resolution;

 ¢ that an announcement be made giving such details as may be required in terms of the JSE Listing Requirements when the company 
has cumulatively repurchased 3% of the initial number (the number of that class of security in issue at the time that the general authority 
is granted) of the relevant class of securities and for each 3% in aggregate of the initial number of that class acquired thereafter;

 ¢ at any point in time the company may only appoint one agent to effect any repurchase on the company’s behalf;

 ¢ repurchases may not be made by the company and/or its subsidiaries during a prohibited period as defined in the JSE Listing 
Requirements unless a repurchase programme is in place where the dates and quantities of securities to be traded during the relevant 
period are fixed and full details of the programme have been disclosed in an announcement over SENS prior to the commencement 
of the prohibited period;

 ¢ the repurchase of shares shall not, in the aggregate, in any one financial year, exceed 20% of the company’s issued capital and a 
maximum of 10% in aggregate of the company’s issued capital may be repurchased in terms of the Companies Act, by the subsidiaries 
of the company, at the time this authority is given;

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (continued)

 VUNANI LIMITED – Companyfor the year ended 31 December 2013
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 ¢ the repurchase of securities may not be made at a price greater than 10% above the weighted average of the market value of the 
securities as determined over the five business days immediately preceding the date on which the transaction is effected;

 ¢ the company may not enter the market to proceed with the repurchase of its securities until the company’s Designated Advisor has 
confirmed the adequacy of the company’s working capital for the purpose of undertaking a repurchase of securities in writing to 
the JSE; and

 ¢ the board of directors passing a resolution that they authorised the repurchase and that the company passed the solvency and liquidity 
test as set out in section 4 of the Companies Act and that, since the test was done, there have been no material changes to the 
financial position of the group.”

The directors of the company or its subsidiaries will only utilise the general authority set out in special resolution number 2 above to 
the extent that they, after considering the effect of the maximum repurchase permitted, and for a period of 12 months after the date of the 
notice of this AGM, are of the opinion that:

 ¢ the company and the group will be able, in the ordinary course of business, to pay their debts;

 ¢ the assets of the company and the group will be in excess of the liabilities of the company and the group, the assets and liabilities being 
recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policies used in the latest annual financial statements;

 ¢ the ordinary share capital and reserves of the company and the group are adequate for ordinary business purposes;

 ¢ the working capital of the company and the group will be adequate for ordinary business purposes;

 ¢ the directors have passed a resolution authorising the repurchase, resolving that the company has satisfied the solvency and liquidity 
tests as defined in the Companies Act and resolving that since the solvency and liquidity test had been applied, there have been no 
material changes to the financial position of the group.

For the purpose of considering special resolution number 2 and in compliance with the JSE Listing Requirements, the information listed 
below has been included in the company’s integrated annual report, of which this notice of AGM forms part, at the places indicated below:

 ¢ directors and management – refer to pages 8 and 9 of this integrated annual report;

 ¢ major shareholders – refer to page 121 of this integrated annual report;

 ¢ directors’ interests and securities – refer to pages 39 and 122 of this integrated annual report; and

 ¢ share capital of the company – refer to page 78 of this integrated annual report.

Directors’ responsibility

The directors, whose names are set out on pages 8 and 9 of this integrated annual report, collectively and individually, accept full 
responsibility for the accuracy of the information pertaining to special resolution number 2 and certify that, to the best of their knowledge 
and belief, there are no other facts that have been omitted which would make any statement false or misleading and that all reasonable 
enquiries have been made and that the aforementioned special resolution contains all the information required by the JSE.

14. SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 3
Financial assistance

“It is hereby resolved as a special resolution that, subject to the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and subject to the requirements 
of the Companies Act, that the board of directors of the company may authorise the company to provide direct or indirect financial 
assistance by way of loan, guarantee, the provision of security or otherwise to:

 ¢ any of its present or future subsidiaries and/or any other company or corporation that is or becomes related or inter-related to the 
company for any purpose or in connection with any matter, including but not limited to, the subscription of any option, or any securities 
issued or to be issued by the company or a related or inter-related company, or for the purchase of any securities of the company or a 
related or inter-related company; and

 ¢ any of its present or future directors or prescribed officers (or any person related to any of them or to any company or corporation 
related or inter-related to any of them) or to any other person who is a participant in any of the company’s share or other employee 
incentive schemes, for the purpose of, or in connection with, the subscription of any option, or any securities, issued or to be issued 
by the company or a related or inter-related company, or for the purchase of any securities of the company or a related or inter-related 
company, where such financial assistance is provided in terms of any such scheme that does not satisfy the requirements of section 97 
of the Companies Act, such authority to endure until the next annual general meeting of the company.”

15. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 11
Directors’ authority to sign documentation

“It is resolved as an ordinary resolution that any director of the company be and hereby is authorised to sign any documents and to take any 
steps as may be necessary or expedient to give effect to all ordinary and special resolutions passed at this meeting, 
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Voting procedures and electronic participation

On a show of hands, every shareholder present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote shall have only one vote, irrespective of the 
number of shares such shareholder holds. On a poll, every shareholder present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote shall be 
entitled to one vote for every share held or represented by that shareholder. On a poll taken at any such meeting the shareholder entitled to more 
than one vote need not, if he votes, use all of his votes, or cast all the votes he uses in the same way:

 ■ to furnish the company with his voting instructions; or

 ■ in the event that he wishes to attend the AGM, to obtain the necessary letter of representation to do so.

The directors have not made any provision for electronic participation at the AGM.

Litigation

The directors are not aware of any legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings that are pending or threatened of which 
the company is aware) which may have or have had, in the recent past, being at least the previous 12 months, a material effect on the group’s 
financial position.

Material change

Other than the facts and developments reported on in this integrated annual report, there have been no material changes in the financial or trading 
position of the group since the company’s financial year-end and the signature date of this integrated annual report.

Threshold for resolution approval

For ordinary resolutions, with the exception of ordinary resolution number 9 as detailed above, to be approved by shareholders, each resolution 
must be supported by more than 50% of the voting rights exercised on the resolution concerned.

For special resolutions and ordinary resolution number 9 to be approved by shareholders, each resolution must be supported at least 75% of the 
voting rights exercised on the resolution concerned.

Proxies

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, participate in and vote at the AGM in the 
place of the shareholder. A proxy need not also be a shareholder of the company.

Shareholders on the company share register who have dematerialised their ordinary shares through Strate, other than those whose shareholding 
is recorded in their “own name” in the sub-register maintained by their CSDP, and who wish to attend the AGM in person, will need to request their 
CSDP or broker to provide them with the necessary authority to do so in terms of the custody agreement entered into between the dematerialised 
shareholders and their CSDP or broker.

Shareholders who have not dematerialised their shares or who have dematerialised their shares with “own name” registration, and who are 
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, are entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and vote in their stead. A proxy need not 
be a shareholder and shall be entitled to vote on a show of hands or poll. It is requested that forms of proxy be forwarded so as to reach the 
transfer secretaries at least 48 hours prior to the AGM. If shareholders who have not dematerialised their shares or who have dematerialised their 
shares with “own name” registration and who are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM do not deliver forms of proxy to the transfer secretaries 
timeously, such shareholders will nevertheless at any time prior to the commencement of the voting on the ordinary and special resolutions at the 
AGM be entitled to lodge forms of proxy in respect of the AGM, in accordance with the instructions therein with the chairman of the AGM. 

By order of the board

EG Dube

Chief Executive Officer

19 June 2014 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (continued)
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VUNANI AT 
A GLANCE

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Number of Percentage Number of Percentage

shareholders  of shares shares of shares 

held held held 

% (000s) %

Analysis of shareholding
Individuals and corporates 275 83.6% 79 119 75.1%

Investment and insurance companies 25 7.6% 11 549 11.0%

Nominees and trusts 27 8.2% 9 975 9.5%

Share schemes 1 0.3% 4 759 4.5%

Pension and provident funds 1 0.3%  13 0.0%

Shareholding per share register 329 100.0% 105 415 100.0%

Range of shareholding

1 to 1 000 166 50.5%  53 0.1%

1 001 to 10 000 95 28.9%  348 0.3%

10 001 to 100 000 41 12.5% 1 593 1.5%

100 001 to 1 000 000 18 5.5% 5 926 5.6%

More than 1 000 000 9 2.6% 97 495 92.5%

329 100.0% 105 415 100.0%

Shareholders spread analysis

To the best knowledge of the directors and after reasonable enquiry, 
as at 31 December 2013, the spread of shareholders, as defined in the 
listing requirements of the JSE Limited, was as follows:

Type of shareholder

Non-public 13 4.0%  82 77.5%

Directors and associates (direct holding) 6 1.8%  414 0.4%

Directors and associates (indirect holding) 5 1.5% 53 078 50.4%

Share schemes 1 0.3% 4 759 4.5%

Vunani Group Proprietary Limited (holding >10% excluding directors) 1 0.3% 23 421 22.2%

Public 316 96.0% 23 742 22.5%

329 100.0% 105 415 100.0%

Shareholdings greater than 5%

Vunani Group Proprietary Limited 76 308 72.4%

76 308 72.4%

 VUNANI LIMITED – Companyat 31 December 2013
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Shareholdings per director of the company and major operating subsidiaries 

Number of shares held 
Beneficially Beneficially Total number 

At 31 December 2013 direct  indirect of shares held

(000s) (000s) (000s)

EG Dube – 23 441 23 441 

NM Anderson – 14 620 14 620 

BM Khoza – 14 635 14 635 

JJ Rossouw –  398  398 

A Judin  86 –  86 

RB Makhubela*  94 –  94 

A Zuma  65 –  65 

 245 53 094 53 339 

There has been no change in shareholdings of the directors of the listed company between 31 December 2013 and the approval of the annual report. 

*There has been changes in the shareholdings of RB Makhubela subsequent to year end and the approval of the annual report.

Shareholdings per director of the company and major operating subsidiaries 

Number of shares held

Beneficially Beneficially Total number 

At 31 December 2012 direct  indirect of shares held

(000s) (000s) (000s)

EG Dube – 23 436 23 436 

NM Anderson – 14 625 14 625 

BM Khoza – 14 625 14 625 

JJ Rossouw –  398  398 

A Judin  86 –  86 

MJ Moller  86 –  86 

RB Makhubela  67 –  67 

A Zuma  65 –  65 

 304 53 084 53 388 

 VUNANI LIMITED – Companyat 31 December 2013
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FORM OF PROXY

(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number: 1997/020641/06)

JSE code: VUN
ISIN: ZAE000163382

(“the company”)

To be completed by registered certificated shareholders and dematerialised shareholders with own name registration only.

For use in respect of the annual general meeting to be held at the company’s offices, Vunani House, Vunani  Office Park, 151 Katherine Street, Sandown, Sandton on Friday, 
18 July 2014 at 10:00.

Ordinary shareholders who have dematerialised their shares with a CSDP or broker, other than with own name registration, must arrange with the CSDP or broker concerned to 
provide them with the necessary letter of representation to attend the annual general meeting or the ordinary shareholders concerned must instruct their CSDP or broker as to how 
they wish to vote in this regard. This must be done in terms of the agreement entered into between the shareholder and the CSDP or broker concerned.

I/We (full names in block letters)  

of (address)    

Telephone (work) (    )   Telephone (home) (  )

being the holder(s) of   ordinary shares in the company, appoint (see note 1):

  or failing him/her,

  or failing him/her,

the chairman of the annual general meeting,  
as my/our proxy to act on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting which is to be held for the purpose of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, 
the ordinary and special resolutions to be proposed thereat and at any adjournment thereof and to vote for or against such resolutions or to abstain from voting in respect of such 
resolutions, in accordance with the following instructions (see note 2):

 
Number of votes (one vote 

per ordinary share)

  For Against Abstain

Ordinary resolution number 1      
Re-election of A Judin as an executive director and chief financial officer      

Ordinary resolution number 2      
Re-election of NM Anderson as an executive director      

Ordinary resolution number 3      
Confirmation of appointment of LI Jacob’s as a non-executive director, chairman of the board, chairman of the nomination 
committee, member of the investment committee and member of the numeration committee      

Ordinary resolution number 4      
Re-election of GS Nzalo as a member and chairman of the audit and risk committee      

Ordinary resolution number 5      
Re-election of JR Macey as a member of the audit and risk committee      

Ordinary resolution number 6      
Re-election of NS Mazwi as a member of the audit and risk committee      

Ordinary resolution number 7      
Re-appointment of KPMG Inc. as the auditor of the company      

Ordinary resolution number 8      
General authority to directors to allot and issue authorised but unissued ordinary shares      

Ordinary resolution number 9      
General authority to directors to allot and issue ordinary shares for cash      

Ordinary resolution number 10      
Approval of remuneration policy (non-binding advisory vote)      

Special resolution number 1      
Approval of remuneration payable to non-executive directors      

Special resolution number 2      
Repurchase of company shares      

Special resolution number 3      
Financial assistance      

Ordinary resolution number 11      
Directors' authority to sign documentation      

(Please indicate instructions to proxy in the space provided above by the insertion therein of the relevant number of votes exercisable.)

Each shareholder is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be a shareholder of the company) to attend, speak, and on a poll, vote in place of that shareholder at the 
annual general meeting.

Signed at on  2014

Signature(s)

Capacity

Please read the notes and summary on the reverse side hereof.



NOTES

1. A member may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternate proxies 
of the member’s choice in the space(s) provided, with or without deleting “the 
chairman of the annual general meeting”. The person whose name stands first 
on this form of proxy and who is present at the annual general meeting will be 
entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of those whose names follow.

2. A member should insert an “X” in the relevant space according to how he wishes 
his votes to be cast. However, if a member wishes to cast a vote in respect of 
a lesser number of ordinary shares than he owns in the company, he should 
insert the number of ordinary shares held in respect of which he wishes to vote. 
Failure to comply with the above will be deemed to authorise the proxy to vote or 
to abstain from voting at the annual general meeting as he deems fit in respect 
of all the member’s votes exercisable at the annual general meeting. A member 
is not obliged to exercise all of his votes, but the total of the votes cast and 
abstentions recorded may not exceed the total number of the votes exercisable 
by the member.

3. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant 
member from attending the annual general meeting and speaking and voting 
in person to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof, should such 
member wish to so do.

4. The chairman of the annual general meeting may reject or accept any form 
of proxy, which is completed and/or received, other than in compliance with 
these notes.

5. Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares with a CSDP or broker, 
other than with own name registration, must arrange with the CSDP or broker 
concerned to provide them with the necessary letter of representation to attend 
the annual general meeting or the ordinary shareholders concerned must instruct 
their CSDP or broker as to how they wish to vote in this regard. This must be 
done in terms of the agreement entered into between the shareholders and the 
CSDP or broker concerned.

6. Any alteration to this form of proxy, other than the deletion of alternatives, must 
be signed, not initialled, by the signatory/ies.

7. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this 
form of proxy in a representative capacity (e.g. on behalf of a company, close 
corporation, trust, pension fund, deceased estate, etc.) must be attached to 
this form of proxy, unless previously recorded by the company or waived by the 
chairman of the annual general meeting.

8. A minor must be assisted by his/her parent or guardian, unless the relevant 
documents establishing his/her capacity are produced or have been recorded by 
the company.

9. Where there are joint holders of shares:

 ■ any one holder may sign this form of proxy; and

 ■ the vote of the senior joint holder who tenders a vote, as determined by the 
order in which the names stand in the company’s register of members, will 
be accepted.

10. To be valid, the completed forms of proxy must either: (a) be lodged so as to 
reach the transfer secretaries by no later than the relevant time or (b) be lodged 
with the chairman of the annual general meeting prior to the annual general 
meeting so as to reach the chairman by no later than immediately prior to the 
commencement of voting on the ordinary and special resolutions to be tabled at 
the annual general meeting.

11. The proxy appointment is revocable by the shareholders giving written notice 
of the cancellation to the company prior to the annual general meeting or any 
adjournment thereof. The revocation of the proxy appointment constitutes a 
complete and final cancellation of the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of the 
shareholders as of the later of: (i) the date stated in the written notice, if any or (ii) 
the date on which the written notice was delivered as aforesaid.

12. If the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies has been delivered to the 
company, any notice that is required by the Companies Act or the articles 
to be delivered by the company to shareholders must (as long as the proxy 
appointment remains in effect) be delivered by the company to: (i) the shareholder 
or (ii) the proxy or proxies of the shareholder has directed the company to do so, 
in writing and pay it any reasonable fee charged by the company for doing so.

SUMMARY OF THE RIGHTS

Established in terms of section 58 of the Companies Act

For purposes of this summary, “shareholder” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto 
in the Companies Act.

1. At any time, a shareholder of a company is entitled to appoint an individual, 
including an individual who is not a shareholder of that company, as a proxy, to 
participate in, and speak and vote at, a shareholders’ meeting on behalf of the 
shareholder, or give or withhold written consent on behalf of such shareholder in 
relation to an decision contemplated in section 60 of the Companies Act.

2. A proxy appointment must be in writing, dated and signed by the relevant 
shareholder, and such proxy appointment remains valid for one year after the 
date upon which the proxy was signed, or any longer or shorter period expressly 
set out in the appointment, unless it is revoked in a manner contemplated in 
section 58(4)(c) of the Companies Act or expires earlier as contemplated in 
section 58(8)(d) of the Companies Act.

3. Except to the extent that the memorandum of incorporation of a company 
provides otherwise:

(a) a shareholder of the relevant company may appoint two or more persons 
concurrently as proxies, and may appoint more than one proxy to exercise 
voting rights attached to different securities held by such shareholder;

(b) a proxy may delegate his authority to act on behalf of a shareholder 
to another person, subject to any restriction set out in the instrument 
appointing the proxy; and

(c) a copy of the instrument appointing a proxy must be delivered to the 
relevant company, or to any other person on behalf of the relevant 
company, before the proxy exercises any rights of the shareholder at a 
shareholders’ meeting.

4. Irrespective of the form of instrument used to appoint a proxy, the appointment 
of the proxy is suspended at any time and to the extent that the shareholder who 
appointed that proxy chooses to act directly and in person in the exercise of any 
rights as a shareholder of the relevant company.

5. Unless the proxy appointment expressly states otherwise, the appointment of 
a proxy is revocable. If the appointment of a proxy is revocable, a shareholder 
may revoke the proxy appointment by cancelling it in writing, or making a later 
inconsistent appointment of a proxy, and delivering a copy of the revocation 
instrument to the proxy and the company.

6. The revocation of a proxy appointment constitutes a complete and final 
cancellation of the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of the relevant shareholder 
as of the later of the date: (a) stated in the revocation instrument, if any or (b) 
upon which the revocation instrument is delivered to the proxy and the relevant 
company as required in section 58(4)(c)(ii) of the Companies Act.

7. If the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies has been delivered to the relevant 
company, as long as that appointment remains in effect, any notice that is 
required by the Companies Act or the relevant company’s memorandum of 
incorporation to be delivered by such company to the shareholder, must be 
delivered by such company to the shareholder, or to the proxy or proxies, if the 
shareholder has directed the relevant company to do so in writing and paid any 
reasonable fee charged by the company for doing so.

8. A proxy is entitled to exercise, or abstain from exercising, any voting right 
of the relevant shareholder without direction, except to the extent that the 
memorandum of incorporation, or the instrument appointing the proxy 
provides otherwise.

9. If a company issues an invitation to shareholders to appoint one or more 
persons named by such company as a proxy, or supply a form of instrument for 
appointing a proxy:

(a) such invitation must be sent to every shareholder who is entitled to notice of 
the meeting at which the proxy is intended to be exercised;

(b) the invitation, or form of instrument supplied by the relevant company, 
must: (a) bear a reasonably prominent summary of the rights established 
in section 58 of the Companies Act; (b) contain adequate blank space, 
immediately preceding the name or names of any person or persons named 
in it, to enable a shareholder to write in the name and, if so desired, an 
alternative name of a proxy chosen by such shareholder and (c) provide 
adequate space for the shareholder to indicate whether the appointed 
proxy is to vote in favour or against the applicable resolution/s to be put at 
the relevant meeting, or is to abstain from voting;

(c) the company must not require that the proxy appointment be made 
irrevocable; and

(d) the proxy appointment remains valid only until the end of the relevant 
meeting at which it was intended to be used, unless revoked as 
contemplated in section 58(5) of the Companies Act. 

NOTES TO THE FORM OF PROXY
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Headquarters Sandton, South Africa

Registration number 1997/020641/06

JSE code VUN

ISIN ZAE000163382

Primary listing AltX on the JSE

Listing date 27 November 2007

Shares in issue at 31 December 2013 105 414 648

Business address and registered office Vunani House
  Vunani Office Park
  151 Katherine Street
  Sandton

Postal address PO Box 652419
  Benmore
  2010

Transfer secretaries Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited
  70 Marshall Street
  Johannesburg
  2001

Designated Advisor Grindrod Bank Limited

Website www.vunanilimited.co.za

Telephone +27 11 263 9500

Fax +27 11 784 2550
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